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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It has been a decade since we started a well-planned and coherent process for Argos to transform from
local business into a multinational player. We focused on the concrete and cement business, an area in
which we have been able to successfully compete in a dynamic economic environment, generating value
for our shareholders and society.

We have been able to obtain record financial results, increase social dividends within the communities
we operate and manage natural resources carefully. All of this is thanks to the leadership and the
quality of our human talent, the geographic diversity of the productive assets, our logistics platforms
interconnection, the cultural multiplicity, and the strengthening of innovation and sustainability as
development elements, and our company’s respect for and promotion of human rights, the principles of
the Global Compact and the International Labour Organization.

This year our income cash flow and net profit grew into two-digit numbers, well above our historical
performance. Furthermore, we significantly strengthened our foreign operations by consolidating acquired
plants. We launched a strategic investment for the future, the Argos Center for Innovation. We confirmed
our commitment to sustainability, which was supported by international entities such as the Dow Jones
Sustainability Index and the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP), among others.

The company has a good foundation for further growth, based on an excellent team created by José
Alberto Vélez Cadavid. In addition to serving as president of the company from 2004 to 2012, he served
as the president of the board of directors for the past four years. Under his direction, Cementos Argos
went through unprecedented transformation and internationalization. This has allowed us to successfully
grow by developing our own unique culture based on respect, transcendence and awareness of the social
role of the entrepreneur.

During his time with the company, José Alberto worked to shaped the basis of our present success. He
invited us to adopt cultural diversity as a value that allows us to learn from the acquired operations, to
see the new markets as infinite opportunities to grow and to stand out and to always find new and better
ways of doing things by respecting and learning from others. For him, we have utmost respect, gratitude,
admiration and affection.

Today, my work as the president of Cementos Argos comes to an end. | have deep gratitude toward the
shareholders for their trust, to the board of directors for their permanent guidance and to my co-workers
for their invaluable dedication. Because of them, this company has enjoyed considerable success.

I am honored to have shared my time with them.

To Juan Esteban Calle, a great human being and an excellent professional who assumes the presidency

of Cementos Argos, | wish great success.

Jorge Mario Velasquez
CEO of Cementos Argos



We present to our stakeholders the Integrated Report 2015, which contains
relevant information about our ability to create value as a company. In this
communication, we describe the way we add value to processes and products

in accordance with our strategic priorities and accompanying risk management.
Including within are details of our performance and our plans regarding each of
the most relevant aspects of our company, with regard to the sustainability of our
business for our stakeholders.

These aspects correspond to the most important issues resulting from the exercise
of identification, prioritization and validation of social, economic and environmental
matters, according to the expectations of our stakeholders, as well as the strategic
risks and priorities, business opportunities, sustainability commitments, the Mega
2025 and industry trends. This exercise was performed in 2015 and replaces the
one published in the 2014 Integrated Report (see matrix).

For the preparation of this report, we adopted the international standard of the
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) as our base methodology. We chose the option
“Essential Compliance” according to the fourth version of its guidelines (G4
Reporting Guidelines) . Throughout the text, you will find colored boxes that
contain specific codes; those starting with "G4" correspond to a GRI indicator,
while the ones starting with "A" correspond to indicators of the company. A
summary GRI table containing a description of each indicator and revealing its
location can be found in the Appendix.

We also followed other international standards, such as the International
Integrated Report Council (IIRC). In the digital version of this report, you can

find the result of the self-assessment about our commitment to the principles
contained in its reporting framework (www.reporteintegradoargos.co). Additionally,
this document serves as a United Nation Global Compact Communication on
Progress (COP), according to the corresponding index available on the online
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For further information on this report, go to the online
version at www.reporteintegradoargos.co. In addition,
to the right you can find several QR codes that you can
scan with your mobile device.
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version of this report. Likewise, in the CSl table, we
communicate our performance based on the indicators
of the Cement Sustainability Initiative (CSI), to which

we joined five years ago.

In 2015, the figures of our Management Report are
presented under the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), while those of previous years
correspond to the standards of Colombia’s generally
accepted accounting principles (COLGAAP). In order

to maintain comparability with the figures published

in past reports, they are expressed in pesos and US
dollars in a representative market exchange rate of COP
$3,149.47. Conversions of the corresponding 2015
figures were made using this rate. In 2014, the rate was
COP $2,392.46.

The information contained herein corresponds to the
period between Jan. 1, 2015 and Dec. 31, 2015 g
and includes the activities of all the companies whose
figures are consolidated in our financial statements
in accordance with the international standards in the
cement, concrete and aggregates businesses from
Colombia, the Caribbean and Central America, and
United States. Any clarification or exception to such
coverage will be indicated in the text when appropriate
. The periodicity of this publication is annual and
the latest version is the one published in March 2015,
corresponding to the year 2014

This report has been verified by Deloitte, an
independent third party, according to the instructions
given by the CEO and the senior management team,
bodies that reviewed and approved its content

The online version of this report can be viewed at
www.reporteintegradoargos.co, or using the QR codes
on this page. In case of any questions, suggestions or
opinions on this report, please contact Cristina Arias
Echavarria, Director of Sustainability, via email:
cariasa@argos.com.co

Self-assessment of CSlI Table
the implementation
of principles and
contents of the

integrated report

Report
of Independent
Review



OUR OPERATIONS
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We operate in 15 countries (@ We export to
and territories 35 destinations

throughout three regions: Colombia, the United States,
and Caribbean and Central America
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7 Cementos Argos S.A. operates in Venezuela through its subsidiary ]
/ company Corporacion de Cemento Andino C.A., which is currently
A involved in a legal process regarding the expropriation by the
Venezuelan government of its plant located in the state of Trujillo (Venezuela).
The compensation that Cementos Argos S.A. or its subsidiary Compafia de
Cemento Andino C.A. would receive is subject to the judicial decisions of the
competent bodies of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela. Argos maintains
the claim for its investment in that country. . (64-3)

Brands, products
and services
524 of Argos

)




Suriname

Since 1944

ﬂl Cement
plants

g\! Distribution

centers

376

Readymix
concrete plants

IMPORTANT FIGURES FROM 2015

Economic results

Figures for 2014 and 2015 management are certified according to the IFRS. Figures corresponding to previous

years are presented under COLGAAP.
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FACILITIES BY REGION

USA

Region
ﬁ[ 3 cement plants W5, 1,734 mixer trucks
304 Ready-mix f)z?v;?erz;)ressed natural gas
E concrete plants
&8 3 Grinding facilities 985 Rail cars

Be D

3,151 Employees

Regular workforce

ﬂh- 12 ports/terminals

Q\Q 18 distribution centers

Caribbean and
Central America

Region

ﬂi 1 cement plant
E 13 Ready-mix concrete plants
[E#8 6 Grinding facilities
.“JI;- 11 ports/terminals
g\! 15 distribution centers

W5 170 mixer trucks
¢ 1,120 Employees

Regular workforce

Colombia

Region

ﬂl 9 cement plants

g 59 Ready-mix concrete plants

2l 1 port/terminal
Qo\! 36 distribution centers

05, 682 mixer trucks

& 4,976 Employees

Regular workforce

SALES BY REGION

Cement #e

56¢y of cement sales were made
0 outside of Colombia

Metric tons

[ Colombia
6.2 million

[l United States
3.4 million

M caribbean and
Central America
3.9 million

Il Exports
0.8 million tons

Concrete s

68% of concrete sales were made
outside of Colombia

[l United States
7.4 million m®
[l Colombia
3.7 million m®
[l caribbean and
Central America
0.4 million m*




MOST IMPORTANT ACHIEVEMENTS OF 2015

Figures for 2014 and 2015 management are certified according to the IFRS. Figures corresponding to previous years are presented under the COLGAAP standards.

millions of metric millions of cubic
tons of cement meters of concrete

w,
%

%

EBITDA growth Growth of net profit

We completed expansion of the Rioclaro Plant, where
capacity was increased by about 900,000 tons
thanks to an investment of

G
o ]
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in the installation of a new
vertical mill at the Harleyville
Plant in the USA, with the
capacity to produce

1.8 million tons per year. /I

o

ARGOS

'0‘-J o

In the purchase of 60 percent of a cement

terminal in Puerto Rico, which expands
and strengthens our business and logistics
network in the region.




MEMBER OF

Dow Jones “
Sustainability Indices “‘CDP

In Caollaboration with RobecoSAM « DRIVING SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIES

For the third year in a row, we were included We are part of the CDP’s Climate Change program,
in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index, 2015 edition.

and we received the Silver Class distinction

from RobecoSAM. We were included in the Latin-American

index of the Carbon Disclosure Project
as the fourth Colombian company

ROB_EC_:_()SAM with the best practices, quality and
Sustainability Award transparency in the management of
Silver Class 2016 climate change.

of revenue came from innovation. In 2015, we launched the
Argos Center for Innovation.

% O%‘r o n 6’{\0 ’i\in

We were the first Colombian company certified with the EQUIPARES seal,
which is granted by the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP)
and the Ministry of Work to companies that lead on social innovation and
equal opportunities for men and women.

equipares | =R ’




OUR EMPLOYEES ez rezm
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TO INNOVATE IS

TO CHALLENGE THE FUTURE
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West facade of Argos Center for Innovation, Medellin, Colombia



Management report

Respected Shareholders:

It is a pleasure for us to share the results of our management in 2015
with you. This year was distinguished by big accomplishments in
different areas of the company, amid a favorable economic environment

in most markets in which we operate today. Argos’ flexibility and capacity

to adapt to a dynamic environment have been keys to the strategy taken
on with coherence and discipline in the last decade.

Our focus on the diversification of markets with different economic
cycles, our operations flexibility through vertical integration, a wide

distribution network and a value proposition focused on
understanding our clients’ needs keep us on the path of
sustainable growth.

Our expansion process and improvement in the
integration of the acquired operation continues with

emphasis on operational efficiency and consistency with

our business model, which has been strengthened in
recent years.

I3 Geographic diversification

At Argos, we are always looking for
new growth opportunities within our
strategic territory, which is formed by
three regional divisions with diverse
cultures and occasionally
non-simultaneous economic

cycles. These divisions represent
great potential for growth and with
premium locations that bring synergy,
connectivity and logistic flexibility to
our operations.

Geographic diversification has
leveraged our growth in recent years
and is a strong advantage because
it allows us to balance the economic
cycles of the markets and diversify
currencies of income, in addition to
capturing synergies between them.
This has given us great balance in
the composition of the incomes and
EBITDA by regional division, and
provides a differential value to the
shareholders.

In 2004, a majortity of our income
came from Colombia, within nearly
a single market. In 2015, the United

2 GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION

EXPANSION AND CONSOLIDATION

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

PROFITABILITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
BY REGION

PLATFORMS
TO LEVERAGE GROWTH

_ Integrated Report 2015

States represented 43 percent of
the income, Caribbean and Central
America, 19 percent, and Colombia,
38 percent. In conclusion, we closed
2015 with 62 percent of our sales
generated outside of Colombia in U.S.
dollars or in currencies correlated
with the dollar. This makes us a
Colombian multinational company
with a relevant presence in the
United States, in addition to 13 other
countries and territories.

As for EBITDA, it is becoming more
evenly distributed. The Caribbean
and Central America contribute

to 30 percent of cash generation,
compared to 21 percent in 2011.

In addition, the United States, after
the difficult years that followed the
financial crisis in 2008, now presents
an encouraging dynamic. This region
represented the 20 percent of the
consolidated EBITDA. This has great
growth potential thanks to

the positive outlook projected for
this country.

It is noteworthy that as Argos
consolidates its financial statements
in Colombian pesos, this new
composition in the structure of
revenues and EBITDA strengthens
the economic performance of

the company.

IN 2015, WE PROFITED FROM
MORE THAN A DECADE OF
INTERNATIONALIZATION, WITH
62% OF REVENUE GENERATED
OUTSIDE COLOMBIA.

Revenue in billions of COP

[ Colombia M United States
[¥ Caribbean M Others
and Central America
7,912
Generated abroad
1,482
43 62%
2011 2015
3,416
0 37
2015
EBITDA in billions of COP
[@ Caribbean & Colombia
and Central America M United States
M Others
1,519
Generated abroad
14 46
2011 2015
459
303
-122

2015

The figures of the management of 2015 are approved according
to IFRS rules, those that correspond to previous years are reported
under the COLGAAP rules.



Expansion and consolidation

Throughout this year,
we have focused on the consolidation
of our recently acquired operations
in the United States, the Caribbean
and Central America under a single
corporate culture and an increasingly
homogeneous operating model,
enriched with the diversity contributed
by every country we have reached.

As part of our operational efficiency
program, we started the operation of
our new vertical mill in our cement
plant in Harleyville, South Carolina, in
the United States with an investment
of USD $58 million. This is Argos’
largest mill and is one of the few mills
with a production capacity of around
1.8 million tons a year, which will
help us cover the growing demand in
this country in an efficient way.

Meanwhile, in Colombia, we finished
the expansion process of our cement
plant in Rioclaro, one of the most
modern and efficient plants in the
country. We increased the production
capacity to nearly 900,000 tons a
year. This development represents
approximately 18 percent of the

total concrete consumption in the
central region of Colombia, an area
that operates near its installed
capacity. This will allow us to address
this dynamic market in an ideal

way, focused on 46 percent of the
national consumption.

In addition, as planned, we moved
forward in the design and construction
of a dry mortar production line at our
Sogamoso Cement Plant, with an
annual capacity of 2.3 million tons.

Rioclaro Cement Plant Expansion, Colombia Region

Asset description
Capacity to transport close
to 250,000 tons a year
Licenses until 2020 extendable for
two periods of five years each

Advantages
Interconnectivity with
the strategic region
Profitable market, with cash
generation in dollar and with
growth potential
y con potencial de crecimiento.
Entrance into a relevant market
in the Caribbean

Market size Approximately

We own

—® Port/Terminal

Puerto Rico

L exceeds
Market participation at the

moment of purchase is

s PR
Puerto Rico Terminal, the Caribbean and Central America Region

This project will need an approximate investment
of USD $450 million and is progressing according
to schedule. We hope to begin operations in
2018, at a time when the consumption of
demanded concrete in the area is expected

to be at its highest due to the infrastructure
works of the Fourth Generation Program of

Road Concessions, promoted by the Colombian
government.

In the Caribbean and Central America, our
greatest achievement in 2015 was the
acquisition of 60 percent of a terminal for
receiving, storage, sales and distribution in
Puerto Rico, with a USD $18 million investment.

This purchase allowed us to increase the
operational capacity to 250,000 tons a year,
to penetrate a new interconnected market and
to complement our logistics network in the
Eastern Caribbean.

We have successfully incorporated our operating
model in all our acquired assets, respecting

the particularities and culture of every

country. We are also successfully increasing
manufacturing efficiency and competitiveness,
with sustainability and innovation as our
principal guides. We support the sharing of best
practices, which enriches Argos’ performance as
a multinational company.

of the total
asset value

The transaction

Management report

EXPANSION AND CONSOLIDATION



I3 Operational results

During this year, consolidated,

we delivered 14.3 million tons of
cement and 11.5 million cubic
meters of ready mixed concrete.

This represents a 14 percent and

4 percent growth, respectively,
compared to the previous year. This is
the result of the growing performance
in most markets, and the successful
execution of our commercial and
competitive strategies.

Revenue
COP trillion
2015 ) w79
Variation
36% 2014 |p 5.8
Ebitda
COP trillion
2015 ) w152
Variation
57% 2014 ) [ 0.97
Net income
Billions
2015 ) mm 491
Variation
81% 2014 | [ 272

Cement sales
Millions of tons

2015 ) s 143
Variation
14% 2014 ) [ 126

Exportations included

Ready mix sales
Millions of cubic meters

2015 ) w115
) I 111

Variation
4% 2014

The figures of the management of 2014 and 2015
are approved according to IFRS rules.

[ OPERATIONAL RESULTS

_ Integrated report 2015

[T [EE720] Total income increased
40 percent to COP $7.9 trillion, while
the consolidated EBITDA reached
COP $1.5 trillion, which represents a
19 percent margin and a 57 percent
growth against 2014.

The volume sold and the generated
EBITDA are the highest in Argos
history. By the end of the year, the
operational gross profit was

COP $939,185 million, 55 percent higher
than 2014. At the financial year-end, the net

THE GENERATED EBITDA AND
THE VOLUME SOLD WERE THE
HIGHEST IN ARGOS HISTORY.

income increased 81 percent and closed
in COP $491,357 million. These also are
the highest results in Argos history.




Profitability and capital structure

We have a balanced capital structure that gives flexibility to support the
organization’s growth. By the end of the year, the value of Argos’ assets
was COP $17.4 trillion with an 18 percent growth compared to 2014.0n the
other hand, liabilities were COP $8.7 trillion, which represents 50 percent
of the total assets.

We designed and executed our debt strategy in such a way that we can
balance our foreign currencies, keeping the natural hedge between assets
and liabilities in the same currency (i.e. dollar assets that generate cash
flow in dollars, support dollar liabilities, and pesos assets to support pesos
liabilities). The financial debt in pesos and dollars stays balanced, and we
closed the year at $1.8 billion, of which 35.4 percent was in pesos and
64.6 percent in dollars, with annual average rates of 10 and 2.6 percent

respectively. In April, we renegotiated and modified a USD $600 million credit

agreement from February 2014 to manage efficiently our debt portfolio.
Such modifications represent a savings of USD $25 million and allowed us to
reduce the financial cost on about 65 basis points, optimizing the maturity
profile and increasing the credit terms.

The net debt (EBITDA + dividends) closed the year in 3.16 times.

Precio
copP

10,500 —
10,000 —
9,500 —
9,000 +
8,500 -
8,000 -

7,500 A

7,000

Debt profile Average annual cost
2.6% E.A.
23% 35%
9.9% E.A
Long-term usb
M Short-term B COP

Debt-service Coverage Ratio

Net Debt/(EBITDA +dividends): 3.16x
EBITDA/Financial Expenses: 4.97x
Net Debt/Equity: 60%

Financial Cycle: 40.9 days

19 profitability

4 and capital
structure

Puntos
COLCAP

r 1,600
+ 1,500
[~ 1,400
— 1,300
+ 1,200
+ 1,100
r 1,000

900

T T T T T T T T T T T
01/15  01/15  02/15  03/15  03/15  04/15  05/15  05/15  06/15  06/15  07/15  08/15

08/15

T T T T T T 800
09/15  10/15  10/15 1115  12/15 12/15

COLCAP CEMARGOS PFCEMARGOS
Evolution of shares e
High market volatility, both nationally and performance compared to the market, knowing
internationally, characterized 2015 due to the that the COLCAP rates ended the year with
continual collapse of oil prices, uncertainty due a 23.7 percent loss, against a 2.6 percent
to increased interest rates in the United States, decrease of our preferential share and a 4.7
the slowdown of economic growth in China and percent loss in our common shares.
the strong devaluation of the currencies in most
of the emerging countries. Our shares’ performance shows how the value

market recognizes the advantages of more

This global context affected the shares linked diversified incomes in markets with different PROFITABILITY

to the oil sector mostly and the price of most

AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

economic cycles. In 2015, 897 foreign funds kept

Colombian issuers. Argos' shares had a superior  an active share participation in the company.

Management report
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Business performance by region

Revenue
B> USD million
=
Variation
13% 2014
Ebitda
%
4, | UsD million
Variation
66% 2014
Cement sales
ﬂ Millions of tons
Variation
20% 2014
Ready mix sales
Millions of cubic meters
ou!
Variation
5% 2014
Texas
Arkansas
Mississippi
Alabama
Georgia
Florida

Management 2014 and 2015 figures
are harmornized with the IFRS.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
BY REGION

18
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1,244

1,097

110

67

3.4

2.8

7.4

71

Virginia
North Carolina
South Carolina

2015 was key in the consolidation
of the United States’ economy.
Improvements in multiple indexes
were achieved, which reflects

a region in the process

of strengthening.

For example, the unemployment
index was under 5 percent, after
being 9.3 percent five years

before. Likewise, the economy

had a growth of approximately 2.4
percent, according to the last report.
Construction is still one of the main
forces driving development, thanks to
the improvements in the residential
sector, which has been favored due
to the economic climate, employment
generation and migration. The
housing market is performing well
thanks to the stabilization within a
five-month period.

In this country, we managed to
increase cement sales by almost 20
percent, approximately five times
the projected market growth, which
increased 3.5 percent. Total revenue
of Argos in this region increased

Harlleyville Plant, United States Region

13 percent and closed at USD $1.2
billion. The obtained EBITDA was USD
$110 million, 66 percent higher

than the year before, due to the
volume of growth and a significant
improvement in the operational
efficiency of this region.

In 2015, close to USD $98 million
was invested to improve our assets
and optimize operational efficiency

in the country. Among the main
investments was the vertical mill

in our Harleyville Cement Plant,
mentioned earlier; the procurement
of 132 mixer trucks, increasing our
fleet to nearly 1,800 trucks; and the
incorporation of 100 new railway cars
for a total of 985. In the same line of
investment, significant improvements
and adjustments were made to our
ports and terminals to strengthen our
competitive position in the country
and, in turn, properly satisfy the
demand of the United States.

One of the milestones of this region
was resuming the cement imports
through our ports in Houston, Texas,



and Mobile, Alabama. We received 313,000
tons of product, allowing us to reinforce our
presence in the United States market.

In addition, in 2015, we generated significant
revenue derived from innovative products
and processes. These represented more than
16 percent of the regional total, significantly
highlighting the performance of our Value
Added and Specialty Products (VASP).

|

Employees at the Roberta Plant, United States Region

In 2016, we got a glimpse of a
positive outlook for this region due

to the favorable market conditions,
which was amplified by increased
GDP per capita after the stabilization
of the labor market. The expense
reconfiguration and construction
growth, both infrastructure and
housing, are also promising. We must
highlight the progress in the adoption
and implementation of the Fixing
America's Surface Transportation
(FAST) Act, which includes resources
of USD $305 trillion dedicated to the
modernization of the infrastructure
over the next five years.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
BY REGION
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The Colombian economy had a challenging
year due to the fall in the price of oil and

the fast devaluation of the dollar, which has
profoundly affected the structure of many
sectors, generating a new dynamic for the
national finances. The estimated growth of 3.1%
of the gross domestic product (GDP) stands

out among the countries of the region and,

with an estimated growth of 3.9%, the GDP of
construction projects reflects a positive time for
the sector. The unemployment rate was at 8.9
percent, staying at the lowest levels in recent
years. These fundamentals, as well as a clear
state investment in housing and infrastructure
programs, led the year to reflect remarkable
changes in the consumption of cement, which
surpassed 12.8 million tons for the first time,
with an increase of 6.9 percent.

We strengthened our competitive position,

and we exceeded 6 million tons sold, which
represents a variation close to twice the growth
of the market. At the close of the financial year,
the consolidated revenues of the region were
COP $3 trillion, which represents an increase of
26 percent in comparison to 2014. This result
generated an EBITDA of COP $878,448 million.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
BY REGION
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Revenue
= | COP trillion
S
2.98
Variation
19% 2014 2.51
Cement sales
ﬂ Millions of tons
6.2
Variation
13% 2014 55
Ready mix sales
Millions of cubic meters
’o‘
3.7
Variation
7% 2014 3.5
The figures of the management of 2014

and 2015 are certified according to IFRS rules.

We note that as a result of the
commercial strategy, there has been
a growth of 27 percent of sales
volume of bagged cement, driven
mainly by the North and the South
Zones with increases of 22 percent
and 35 percent, respectively.

During 2015, we developed more
than 5,100 customers in the
manufacturing business, for which we
installed eight new concrete plants.

In this operation, we invested USD
$11.8 million, and today, we have

59 concrete plants with an installed

Arroyohondo Concrete Plant, Colombia Region

Colombia ———

capacity of 3.6 million cubic meters,
682 mixers and 75 auto concrete
pumps, which makes us the main
producer in the country.

In the massive influx of business,
we attended to more than 6,800
customers, and we have reached
a customer satisfaction level of 87
percent, and a Top-of-Mind score




Mother Laura's Bridge, Medellin, Colombia

of 64 points among the master builders, which
shows that the consumer recognizes Argos

as the most relevant brand in the national
cement industry.

In addition, we achieved a presence in 951
municipalities, representing nearly 90 percent
of the territory, through a fleet of 2,305
vehicles and 36 distribution centers. During
2015, we also promoted the development our
Value Added Specialty Products portfolio and
new presentations of cement, which, today,
represent over 14 percent of the revenue from
this region. With the objective of facilitating
access to our products and improving
customer service, we are implementing an
Internet portal for the tracking of concrete
sales. In addition, 30 percent of the cement

orders were entered through our Web platform.

We made 12 percent of the total sales of
cement, beyond the level of 19 percent in
the second half of the year.

For 2016, the prospect is still positive. It

is expected that the 18 projects awarded
in the first two waves of the Fourth
Generation Program of Road Concessions
and the nine private initiative projects
approved by the government will move
throughout the year into its phase of
construction and allow for a gradual
increase in the demand for cement and
ready mix. This, combined with the multiple
housing programs, leads us to remain
optimistic about the pace of growth of the
sector, which has become the main source
of development for the country in the

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
BY REGION

current macroeconomic scenario.
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Caribbean and Central America Region

The Caribbean and Central America Revenue
Region achieved good results in USD million
their revenue, EBITDA margins, and : 2015 )» w540 Haiti
‘ariation .. .
; ; Dominican Republic
sales and production volumes, with 1% 2014 |) I 543 Puerto Rico

cement sales reaching 3.9 million
tons, which is a 21 percent increase.
At the same time, revenue reached
USD $540 million (which does not

Saint Thomas
Sint Maarten
Antigua
Curacao
Dominica

Cement sales
Millions of tons

2015 » EE 3.9
include export sales, which was a Vazri;};)n
- 2014 |p _ 2
total of 1.7 million tons). At the close 0 3 —
of the financial year, the EBITDA
remained stable. Ready mix sales <
Millions of cubic meters
2015 ) w426 Honduras
Variation Pan'ama
-17% 2014 ) [N 516 Suriname

French Guiana

management of 2015 are approved according to IFRS rules that correspond
to previous years, which are reported under the rules COLGAAP.

Panama continues
to be the country
with the highest
levels of growth in
Central America
and the Caribbean, strengthened by
direct foreign investment and large
infrastructure projects. In 2015,

the change of government led to a
temporary decline in the pursuit of
state projects, and therefore some
programs were delayed, which

led to a 7 percent decrease of the
market. However, at the end of the
year, important developments such
as building the second line of the
Panama Metro began, as well as the
construction of bridges, ports and
buildings connected to the expansion
of the Panama Canal. In 2015, we
expanded the portfolio of products

GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION offered to the Panamanian market,
e VI ARE PRESENTIN THE AT s Pegais, Pesaones
i INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS gapiso, Fegabloq
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE IN PANAMA. masonry mortar, which adds value
3 BUSINESS PERFORMANCE ] to our offering.
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Regarding Honduras,

the second most relevant

market of this region, we want

to emphasize the encouraging

dynamics of the construction
sector, thanks to the increase of the budgetary
execution for civil projects focused on airports
and vital infrastructure. These facts allowed
cement volumes to increase nearly 18 percent.
EBITDA increased 35 percent compared
to 2014.

In 2015, the Eastern
Caribbean was consolidated
to generate synergies and
create a greater presence

in the markets of this area,

Comayagua Cement Plant, Honduras, Caribbean and Central America Region

which include the operations of Suriname,
French Guiana, Puerto Rico, the terminals in
the Antilles, Curacao, and the other island
territories. As a whole, this region showed a
proper growth, marketing close to 600,000
tons of cement during 2015.

In the activities of international marketing and
logistics, we generated an EBITDA of

USD $16.9 million, consolidating a global
supply network, which serves 35 destinations
around the world, from 14 sources.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
BY REGION
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I3 Platforms to leverage growth

Innovation
We expanded our portfolio of Value Added Specialty

Products (VASP) thanks to our commitment to innovation,

which is at the center of our competitive strategy, and
the perpetual need to reinvent ourselves. Through
innovation, we can continue to improve our operational
efficiency and meet one goal of MEGA 2025, which is
to generate 10 percent of our total revenues from the
innovative processes and products.

15.4%

PERCENT OF ARGOS' TOTAL
REVENUE ( USD $440.4 MILLION)
CAME FROM INNOVATION.

We want to highlight the completion of the Argos Center
of Innovation, which was built to the highest standards
of quality and sustainability, as one of our great
achievements. With an investment of more than

COP $26 billion, this center allows for the joint work
between academics, companies and the value chain

of the construction sector for the development of new

products and the improvement of construction processes.

Equally, we are moving towards the consolidation of our
Ideaxion platform, which is an organizational tool focused
on innovative ideas. In 2015, it recorded 411 new ideas, of

which 61 were approved, 33 validated and 19 implemented.

IDEAXION
In 2015, we received

1,295 tiitiiteeeeireieeeee,

Active

Mo =
Y e =

33 19

Implemented
ideas

participation: 29%

Strategic priorities
Expansion 1
m and consolidation

Segmented
competitive strategy

Capital YA Innovation: new
m structure ! business platforms
el Supply chain 4 -
Rl . collence Gz Sustainability
L3 Organizational

o Tal
0 n
FW Y excellence iy t

Sustainability

Sustainability, as a strategic priority, is part of our core business
model. We are convinced that work should be completed in a full
and intentional way, that searches for a social, economic, and
environmental balance; work that allows us to contribute to a
better society, to strengthen the actual business over time and to
generate value for shareholders. For the third consecutive year, we
were included in the Dow Jones Sustainability World Index, and,

in comparison with other companies in the industry, we received
outstanding qualifications in the different evaluated areas. In
addition and in contrast with other players in the industry, we were
recognized with the silver medal in the RobecoSAM Sustainability
Yearbook at a global level.

CURRENTLY, ARGOS IS THE SECOND
MOST SUSTAINABLE CEMENT COMPANY
IN THE WORLD, ACCORDING TO THE DOW
JONES SUSTAINABILITY WORLD INDEX.

In addition, our actions to alleviate the effects of climate change
have placed us on the Climate Disclosure Leadership Index (CDLI)
ranking for Latin America and of the Carbon Disclosure Project
(CDP). We have active participation in The Cement Sustainability
Initiative (CSI) of the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development (WBCSD). Thanks to our management in reducing the
emissions of COQ, we were spokespeople for the cement industry by
showing advances in cleaner technology and innovation initiatives
at the last meeting of the Summit on Climate Change of the United
Nations COP21, held in Paris, France, in December 2015.

GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION
EXPANSION AND CONSOLIDATION

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Today, Argos is
part of the select

PROFITABILITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

group that makes
up 10 percent of

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
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enterprises with
the best performance in

2 PLATFORMS
TO LEVERAGE GROWTH

terms of sustainability at
the global level.
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In this index, we earned the best score of

the industry in relevant economic issues

such as transparency, business conduct and

compliance, risk management, and supply

chain. We also received the best score of the
industry on social issues, such as development of human

capital and social reporting. In environmental matters,
we had the highest score in water and biodiversity.



Human talent

We want to attract, retain and develop the best
human resources, and we work continuously

on strengthening the satisfaction of employees
and our corporate culture, based on seven
pillars: leadership, transcending results,
respect, group achievement, learning, sense of
purpose and flexibility, which allow us to unite
around common values and objectives. We are
the first Colombian company to achieve the seal
of the Management System of Gender Equality,
“EQUIPARES”, granted by the United Nations
Development Programme (UNDP) and the
Ministry of Labor, in which we placed in

Level Il - Silver. This recognizes our social
innovation and equal opportunities for men and
women.

WE WERE THE FIRST COMPANY IN
COLOMBIA TO RECEIVE THE SEAL
OF GENDER EQUALITY “EQUIPARES".

We maintain our commitment to promote a
pleasant working environment. Argos won
fourth place among the “Best Companies to
Work For” in Colombia by the Great Place to
Work Institute. We maintain respectful relations
with our employees in all our regions.

Aware that security is one of the most important
challenges for our industry, and under the
premise "Not one less in our team" of the program
Yo Prometo (I Promise), we firmly continue
working to achieve the highest international
standards of industrial safety and occupational
health. The actions that took place during 2015
led us to achieve significant reductions in the
accident rates of workers in the three regions in
which we operate, with prevalence rates of 2.11
and severity rates of 36.59, which represent a
substantial reduction compared to previous years.
However, we are aware that we still have major
challenges and opportunities to improve.

Considering that changes in culture are the

result of a constant and long-term effort, we

have established plans and goals of continuous
improvement for the next five years, which we hope
will position us as one of the leading companies in
terms of safety in our industry by 2020.

Support that generates confidence

In October 2015, the Corporate Reputation Business Monitor, Merco,
once again ranked us as the cement company with the best reputation in
Colombia. They also ranked us in ninth place among all companies in the
country. We want to be seen as a strategic ally that the market perceives
as sustainable, responsible and

possessing high standards of 2015 MARKED A
corporate governance that generate ~ MILESTONE IN THE
trust and value to investors. CONSOLIDATION STRATEGY

THAT LED US TO BECOME A
We received the IR Seal from the MULTINATIONAL COMPANY
Colombia Stock Exchange. We were ~ OF COLOMEIAN ORIGIN,
recognized as the first Colombian WITH GREAT SIGNIFICANCE

company to be catalogued as IN THE NORTH AMERICAN
“Known and Recurring Sender,” MARKET.

a seal that the Financial S
Superintendence of Colombia gave

us due to our high level of integrity, GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION
the confidence that we inspire to the EXPANSION AND CONSOLIDATION
public securities market and best OPERATIONAL RESULTS

PROFITABILITY
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

practices of information we provide
to shareholders. This allows us to

access the capital market when the BY REGION
needs of the company warrant it. 2 PLATFORMS
TO LEVERAGE GROWTH
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In conclusion

In 2015, we completed a decade of major changes and
achievements that allow us to strengthen our competitive
position. This highlights a balanced, flexible and efficient capital
structure that can continue with the process of expansion and
consolidation in the American continent. We are aware of the
dramatic changes that are presented in international markets
and the advisable prudence in the management of growth and
exposure of the company. Timely decisions on the diversification
of markets, the ongoing investment in efficiency, capable and
motivated human talent, and recognizing the needs to innovate
and reinvent, prepares us to better address the challenges of

the future that are proposed by an increasingly dynamic and
competitive market.

We must thank the shareholders for their confidence and
continued support to the organization, our employees and
suppliers for their honest and constructive contributions that
ensure high standards of productivity, and our customers for
their preference and loyalty.

We see a promising future that reflects the efforts of thousands
of people with the same vision: to be a Green Light for the future.

Legal affairs

We report that in 2015, there were
no important legal affairs affecting
partners or managers.

The detail of the operations carried
out with associates are shown

in notes No. 37 and 41 to the
separate financial statements and
reports, respectively.

The special report referred to
in Article 29 of the Law 222, 1995
is on the Web page for investors

www.argos.co/ir

The summary of the operations
referred to in the thirteenth
paragraph of the Article 446 of the
Code of Commerce can be read in
the brochure, and the detail of each
of these operations can also be
found on the Web page for investors

WWW.argos.co/ir

This document was made partially
available to the shareholders by

the practicing law of the right of
inspection. The company has strictly
complied with the rules that govern
concerning intellectual property and
copyright, for which it has designed
and observed the policies and

the necessary controls to ensure
compliance and the support that gives
account of this application are kept.

Also, the company did not interfere
with the free movement of the
invoices issued by the vendors

or suppliers.

The effectiveness of the established
controls in the company and the
existing systems have been verified
and satisfactorily evaluated for

the purpose of the disclosure and
control of the financial information,
finding that they function properly.

Since January 2015, we have
begun the implementation of the
changes made to the Auto Control
System and Risk Management
Money Laundering and Terrorism
Financing (or SAGRLAFT, its Spanish
acronym), contained in the manual
adopted by the board of directors
in December 2014. As part of this
implementation, collaborators

and suppliers were trained. They

of the associated controls in the
different processes. The judicial
and administrative processes and
the whole juridical situation of the
company have developed normally
without faults or relevant events.

Events after the end of 2015: On
January 25, 2016, an extraordinary
meeting of shareholders was held,
where the statutory reform for

the modification of article 4 was
approved in order to capitalize
occasional reserves for up to

six hundred fifteen billion pesos
($615,000,000,000), through

the mechanism of increasing the
nominal value of the share. With this
approval, the nominal value of the
share went from six pesos ($6) to
four hundred sixteen pesos ($416).

Corporate

Governance
Report

PLATFORMS also validated the effectiveness

TO LEVERAGE GROWTH
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INNOVATION

MEANS HAVING A
DIFFERENT PERSPECTIVE

GOVERNANCE,
ETHICS, AND
TRANSPARENCY




O Governance framework

At Argos, we strongly believe that
corporate governance is a daily
exercise that takes place in the
relationship with shareholders,
employees, contractors, suppliers,
communities and society. Our
principles, governance structure,
and our polices with stakeholders
are based on transparency,
respect and equality.

Integrity is the guiding principle

of all the management bodies

of our company. We are committed
to providing transparent, equitable,
timely and regulated information
that the interest groups require

for their decision-making.

We have a Code of Good Governance
that establishes clear guidelines that
are communicated as a permanent
guide for the General Assembly

of Shareholders, the board of
directors and employees. The
standards therein exceed the minimal
regulation required in Colombia. They
are in line with best practices and
within the national and international
recommendations about good
governance from the Codigo Pais

in Colombia, the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE), The Latin American
Companies Circle, the Organization
for Economic Co-operation

and Development (OECD) and

the Dow Jones Sustainability Index,
among others.

In addition, in 2015, we adopted
a series of changes in order

to implement various actions
recommended by the Financial

d GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
3 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Superintendence in the Country Code that
took effect in January of 2016.

As a result, the statutory reform of March
2015 adopted new rules that are related,
among others, with the convening of
meetings of the General Assembly of
Shareholders, the election of the board of
directors and the functions of the president
of the board and of the support committees
to the executive board.

Specifically, a minimum deadline of 30
calendar days was established to call the
regular meetings of the General Assembly
of Shareholders and 15 business days for
the remaining cases. In addition, there
were channels for shareholders to propose
matters for the agenda and changes in the

O Board of directors

actions negotiation by the administrators
and employees. These will only be
permitted subject to the approval of the
board of directors and in periods of time
where it can be ensured that all of the
market has the same information (i.e., 15
days after the revelation of the quarterly
results to the public securities market). It
also established a minimum duration of
three years for such investments.

Within the new challenges of our
management in 2016, we will make
progress in the construction of policies
that complement our implementation
plan through some of the measures
contained in the Cédigo Pais, as well as
the highest industry standards in the field
of corporate governance.

Seven non-executive members compose our board of directors. They all have skills
and experience related to economic, environmental and/or social issues, and none
of the members are shareholders of an important supplier or customer. The minimum
required attendance to the board of directors sessions is 90 percent and the average

during 2015 was 91.43 percent.
(G4-38)|

José Alberto

Claudia Beatriz

Esteban

Vélez Cadavid Betancourt Azcarate | Piedrahita Uribe
Grupo Argos S. A. Amalfi S. A. Camara de Comercio de Cali
President Chief Executive Officer President

Patrimonial Independent Independent

Board Committee
Appointments and remuneration

Number of other boards of
directors to which he belongs:

4 3

Boards of directors he sits on:
Cementos Argos S. A.
Grupo Suramericana S. A.

Attended 14/15

board meetings

Board committee
Finance and audit

Number of other boards of
directors to which she belongs:

Boards of directors she sits on:
Cementos Argos S. A.
Gases de Occidente

Bancolombia S. A. Proenergia
Situm S. A Promigas S. A.
Celsia S. A.

Attended 15/15
board meetings

Board committee
Finance and audit

Number of other boards of
directors to which he belongs:

4

Boards of directors he sits on:
Cementos Argos S. A.

Amalfi S. A.

Metrocali

Emcali

Confecamaras (Red de
Camaras de Comercio)

Attended 14/15
board meetings




The members of the board of directors were elected in March 2012 and reelected during the General Assembly of Shareholders meeting in March
2014, except for Claudia Beatriz Betancourt Azcarate, who was elected as an independent member in 2009.

Camilo José

Abello Vives

Grupo Argos S. A.

V.P. of Corporate Affairs
Patrimonial

Board Committee
Sustainability

and corporate governance

Number of other board of
directors to which he belongs:

1

Boards of directors he sits on:
Cementos Argos S. A.
Situm S. A.

Attended 12/15
board meetings

Carlos Gustavo
Arrieta Padilla
Arrieta, Mantilla y Asociados
Partner

Independent

Board Committee
Appointments

and remuneration

Number of other board of
directors to which he belongs:

3

Boards of directors he sits on:
Cementos Argos S. A.

Mapfre Seguros S. A.

Fiducor S. A.

Reficar S. A.

Attended 13/15
board meetings

Cecilia Rodriguez
Gonzalez
Corporacion Bioparque
President

Independent

Board Committee
Sustainability

and corporate governance

Number of other board of

directors to which she belongs:

2

Boards of directors she sits on:

Cementos Argos S. A.
Bioparque Proyectos S. A. S.
Fundacion Botanica y
Zooloégica de Barranquilla

Attended 14/15
board meetings

Leon E. Teicher
Grauman

Independent

Board Committee
Finance and audit

Number of other board of
directors to which he belongs:

2

Boards of directors he sits on:
Cementos Argos S. A.

Xeon Colombia Ltda.
Continental Gold (Canada)

Attended 14/15
board meetings
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Process to communicate
sustainability issues to
the board of directors

They are communicated through the
agenda submitted to the board of
directors, which is addressed during

the meeting following presentations to
encourage the discussion of the topics and
informed decision making by the members
of the board of directors. In case of an
urgent situation that is not included in

the meeting agenda, a teleconference is
arranged to discuss the issue and to make
decisions that may be applicable.

(G4-50)

Sustainability
issues

IN 2015, WE RENEWED
THE COMPENSATION AND
SUCCESSION POLICY.

Nomination, election and compensation

XXM The General Shareholder's Meeting can elect and remove the board of directors
members and the statutory auditor, as well as his substitute. In this statutory reform
submitted to the General Shareholders Meeting of 2015, the elaboration of the
remuneration policy and succession of the board of director was approved. This reform
must include all of the components in compensation to be taken into account when
determining the payment of the board of directors members, corresponding with their
dedication and responsibility. It also requires reviewing functional performance, time and
dedication necessary for the board members to adequately perform their obligations.

Prevention and management of potential conflicts of interest

The following are among the responsibilities
of the board of directors regarding

the conflicts of interest in our new Code

of Good Governance:

a. To refrain from engaging directly or by
proxy, in personal or third parties’ interest,
in activities involving competition with the
company or in acts for which conflict of
interest exists.

b. To adequately disclose conflicts of interest
with the company. To be very attentive and
cautious about the way of handling any
of these events, describing the situation
during formal session of the board of

3 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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directors, supplying documentary evidence about the
conflict and refraining from voting on this issue. To this
end, the members shall report to the board about the
direct or indirect relationships they have among them,
with the company, suppliers, customers or any other
stakeholder that might give rise to conflict of interest
situations or influence their opinion or vote.

The members of the board of directors, through

the letters of acceptance to their positions, should
disclose the situations that might cause conflict with
the company. Likewise, they shall fill the statement of
potential conflicts of interest form every year.

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee’s new role is
to report to the board of directors about the conflict
of interest situations it may be aware of, in which

a significant shareholder, members of the board of
directors and senior management may be involved,
by making the necessary proposals to manage the
situation.

The Board of Directors
Compensation

The General Assembly of Shareholders
shall determine the board of directors
compensation, taking into account its
structure, duties and responsibilities for
the compensation of its members, as
well as the personal and professional
qualities of its members and the time
they will dedicate to their activity and
experience. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the assembly approved a statutory
reform in March 2015 to promote greater
transparency and follow better corporate
governance practices, which among others,
gave powers to the board of directors to
write its Compensation and Succession
Policy, which shall be submitted for the
assembly’s approval and shall include

all the compensation components that
need to be considered when defining the
remuneration of the board of directors’
members and accordingly with their
dedication and responsibility. Likewise,
those members of the board of directors
who have greater knowledge about the
company’s needs shall propose to the
assembly the Succession Policy of the
board of directors.

Fixed compensation 2015

COP 4,500,000 monthly for members

of the board of directors

Variable compensation 2015

In addition to the above, COP 6,000,000
monthly for being part of the board

of directors committees (it does not
apply to members of Grupo Argos).




Likewise, new functions were assigned to the board of
directors and their support committees. These are related to
the control architecture of the organization, with the goal of:

Promoting a culture of risk management and control
that can reach the entire organization.

Defining the roles and responsibilities around risk
management, internal control and evaluation, with
clearly defined reporting lines.

Considering the risks arising from the strategic
definition of the society and of the business processes
to perform inappropriate monitoring, evaluation and
management thereof.

Currently, advances are being made in the construction

of other policies related to the disclosure of information

and the relationship with the matrix, complementing our
deployment plan.

Some of the practices included in our Code of Good
Governance in 2015 were:
The retirement of the company’s president
at 62 years old.
The establishment of the maximum age
of 72 to be members of the board of directors.
The inclusion of the classification of the members
of the board of directors in executives, independent
and patrimonial

THE GOOD PRACTICES OF
THE CODIGO PAIS INSPIRED
NEW DYNAMICS IN OUR CODE
OF GOOD GOVERNANCE.

Training and assessment

(G4-43)| In search of giving the board of directors
appropriate feedback to enhance and evaluate their
performance, we have changed the regularity of the
annual assessments that used to be done in mid-to-late
board period. There will now be annual evaluations
that will be alternated yearly between external
assessments and self-assessment.

In 2015, the self-assessment process began in order
to allow us to identify further actions for improvement.

The processes of external assessment and
self-assessment are made with an external consultant

to review and to structure the aspects taken into account
in the board of directors’ evaluation and the report made

phyid AL W R )

Jorge Mario Velasquez, president of Cementos Argos

available to its members individually. This is with the purpose of
providing a more thorough analysis of their performance according
to the strategic goals of the company and the sector we belong to.
The assessment parameters will be applied in the next external
assessment of 2017.

Mandatory training the board of directors includes every aspect
related to the Code of Conduct and Transparency and the Laundering
Asset Risk Management and Terrorism Financing System (SAGRLAFT).
This has the purpose of ensuring the integrity of all employees and
administrators and, thus, prevents

any conduct contradictory to the

policies of the company. [ BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Board committees

In accordance with the
implementation plan of some of

the measures of the Cédigo Pais,
some functions have been added

to the support committees of the
board of directors to strengthen

the management structure of the
company, with a greater emphasis on
strategic management, identification
and management of risks.

In addition to designing roles, policies
and standards for the recruitment,
rewards and development of
managerial staff, the Appointments
and Remuneration Committee

will have a more active role in the
analysis of the performance of the
senior management, as well as the
definition of the rewards policy and
succession of the board of directors.

Furthermore, some adjustments
were included to emphasize the
functions of the Sustainability and
Corporate Governance Committee in
the monitoring of compliance with
the Codes of Conduct and Good
Governance within the board.

Additionally,
the Audit and Finance Committee
changed its name, scope and
functions in the statutes. Now, it is

Board committees
and environmental,

(G4-42)

social and
economic
responsibilities.
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called the Audit, Finance and Risk
Committee to reflect its functions

in the approval of guidelines for

the implementation of the Integral
Management of Risks System (SGIR),
monitoring the evolution of the risk
profile and the adoption of strategies
for mitigating the risks that concern
it. Also, an improved definition of
their functions ensures compliance
with the internal control policies and
decision-making in terms of efficiency
and effectiveness of the operations
and the fulfillment of the goals and
strategies of the company.

All of the aforementioned changes
have been made in accordance
with a detailed analysis of the
implementation of the new
measures of the Codigo Pais of
Colombia and the best corporate
governance practices of the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE), The
Latin American Companies Circle
and the Organization for Economic
Cooperation and Development
(OECD), among others, in the interests
of providing greater transparency in
the market and to investors.
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Board of directors at the Harleyville Cement Plant, the United States Region

OUR TRANSPARENCY AND
COMPLIANCE MADE US WORTHY,
ONCE MORE, OF THE SEAL OF

THE COLOMBIAN STOCK EXCHANGE,
AND WE WERE THE FIRST
COLOMBIAN ENTERPRISE TO BE
CLASSIFIED AS A KNOWN AND
RECURRING ISSUER BY THE
FINANCIAL SUPERINTENDENCE.

In 2015, we worked on the organizational
architecture consolidation that was modified in
2014. This was made to create new and improved
opportunities of professional development for our
employees, to assist the expansion process and
to have a better position that allows us to achieve
the defined strategic priorities.

Our new areas of business, design and services
met their purposes in pursuit of better strategies,
processes and offers to guarantee growing
opportunities. At the same time, our vice
president of sustainability has successfully led
strategies and policies, while the finance and
shared services and talent and architecture

vice presidencies have seen the benefits of

its restructuring in economies of scale and
operational efficiencies.




O Governance structure

Board of directors
7 members - 5 independent
Board of Directors President
JOSE ALBERTO VELEZ

Audit, Finance and Risks Committee
3 members

Appointments and Remunerations Committee
2 members

Sustainability and Corporate Governance Committee

2 members

Presidency
President of Cementos Argos
JORGE MARIO VELASQUEZ

Investor Relations Management
and Assistance to Presidency

Audit Management

Risks Management

Steering Committee

X

l

VICE PRESIDENT
of Sustainability

VICE PRESIDENT
of Colombia Region
TOMAS RESTREPO

VICE PRESIDENT

of Finance and

Shared Services

CARLOS HORACIO YUSTY

VICE PRESIDENT

of Legal and
Institutional Affairs
JUAN LUIS MUNERA

Governance and
Hiring Committee

Capex and Shared Services
Center Committee

3 Ethics and transparency

(64-56) | RXED At Argos, integrity is the guiding
principle of our work in harmony with our corporate
Cultural Pillars: leadership, collective achievement,
sense of purpose, respect, flexibility, learning and
transcending results. We believe that ethical behavior
should be reflected in the decisions of the daily life of all
stakeholders. This is a shared corporate value in all the
regions in which we operate.

We have designed and disseminated guides that detail
the criteria of our employees and other interest groups
like the Code of Business Conduct, the Anti-fraud and
Corruption Policy, the Manual Against Money Laundering

MARIA ISABEL ECHEVERRI

VICE PRESIDENT
of Caribbean and Central
America Region

J

VICE PRESIDENT
of USA Region
ERIC FLESCH

MAURICIO OSSA

VICE PRESIDENT

of Talent and
Organizational Architecture
JORGE IGNACIO ACEVEDO

Talent Committee

VICE PRESIDENT
of Innovation
CAMILO RESTREPO

Technical
VICE PRESIDENT
VICTOR LIZARRALDE

Innovation Committee ~ Energy Committee

Supporting Committees

In 2015, we launched the course “Our Corporate Governance”
on our e-learning platform, EDUCA, allowing us to educate our
employees in ethical principles and governance. The course was
taken by 2,904 employees in the first six months.

Last year, the board members from our subsidiaries were also
trained, and we presented the Anti-corruption Policy and other
related norms like the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), a
transnational anti-corruption law from the United States, to the
president and vice presidents.

and Financing of Terrorism, and the gender equity policies

on sustainability, Human Rights and talent management.

J GOVERNANCE
3 ETHICS AND TRANSPARENCY

Governance, ethics and transparency _



Among other training initiatives, Operations assessed in terms of corruption risks

we disseminated the Code of Business
Conduct to 6,000 people. Furthermore, Total number and percentage Significant corruption risks identified through
of assessed operations the risks assessments.
B Failure to comply with procurement
and contracting procedures
B Lack of monitoring to the suppliers’ performance

Sustainability Week took place in the
three regions. This event had a theme
of strategic risk management of fraud,

Total ; ; .
. . . and compliance with legal requirements
corruption, and money launderin : ) A
‘p ] y } g 38 4(y operations: 13 B Lack of the purchasing department participation
and finanacing of terrorism, focusing - 0 Assessed in the allocation of some contracts

Total operations, operations: 5

on the topic of corruption between B Direct agreements between employees
and suppliers and customers

employees, communities and local . .
B Lack of duties segregation

authorities. A total of 3,077 people
were in attendance.

X Training on the organization’s
policies and procedures to fight against
fraud, corruption, asset laundering

and terrorism financing

6,606
5,983
438
10 175
Sustainability Week, Dominican Republic, Caribbean and Central America Region F_’reSiden.tand Employees Suppliers Communities TOTAL
vice presidents

The Code of Business Conduct is in line with the local norms and is consistent Our management approach
with other international guidelines like the Global Compact, which allows us to be ~ We have a structure in which several
comply with best practices. employees from different positions have

cross-functional roles and belong to different
We adamantly reject any act that is removed from the principles of responsibility, committees to ensure a transparent
transparency and honesty. In the case of any of these acts becoming present, we  and ethical environment under the
manage them with the due process and zero tolerance. coordination of the Officer of Conduct.

Breaches to the code result in the implementation of consequences established On the board of directors, the Audit, Finance and
in the Rules of Procedure of Work and/or in the local labor legislation and can Risks Committee monitors issues of regulatory
lead to sanctions or even the termination of the contract. compliance, fraud, corruption, money laundering
and the financing of terrorism, as well as the
management of our Transparency Hotline.
The Sustainability and Corporate Governance
Committee verifies compliance with the Code of
Business Conduct, the Code of Good Governance
Group Leadership Sense Transcending and its associated policies, seeking the adoption
achievement of purpose resuits and promotion of the highest standards. The
committees of support to the board of directors
reinforced their functions in the new Code of Good
Governance approved in December 2015, seeking

to strengthen the company's control architecture.
[ ETHICS AND TRANSPARENCY Respect Learning Flexibility

m Integrated report 2015



The vice presidents of legal and Ethics and transparency structure
institutional matters, and talent and

organizational architecture comprise
& P Audit, Finance and

Board of Directors Sustainability and Corporate

the Governance Committee, which Risk Committee Governance Committee
provides support to the Steering

Committee. This is the authoritative Vice President of Legal and

body for the administration of the Institutional Affairs

Vice President of Talent and Governance Committee
) o ) Organizational Architecture
provides general guidelines in the Vice Presidents of the Regions

matters of transparency and conduct,

Code of Business Conduct, which

and generally outlines the type of

measures to be taken depending |

on the infractions. Operating Committee of Conduct

The Operating Committee of Conduct l l . J

receives organizational reports and Colombia United States Caribbean and
Central America

represents all regional areas with ’ [

members that serve as research

officers in different categories such Research Officers

as labor relations, fraud, corruption,

and money laundering and financing and are coordinated by means of the Officer of functions, the ability to search and
of terrorism; communities, asset Conduct, who is a high-level executive. report behaviors that contradict
protection, and conflicts of interest. our policy of good governance and
The actions of these partners are We are part of the Central Committee of business conduct,
transversal to the entire organization Conduct that Grupo Argos leads and in which as well as any other company policy
the strategies, experiences and good practices or internal or external norm
align between the enterprises of the group. of the company.
IN 2015, WE PROVIDED
TRAINING ON [2ED Another management tool is the To ensure that our work has
TRANSPARENCY ISSUES Transparency Hotline, which is a communication a process of constant improvement,
TO 6,606 PEOPLE. channel for various stakeholders. It allows this year we hired an independent
S anonymous reporting and has, among its third party that conducted an audit

to the Code of Business Conduct.
This work resulted in new challenges
for our management.

It is important to highlight that,
taking into account international best
practices, the transparency

and conduct issues focused mainly
on the Compliance Management

in 2015. This provides independence
when managing related risks and
creates synergies that add value

to other areas.

I ETHICS AND TRANSPARENCY

General Shareholders Meeting 2015, Barranquilla, Colombia
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Environmental

complaints [ZEEEN

Number of complaints 15
submitted in Colombia

Number 9
of complaints filed

Number 7
of complaints resolved

Number

of complaints submitted 18

in Central America and
the Caribbean Region

Number 3
of complaints filed

Number 15
of complaints resolved

Employees at the Honduras offices, Caribbean and Central America Region

Community

complaints

Number of complaints Transparency

received during the 65 Hotline Operation

reporting period Futu re

Number of complaints Receipt of calls to the external .
resolved during the 38 call center (iocated in Medellin) pe rspectlve

reporting period Colombia: 018000 522021 B Largo-scale

Number of complaints The United States: +1 (888) 567 6629 implementation of the

resolved during the reporting 3 Panama: 01100800 157 1011 compliance program
period, which were received L . B Expanding the coverage
in a period prior to the report Dominican Republic: 1800 148 5009 of the training to other
’ Honduras: 800 27 99378 interest groups outside
Number of complaints i i of Colombia, including
addressed and solved 41 You must dial from a landline phone. _
. . . the suppliers for
during the reporting period the other regions
Corruption B Structuring a plan of
complaints (XS] Or send an email to training and disser.nination
lintransparencia@argos.com.co D (it G I ese
Total number 29 Conduct, ensuring that
of complaints submitted the message reaches
Number 29 . . falllreglonal areas and
of complaints resolved An independent operator receives 'sf"‘ 2l “‘*"I'a"g“ages
the call or e-mail (spanish or English) of our employees
Disciplinary actions: 3 B Auditing our Transparency
Hotline to improve
Dismissals 5 the effectiveness
N feedback and complaint
Complaints on and sends the form to the officers of submissions
labor practices T3] research according to the category.
Number 43
of complaints submitted
Number 43 The most relevant cases are
of complaints resolved reviewed by the Operating

Committee of Conduct, led
by the Officer of Conduct.

The Committee of Governance
and Hiring reviews the cases.

3 ETHICS AND TRANSPARENCY
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'-INNOVATION IS

TOBELIEVEIN .
- THE DIFFERENCE

SUSTAINABILITY,
MATERIALITY
AND RISKS




d Sustainability
strategy

To Argos, sustainability is a fundamental part of our
business vision. That is why it is one of our eight
strategic priorities. This approach ensures durability
over time and our competitive position in a market
that is becoming more dynamic, producing not only
products and services that add value over time, but
a way of operating in the international context with a
consistent model of sustainable development.

As mentioned earlier, our strategy of sustainability

is the product of a permanent analysis of strategic
priorities, risk management, capitalizing on innovative
business opportunities and adhering to our
commitment to international sustainability initiatives.
Thus, our Sustainability Policy becomes outline for this
purpose and establishes the value promised to our
stakeholders.

To prioritize and focus our initiatives, we conduct

an analysis every two years. This process allows

us to identify the most relevant social, economic

and environmental aspects that have the potential

of positively or negatively affecting the interests of
the company, and/or the creation of value for our
shareholders and other interest groups. With the goal
of ensuring that our sustainability strategy results in
specific actions, we define targets and indicators for
each one of the material aspects, which also allow us
to assess our performance.

The 2015 Integrated Report, available at
www.reporteintegradoargos.co, describes how,

through sustainable management, we added value
to our products and services by publicizing detailed
measurements of our performance, and the future
plans correlating with these aspects.

SCAN THE CODE

Ry

;F"“L :%
4 +t
I SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY i @' o

o

W SPET
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Sustainability strategy

Adhesions and
commitments

Strategic
priorities

Sustainability Policy

We seek the sustainability of our operations through the
balance betweenrevenue generation, social improvements
and the reduction of environmental impacts. This is possible
through positive relationships with stakeholders, and the
principles of good governance and the Global Compact.

Our value propositions

]
3

Employees Communities

‘Workd Business Counal for Sustainable Developeent

e
\{e}f Cement Sustainability Initiative

Promote the development,
safety and well-being of our
employees in a global culture
of innovation, teamwork,
respect and environmental
awareness

Customers

Be the best business partner to
our customers by providing quality
products and services

in a responsible value chain

Suppliers

and Contractors
Have harmonious and
equitable relations that honor
responsible labor, social

and environmental practices

Adhesion to sustainability initiatives

INCDP

PRV BUSTARNERLE DTCRGHITE

ALG
o
z

o
" ‘This is our Communication on Progress
enting the principles of the

The CEO Water Mandate @) | =

OMMUNICATION ON ‘We welcome feedback on its contents.
PROGRESS

Promote neighborly relations
with the communities

of influence and support
social development

Shareholders

Be transparent in the
management of information
and seek the greatest
generation of value

Environment

Develop productive activities
in a responsible way,
decreasing or offsetting

the environmental impacts

Authorities

Comply with the law and
maintain good relations with
different governing bodies.

Sign the Call to Action

10 e

BUSIN
PEAC




OUR MATERIALITY
ANALYSIS EVOLVES ALONG
WITH THE NEEDS OF OUR
STAKEHOLDERS AND
TRENDS IN THE INDUSTRY.

SCAN THE CODE

(G4-16)

Associations to which
the organization
=¥ belongs

I Materiality analysis Material aspects
In 2015, we conducted a new analysis of material matters through a process @ innovation
of identification, prioritization and validation of the most relevant issues in social, © Energy and co-processing

© Profitability
and equity structure
o Sustainable construction
and materials
Stages e Supplier management
e Carbon emissions
0 Expansion and consolidation
D Identification D Prioritization » Validation O water
e Occupational health and safety
@ Talent management
@ Relationship with customers
@ Compliance
@ Community engagement
@ Biodiversity
@ Other emissions

environmental and economic matters, according to our risks, compromises and sustainability
initiatives, and our MEGA and industry trends.

100

920

very relevant

N
7

8o Other relevant aspects

16 Operation models
standardization

17 Human rights

18 Competition

19 Fight against fraud,
corruption, money
laundering and
terrorism financing

20 Waste management

21 Economic impact

22 Product safety and quality

23 Political contributions

70

60

50

40

s (y)

30

@ Economic

@ social

@ Environmental

20

10

I3 SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Relevance for our stakehol

1 1 1 1 1 1
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 RISK MANAGEMENT

Relevance for Argos, the industry, and international initiatives (x) ——>
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Governance of sustainability

Sustainability management stems from
senior management’s commitment to this strategic priority. As
such, the Sustainability and Corporate Governance Committee of
the board of directors meets to guide and monitor strategies and
social, economic, and environmental good practices.

Furthermore, the creation of the vice presidency of sustainability
at the end of 2014 has strengthened the inclusion of
sustainability as a basis for decision making in the Steering
Committee, thereby ensuring that this vision is transverse to all
areas of the company, whether in design, business or services.

This vice presidency connects the environmental management,
the management of industrial safety and occupational health, the
community relations and the sustainability direction.

In the | Promise (Yo Prometo) Project framework, the Industrial
Safety and Occupational Health Management, with the guidance
of DuPont, has led the implementation of an internal structure
headed by the Occupational Health and Central Committee, in
which the president and all nine vice presidents are involved.
The Industrial Safety and Occupational Health Management

is supported by different subcommittees comprised of people
responsible for the different areas of the company who will lead
the implementation of strategies.

Aimed at ensuring the compliance with Sustainability Policy
guidelines, the Environmental Management created a Climate
Change Division that takes responsibility for sustainable
construction. For this process to be sustainable in 2016,

the Industrial Safety and Occupational Health Management

I SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Board of Directors

Steering Committee

Sustainability and Corporate
Governance Committee

Sustainability
Vice Presidency

Sustainability
Direction

Sustainability

[ | Board

f

|

Sustainability

Sustainability

Sustainability

link link link
Colombia Region Caribbean United States
and Central Region
America Region
[ ] @ @
Ad Ad Ad
Sustainability Sustainability Sustainability
Board Board Board
Colombia Region Caribbean United States
and Central Region (G4-37)

America Region

and the Relations with the Community Division will
expand its internal structures to respond to the | Promise
Project-related challenges and the measurement of the
socio-economic footprint and corporate volunteering
respectively. Likewise, we will create two independent
divisions to strengthen the information management and
sustainability metrics, as well as the sustainability and
good practices culture, which are led currently by the
Sustainability Division.

The Sustainability Board continues to be a strategic space
for sustainability management because it favors the analysis
and the coordinated management of relevant matters, thus
achieving a commitment and active participation of the
different areas in all regions of the company.

In 2015, we established the regional committee in the
United States and, together with the vice president

of sustainability, we created an actionable plan,

with the guidance of a consulting firm, to strengthen
communication and create greater alignment to the
sustainability strategy of the company.



Strengthening of productive units in Boyaca, Colombia

Our stakeholders

(G4-24)|
Customers Employees

The Code of Good Governance outlines the
beneficial relationship with our stakeholders
as a guideline for corporate conduct and
identifies the recognition and respect of their
rights, the promotion of their participation

in the creation of value, transparency

and the pursuit for mutual benefits as
objectives. Similarly, the Code of Business
Conduct highlights integrity as a principle
that inspires us to do the right thing always
and establishes a behavioral guide for our
employees, who, in turn, represent these
principles within their communities.

Authorities

Shareholders Suppliers and

Contractors

The positive relationship with our
stakeholders is also a fundamental pillar
of our Sustainability Policy. The open and
transparent dialogue established with
them allows us to identify and manage
risks and opportunities properly to
generate trust that results in strategic
alliances and addresses common
challenges. This will also allow us to gain
a broader vision for decision-making,
thus complying with the value proposition
set forth within this policy, as well as the
expectations of our stakeholders.

Communities Environment

SCAN THE CODE

(G4-26) (G4-27)

Stakeholder's
engagement
mechanisms

I3 SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
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In order to manage the relationship in a In Argos, we identify our own stakeholders based on the following five criteria

strategic way, we have various mechanisms proposed by the AA1OOOSES standard: 251

that allow us to keep you informed, consulted

and to communicate on matters relevant to —r,.;‘ Dependence: those who depend on our activities, products or services
e

the sustainability. The 2015 Integrated Report
provides greater detail on these relationship

or on whom we depend to continue operating

mechanisms and their results from a Responsibility: those with whom we have or might have a commercial,
perspective of sustainability. legal, operational or ethical responsibility

To ensure proper management, different m Proximity: those who need our immediate attention on financial,
areas of the company have responsibilities economic, social or environmental issues

regarding the relationship with each stakeholder.
Therefore, the Legal and Institutional Affairs Vice Influence: those who could generate an impact on the strategy
Presidency leads the relationship with regulatory

authorities. Investors and shareholders are

or on our decision-making

managed through a management that reports Perspectives diversity: those who can take us to have a new
to the president directly. The regional vice understanding about a specific situation or to the identification
presidents have marketing for customers, of new opportunities that otherwise would hardly be recognized

purchasing and suppliers’ management

areas. As a design area, the vice president of
human talent and organizational architecture
coordinates and implements the corporate
strategies to protect the rights of our human
capital. Besides having the relationship with the
communities division and the environmental
management, the Sustainability Vice Presidency
leads the use of these mechanisms with a
sustainability approach.

Annually, we invite our stakeholders to
participate in our Sustainability Dialogues,

a space to promote a sustainable culture.
This has the purpose of sharing the most
relevant information about our social
responsibility performance and fostering

an environment of joint reflection that allows
us to take a broad and balanced perspective
in the decision-making process.

In 2015, we take advantage of this opportunity
to discuss the Integrated Report with our
stakeholders and to know their opinion

about our level of compliance with the value
promises of the Sustainability Policy and their
expectations and most relevant issues for the
materiality analysis.

I SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

Customer in Panama, Caribbean and Central America Region
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Sustainability culture

At Argos, we are committed to the
promotion and the strengthening of
a sustainability culture among our
employees and other stakeholders
since it leads to the adoption of
habits, decisions and responsible
attitudes toward the environment.
Because of this, we designed a
range of training and dissemination
strategies, related to social, economic
and environmental affairs relevant to
the sustainability of our operation.

Sustainability Week is a training
space for our stakeholders, in which,
year after year, we reflect on various
issues connected to sustainability.
Over the last few years, we have
discussed issues of great importance,
such as social inclusion, the Global
Compact, the water footprint, human
rights and sustainable development.

In 2015, we addressed the
strategic management of fraud,
corruption, money laundering and
the financing of terrorism. Guided
by the organization, Transparency
International, we trained 3,077
people at the central workshop.
Additionally, we launched the course
3D Vision of Sustainability on our
online EDUCA platform, which was
attended by 1,257 employees
between October and December.

This approach allowed us to

share how our sustainability

vision corresponds with our risk
management culture. In addition to
disseminating our Risk Management
Policy, we discussed and reflected
on our strategic risks and opened
the "Find the Risks" contest for our
employees. It had three winners,
one from each region.

In addition, within our community
educational institutions, we reflected
on the impacts of corruption. In the
last three years, we have achieved an
attendance of 7,109 people for the
Sustainability Week, equivalent to
14,465 hours of training.

Among other initiatives, the inclusion
of a sustainability component in the
Customer Management Certification
courses that Argos sponsored in the
Colombia, and the Caribbean and
Central America Regions should be
noted. It allowed us, in its first year,
to promote sustainability as a
business vision between 150
customers of the Caribbean and
Central America Region and to 305
in the Colombia Region, equivalent
to 2,064 hours of training.

In 2016, the creation of a Management
in Sustainability Culture program

will allow us to continue strengthening
our strategy to promote the culture.

We will continue expanding the training
and dissemination strategjes in order
to have greater geographical coverage
in terms of operations, as well

as stakeholders.

IN THE LAST THREE YEARS,
WE HAVE INCREASED THE
PARTICIPATION OF OUR
STAKEHOLDERS IN BOTH
SUSTAINABILITY WEEK AND
SUSTAINABILITY DIALOGUES
BY 97.6 PERCENT AND 54.8
PERCENT RESPECTIVELY.

Attendance to the
Sustainability Dialogues

People -7 2487
P 76
et 175
+54.8% 2,024
Lt 61
-7 256
1,606
123

2013 2014 2015
B Employees Suppliers
Communities Customers

M colombia Region

1,964 Caribbean
and Central
America Region

United
States Region

Attendance to the
Sustainability Week

People 7 3077
P 175

+97.6% 2 475
P 226

1,709

2013 2014 2015
M Employees

1,557
152
267

1,138

2,464

Communities and authorities
Suppliers

M colombia Region

2,271 Caribbean
and Central

America Region

United
States Region
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OUR ADDED VALUE

Natural

Value generation
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Aggregates plant Distribution center Cement plant
Aggregates Packaged cement Bulk cement
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Retail Industrial Logistics and distribution

» Customers 4 Suppliers e Communities
o oJo

o~ Products adapted to the “* " Responsible ‘};‘ Better socio-economic
specific needs of our customers supply chain conditions for our
and environment. surrounding communities

m Integrated report 2015



Social

Financial

Operational

@ O G o This is how we © We reduce our energy
() create value consumption.
@ We innovate in our processes € We mitigate the impacts
and products. of our products and services.
© We reduce our CO, emissions. @ We identify the needs of our
A ﬂ © We make efficient use customers and the market.
'o"=0 o o of the materials and replace & We reduce our water
Suppliers E non-renewable resources. consumption.
e E @ We improve safety @ We optimize our logistics
§ and wellness. of distribution.
e @ ° 0 o o 0 @ 2 © We respect and promote (& We take advantage of new
— E the human rights. business opportunities.
p— @ = © We rehabilitate the areas @) We develop the skills
disturbed by mining. of our human talent
€ We maintain good and foster a good

Ml ared

Concrete Plant

relationships with

our communities, and
we contribute to local
development.

(5]

working environment.
We develop our
suppliers’ skills.

Concrete m

06000

B

Offices

(o = = I~ Mo R m

Transversal risks

Strategic risks

Environmental impacts.
Changes in regulations.
Information management.
Reputational risks .
Anti-trust sanctions.

© Relations with communities.
©® Import competition.

00000000

00 00O

00

Supply chain. Country risk.
Loss of licenses or titles. Liquidity, credit, financial
Health and safety. statements and taxes.

Natural disasters.

Fraud, corruption, money
laundering and financing
of terrorism.

Energy resources.

Human aspects and human
rights.

Environment
Products with lower
environmental impact
throughout their life cycle

Shareholders “
Guarantee
of sustainable investment
for our shareholders

Authorities “

Employees
Competent
and proud

= Diligence that goes
beyond applicable regulations.
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d RISK MANAGEMENT

I Risk management

One of the most important aspects of the company’s sustainability
is to identify and manage the risks inherent to our activity and the
successful implementation of this strategy. This is why we have
developed our System of Integral Management of Risks ( SGIR)
under the international standards ISO 31000 and COSO Enterprise
Risk Management. The pillars of the Risk Management Policy, roles
and responsibilities, methodology and culture support the model.
The SGIR defines an outline of government and a methodological
framework that tends to generate awareness at all levels in the
organization to manage risks in a distributed manner, to anticipate
future risks and be prepared in the event that they occur. The SGIR
sets unified criteria to assess and manage risks in an integrated way,
and monitors patterns through risk maps based on strategic levels,
processes, projects and installations.

We work based on 16 identified strategic risks, which are the subject
of prioritization and monitoring of the board of directors. For the
prioritized risks, we perform a detailed analysis of causes, controls
and plans of action, as well as continuous monitoring of new events
that could modify the exposure to these risks in order to generate
proactive alerts used as part of the decision-making process.

FOR THE SECOND YEAR IN A ROW, THE

DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY INDEX RECOGNIZED
US AS THE LEADERS IN THE FIELD OF RISK
MANAGEMENT AND CRISIS MANAGEMENT IN
THE OVERALL AND EMERGING MARKETS INDEX.

At the tactical level, we have analyzed the risks of strategic projects
at each stage, from planning to closure, considering impacts at the
project and business level. In addition, we developed management
models based on risk, tools tailored to each area that support

the definition of objectives, work plans, monitoring schemes and
management indicators. These models are of the utmost relevance
to the analysis, monitoring and updating of strategic risks.

At the operational level, we handle risks by processes and

facilities, which allow us to know firsthand the risks faced by day

to day operations, which is key in order to have an appropriate
management of risks on the tactical and strategic levels. To achieve
effective and integrated risk management in the three levels

(ARI1) (A-RI2)
Strategic

and emerging
risks

m Integrated report 2015

described, we have established responsibilities for roles
at all levels, including the president, vice presidents and
managers from the different business units. Similarly,

risk managers from each vice presidency support the risk
management in processes and projects, and constitute

a fundamental pillar in the communication of risk
management. This has a direct reporting line to the Audit,
Finance and Risks Committee, and functional dependency
of the presidency.

We enhance the strengthening of the cultural risk
management element through education and training,
workshops, awareness and communication campaigns.
During 2015, we conducted an organizational survey with
the goal of gauging employees’ level of understanding

of the risk management model. The survey involved
employees from all levels of the organization and all our
regions, as well as the corporate areas.

Results of the survey:

Knowledge of the Risk

Management Policy 3%
Know or think they know their role 93%
within the risk management model

Know the main risks of the 78%
organization

Know the risks of the processes 88%

associated with their daily activities

M Say that they know what to do in case _ 78%
of an emergenc
o I 0%

M Say they consider the risks in
decision-making.

This survey allows us to measure the level of adoption

of the risk management practices as part of the
organizational culture and alignment of the same with the
risk management model that has been developed at the
corporate level. It also allows us to identify items that need
to be reinforced to ensure that the organization and its
partners understand and take advantage of the benefits of
risk management for the fulfillment of the objectives.

Future perspective

B During 2016, we will continue to strengthen the culture around
risk management at Argos, considering the elements identified
in the survey results as opportunities to improve.

We will consolidate the strategic risks map by country, to

continue consolidating and prioritizing risk management
according to the relevance of the exposure levels.

We will work on strengthening the maturity of the Integral
Management of Risks System using strategies aimed at the
improvement of the culture, the integration of insurance
programs to the SGIR and implementation of technological tools
that support the risk management strategy.
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TO NEVER STOP DREAMING
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“Innovation must be seen as the only way to ensure that the organization
will be transformed, reinvented and will compete in today’s world”

Jorge Mario Velasquez

At Argos, we strongly believe that innovation is

one of the main ways to ensure sustainability;
we understand that this is an ability that must
be rooted in our culture, into our processes
and services, and into the way we care for the
planet. The fruits of transforming innovation
into one of Argos strategic priorities and one of
the material issues of our management were
evidenced in different areas and encourage us
to continue strengthening this culture to which
we have been committed for several years.

We believe that innovation needs to be
translated into revenues and savings.
Therefore, we can proudly say that we
reached 15.4 percent of revenue coming
from innovation in 2015, equivalent to USD
$440.4 million. This allowed us to largely
succeed in the achievement of the 2015
MEGA goal. According to this goal, 10 percent
of our revenue should come from innovative
products or services in 2015. The successful

closure of this first cycle gave us a strong basis

on which we decided to increase the goal for
2025, when we expect to reach 20 percent of
revenue as a result of innovation.

While these figures are important to our
management, we seek to boost the permanent
renovation capability of the business model by
remaining relevant towards the market while
reinventing ourselves as a company. Exceeding
the 2015 MEGA was consistent with this
principle, since it was leveraged by initiatives
that renewed the company way of doing things
and the way we relate to our customers, always
guided by a clearly defined strategy.
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[XIEN Total revenue from innovation

2015
Total revenue COP usD
from innovation Billion Million
Colombia 403.2 146.8
Caribbean and Central America 166.2 60.5
United States 640.1 233.1
Total 1,209.5 440.4
Total in 2014: COP 538,322,000,000 | USD 269,000,000
2015
Total revenue COoP uUsbD %
of Cementos Argos Billion Million Rev/Inn
Colombia 29 1,084 13.5
Caribbean and Central America 1.5 540 11.2
United States 3.4 1,244 18.7
Total 79 2,868 15.4

[ Savings from the implementation of innovation initiatives

2015

Colombia COP willion USD

Fine dosing (NI) 63.3 23,053
Unification of solid waste (NI) 10 3,668
Report of weighing elimination (NI) 1.2 462
Piles in quarries (cement) 1,180 429,800
Grinding optimization (cement) 842 306,549
Other efficiency projects 120 43,719
Colombia—Center Zone additives 336 122,293
North Zone design optimization 320 116,499
Colombia—Northwest Zone additives 101.2 36,863
Desulphurization of coal burning in Yumbo 567 206,400

Plant generator

Caribbean and Central America Region

Panama cementitious material 197 71,800
Panama Additives 1,031 375,687
Total 5,392 1,963,583

Total in 2014: COP 5,719,000,000 | USD 2,390,000



Our current investment in innovation is 0.6
percent of sales, and it has been growing in
line with the government and the National
Planning Direction proposal to invest 1 percent
of company’s revenues in science, technology
and innovation in 2018. In the last seven years,
we have invested more than USD $50 million in
innovation, research and development and new
businesses, effort that has reverted to revenue
close to USD $1 billion.

It should also be noted that the
Superintendence of Industry and Commerce
of Colombia awarded us with the first patent
for cement kiln technology, developed jointly
with Universidad del Norte, Barranquilla. We
requested four additional patents, and there
are other 36 elements under protection road
map certification.

We continue to have an active
participation in recognized scientific and
industry journals with articles on our
main breakthroughs.

Our extensive corporate commitment with
innovation is also evidenced by the fact
that 328 people from the organization
have indicators associated with it.

This year almost 400 people who belong to
this group in Colombia and the Caribbean
and Central America enthusiastically

have been involved in projects that have
already started to benefit the organization
significantly. It is a milestone in terms

of innovation management since the
company’s efforts generally focus on the
administrative staff.

IN THE LAST SEVEN
YEARS, WE HAVE
INVESTED MORE THAN
USD $50 MILLION

IN INNOVATION,
RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, AND
NEW BUSINESSES

(A-IN1)

Investment
in innovation

innovation | IECHENE



Our management approach

Transforming Argos into an innovative company was an explicit decision
adopted by our leaders, as reflected in the inclusion of innovation as a strategic
priority and material aspect of management. It resulted in the definition of

W 2014
W 2015

the first MEGA (already fulfilled) and in the creation of the Innovation Vice

Presidency in 2011, which was structured into four management divisions:
Research and Development, responsible for technological innovation; New
Business, responsible for leading corporate entrepreneurship; Innovation
Management, dedicated to developing innovation as organizational

Ideas received
239
146
. 112
I 411

competence, and Alternate Resources, which involves an innovative approach
to raw material and fuel sources used by the industry.

THE INNOVATION VICE PRESIDENCY
IS COMPRISED OF HIGHLY-QUALIFIED
PEOPLE, 12 PERCENT HOLD PHDS

With these resources and an annual investment equivalent to 0.5 percent

Ideas approved
56
58
I 38
I 61

of our revenue, we have designed and used processes and tools to leverage

the intended results, including the Ideaxion system, which is a forum

Ideas validated
19*

I 25

I 33

*2012 and 2013

togather the views of any employee within the organization. Overall, the

system has received 908 ideas, 213 of which have been approved with
funds allocated in the amount of COP $4,245,273,608 [USD $1,545,720
(it is estimated at the average rate of 2015, but it is an accumulated total
of dollars allocated in the last four years), 77 ideas have been validated
and 59 have been implemented.

UHPC

Ultra High
Performance Concrete

We leverage our business in digital

platforms in the Colombia Region and

93% percent of the orders were
completed successfully
through these means.

Ideas implemented

31*
I
I 19

#2012 and 2013

i‘l:ll
~ 0N

VASP

In the United States, we improved the
Value Added Specialty Products portfolio
with products such as ConcreFlow®
and low-humidity concrete.
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The concrete portal was launched
as a tool that allows for real-time
updates about the shipment

status and the customer’s account.

It is now used by

54% of our concrete

customers.

/

Y4

Passion
for Baseball

is an innovative marketing strategy for
packaged cement in the Dominican
Republic. This marketing strategy was
recognized this year during the London
International Awards (LIA), one of the
most important advertising awards at
an international level.

The fine dosing process in the
concrete plants, which allows for
greater efficiency, is an idea of
one of the plant employees, and
it allows estimated savings of

billion

million
per year.



Some of our

initiatives

Development and technical transfer: As a
result of the increase of fly ash consumption
and new sources and inclusion of cutting-
edge technology additives in the production of
concrete, we reported savings of COP $2.29
billion (USD $834,000). The Caribbean and
Central America Region showed savings of
COP $1.23 billion (USD $447,000), and the
Colombia Regions showed savings

of COP $1.1 billion (USD $385,945).

Concrete for durability: In 2015,

we provided the market, specifically
those with coastal and industrial
construction that are exposed to acids, with this
cutting-edge and high-performance material
that is suitable for aggressive environments.

Recycled aggregates: After five
years of conducting construction
waste recycling tests during the
production of concrete, the successful results
obtained in 2015 will allow us to transform it
into a business in 2016.

Micro-cement: During 2015, we
manufactured micro-cement in the
Toluviejo and Sogamoso Plants
with the purpose of validating the results in
tunnels. For 2016, we expect to start shipping
the product from these two operations. It

will serve to supplement and strengthen

our value proposal to the market with
specialized products essential to the country’s
infrastructure challenges.

Cement floor: Industrial testing
and sections have been developed
in several roads of the country
to validate the product performance in
construction work. In addition, the commercial
area was launched in the Colombia Region to
explain the value proposal of the product in
detail. The market launch will take place
in 2016 in order to support roads projects
in Colombia.

WD

Color concrete for "Sidewalks for Life" project, Medellin, Colombia

New businesses have upgraded

to the next level, with the
implementation of Caltek, a joint
venture with the Mexican company,
Calidra, for the production of
industrial lime with high value
added. The start of production

and sale of recycled aggregates

is another initiative showing that
innovation effectively underpins
sustainability since it contributes to
the economic, environmental and
social dimensions.

Likewise, it is important to note
that we are closing a cycle of
products and materials, having
started consuming used tires as

an alternative fuel of carbon in

our Rioclaro Plant. In this way we
contribute to solving the problems
caused by this particular waste. A
similar example is the production of
concrete with recycled aggregates.

These projects improve our
organization’s sustainability in one
of its higher impact components

because besides lowering the
emissions of CO,,, we use waste that
would otherwise go to landfills, and
we avoid using fossil fuels and non-
renewable raw material. There is
also progress in the implementation
of the co-processing project in
Cartagena Plant. There, we expect
to reach a 20 percent substitution of
thermal energy required by one of the
kilns in 2018.

Innovation has so far been a very
exciting journey, and its findings
are highly satisfactory. In order to
reach the 2025 goal of receiving
20 percent of our revenue from
innovation, it is necessary, amongst
other things, to leverage our
business on digital technologies
and mitigate the environmental
impact of operations, particularly in
terms of CO2 emissions. We started
this new stage full of enthusiasm
because of the deep significance of
our mission and convinced that in
terms of innovation, the journey is as
important as the destination.

Innovation



CASE STUDY: ARGOS CENTER FOR INNOVATION
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Designed by architect

Lorenzo Castro

The company invested

COP $25 billion

(over USD $9 million)
for the construction of this project.

Laboratories provisioning

COP $5 billion

(almost USD $2 million)

Equipment for the analysis of materials
and construction systems:

More than 80

Constructed area:

4,807 m?

Stories/floors:

Specialized laboratories:

12

Workstations:

close to 60

Design parameters Sustainable

construction and Leadership

in Energy and Environmental
Design (LEED) certified

Use of Argos Value Added
Specialty Products:

63%

Green spaces:

30%

Reduction of energy consumption:

Mas de 44%

Reduction of water consumption:

90%

The Argos Center for Innovation is a milestone in the industry and
in the history of private enterprise. Therefore, we restate that this
was one of our most important achievements in 2015.

In this inspiring area where we commit to open innovation, we
develop, along with academia, industry and research institutes,
projects that give rise to new processes and products to add
value to our production chain. This way, we will continue
cooperating and contributing to the construction industry
alongside universities, enterprise and government.

We operate on an open ARGOS CENTER FOR
innovation and collaborative INNOVATION REAFFIRMS
work model, aimed at creating, OUR COMMITMENT
envisioning and proposing TO THE COMPANY
solutions to the industry AND THE COUNTRY’S

challenges. There the concept DEVELOPMENT
of science becomes palpable.

|
The Argos Center for Innovation reaffirms our confidence in a
business model focused on the customer to encourage ideas
and projects that would promote environmental, economic and
social sustainability.

Some Value Added Specialty Products
used for its construction:

]
AANAANAANL
Colored High Permeable
concrete resistance
Concrete Self-compacting Other special
for industrial products
floors

This is, therefore, a substantial development to showcase
sustainable construction that has great environmental benefits
for the industry.

innovation [ IEEHINENE



30% of the building's plant is green
area, thereby reducing heat. Besides,
the building utilizes natural light,
uses devices with a technology

that decreases power consumption

in more than 44%, and collects
rainwater for supply, replacing almost
90% of potable water demand.

L XN
g b

West facade of the Argos Center for Innovation in Medellin, Colombia

Also, we performed there the first of
several business rountables during
November where 10 universities and
22 research groups from different
regions of the country took part. We
shared with them the challenges of
our endeavor, and explored chances
for joint work.

Uyvi

In short, the Argos Center for Innovation seals our alliance with productive,
competitive and sustainable growth of the industry, the region, the country

and the world.
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Future prespective

At Argos, innovation will be strengthened as the
driving force or sustainable growth. It will be

an innovative culture deeply woven into all our
employees and will give the company the ability
to reinvent itself and compete in increasingly
competitive markets, to see and to think
differently. Customers will be pleased with the
products, as well as the products’ performance
and quality; services will give differentiation
and add value to its sustainable infrastructure,
housing and city projects.

In the short-term

2016 - 2017

Caltek will begin to produce lime in
the second half of 2016.

. Greco, the new recycled aggregates
production company, will start

operations in the second half of 2016

in Colombia.

Ultra-high performance concrete will
launch in the three regions.

Our Cartagena Plant will have the
capacity to use alternate fuels such
as used tires.

We will turn CO2 into high-value
commercial materials such as spirulina,
chlorella, proteins, amino acids and more.

In the mid-term
2018 - 2019
We will become the most important
solution for the used tire problem
in Colombia, and partners of the cities and
companies for proper waste management.

In the long-term
By 2025
We will develop new growth platforms
based on innovation that will give the
company the capacity to grow and to move from
generating 10 percent of revenue in 2015 to
20 percent in 2025.

We will support the fulfillment
of the goal of lowering caloric
intake by 10 percent.

. In 2025, we will have 18 percent
substitution of fossil fuel with

alternative resources in all our operations.




INNOVATIO

TO BET ON CHANGE

West facade of the Argos Center for Innovation in Medellin, Colombia

ECONOMIC
DIMENSION




O Customer relationship cz=m

Customer management is a vital element for the company’s
sustainability. Based on a clear understanding of the market,
we developed our own retention and loyalty strategy through a

trade name that links us to consumers.

The pillars of our value proposition are the commitment to
operational excellence, a suitable commercial and technical

infrastructure, a portfolio of high-quality products and services

to meet the needs of our customers, and support in the use
and application of the products, all of which ensures customer
loyalty to the company’s brand in all the geographic regions
where we operate.

This business vision allows us to know our consumers and set
differentiated value proposals that will fit their needs and will
be in line with international standards.

[ Percentage of revenue generated by recurring customers

2012 2013 2014 2015
Colombia Region
Revenue generated
by recurring 904 89« 934 91
customers
Caribbean and Central America Region
Revenue generated
by recurring N/A N/A N/A 82
customers
The United States Region
Revenue generated
by recurring N/A N/A 90 95,
customers

Our management approach

[ZEIHE] Customer satisfaction

As part of our value proposition, we have Results in .

developed a commercial and technical °°‘i;te'fjsmhn‘iz - N The Caribpean and Central America Region America

infrastructure to advise the customer in the use Sa“SfHC“‘J”dS“”’eé Customer satisfaction survey

N ) is conducte 2012 2013 2014
and application of products, thus developing - 2015
Panama |) BN 81.0% |) I 82.5% ) I 26.7% |) I 84.3%

differentiated products and services to meet Goal: 82.5%

the customers’ specific needs. gg;d';gf;o b N/A > N/A ) I 70.8% |) NN 88.0%
D. Republic ) I 89.0% | ) N 89.7% () NN 85.4% |) NN 87.5%

We guarantee the quality of our customer Goal: 82.5%

. P Suriname N/A 83.0% 84.7% 69.4%

service by constantly monitoring our work. Goal game [P W

To do this, we conduct research with Ipsos conl |.|736|g/;| 75.0% 84.7% 76.7% 78.5%

Napoleon Franco every year for Colombia and ol 1o

the Caribbean and Central America Regions and

with Tricone Marketing Research for the United United States Colombia

States Region Goal: 84% Goal: 82.5%

0 CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP
SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT
COMPLIANCE
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2015 |» === 84.3%

2014 |p
2013 [p

2015 ) NN 82.5%

84.4% 2014 |p 83.5%
86.3% 2013 |p 85.2%
2012 |p 86.1%



These studies include a review

of all products, services and
customer segments in all the
regions. This process ensures the
statistical validity of results and
allows us to identify improvement
opportunities, generate action plans,
and to increase the satisfaction

of our customers. Findings are
communicated inside and outside the
organization, while the measurement
of the customer level of satisfaction
is a corporate management indicator
and is related to the variable
compensation system of

our employees.

In 2015, the Customer Journey Map
tool was used in Panama, Dominican
Republic and Colombia, along with
internal customer service audits,
aimed at ensuring the sustainability
of customer service levels, as well

Our achievements

as its continuous improvement and
processes optimization. This tool
will gradually be extended to other
countries in the region, including
Haiti in 2016.

Additionally, we have developed
a commercial and technical
infrastructure to advise customers

in the use and application of cement and
concrete, which has allowed us to create
products and services tailored to their needs.

In Colombia, Panama and the United States, we
have a toll-free customer service line to meet
customers’ requirements, schedule purchase
orders, address concerns, provide general
information, and service and resolve claims.

Nt i

Customer of the retail business, Colombia Region

Our strategy is focused on the customer and supported by processes and technology,
and allowed us to make progress and develop the following initiatives:

Launch of the new

presentation of 5-kilogram

gray and white cement
and the consolidation of the
1-kilogram cement presentation.

Implementation of

cement sales through new

marketing channels, which
have not been traditionally used for
the sale of this product.

In 2015, cement imports

were reopened in the

United States through our
terminal in Houston, Texas, allowing
us to bring gray cement into this
major market. In addition, two plants
were opened in Miami, Florida,
which allowed us to operate in an
important market in the southern
United States.

Strengthening of new

sales channels via the

Internet in Colombia, the
Caribbean and Central America:
30 percent of cement purchase
orders came through these
channels. We also supported a
mobile application to place orders
and obtain information.

Increase of concrete Value
M Added Specialty Products

in the three regions and
involvement in low-income housing
programs is another achievement
promoted by Panama, Colombia and
Honduras governments.

Masonry Training
ri Schools and Lunch-and-
Learn programs in
the United States.

DUE TO RECORD
DISBURSEMENT, 2015 WAS
A HISTORICAL YEAR FOR
CONSTRUYA IN COLOMBIA.
NOW MORE THAN 21,000
LOW-INCOME FAMILIES
HAVE BENEFITED DURING
THE NINE YEARS OF THE
ARGOS CREDIT PROGRAM.

& Entrepreneurial strengthening
&/\ outreach program for hardware
dealers and project management
for civil engineers in the Caribbean and
Central America, as well as inclusion of the
sustainability module.

O CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP

COMPLIANCE

Economic dimension
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Customer of the retail business in Honduras, Caribbean and Central America Region

Installation of GPS
& systems for most of the
fleet of concrete mixer
trucks in our regions and of 100
percent in Colombia. This allowed for
constant monitoring of each truck’s
location, and in 2016, customers will
have access to the location of the
vehicle assigned to their service in
certain regjons.

-\_’ Launch of dry mortars
\" in Panama.

Consolidation of the trade
model trade in cabotage
sale by sailboats in Haiti.

o Launch of the cement
ﬁé'-i marketing channel in
Haiti through remittance
sent from the United States. Sender
establishes the purchase of cement
sacks, which are then delivered to the
island to the sender s relatives.

Participation in the
Digital Marketing
Excellence Program,

0 CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP

COMPLIANCE
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which was in partnership with
Florida International University,

with an interdisciplinary team of 44
employees from the three regions
that developed marketing skills with
a special focus on digital marketing.

Implementation of the

Marketing Controller tool in

Colombia and the Central
America and the Caribbean Regions
for the development and execution of
marketing plans. The tool allowed for
the consolidation of all the projects
and marketing initiatives.

THE RESULTS OF OUR
MANAGEMENT ARE
EVIDENCED THROUGH

THE MEASUREMENT OF
CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
LEVELS AND THE TOP-OF-
MIND OF THE BRAND IN
COLOMBIA WITH RESULTS
IN THE GENERAL PUBLIC OF
59 POINTS, 52 POINTS FROM
THE SECOND BRAND.
PANAMA REACHED 54
POINTS, 33 FROM THE
SECOND BRAND.

perspective

H To strengthen the brand positioning
in all segments and territories.

H To continue with the business
development program for the loyalty of
customers in the retail and industrial
channels in Panama and Dominican
Republic, and to extend this initiative
to other Caribbean countries.

To establish the Contact Center

or customer service line and
transactional support in the
Caribbean according to the operation
dimension in each country, in order
to offer first-level solutions and
strengthen our customer service.

In Colombia, to explore new
alternative channels of customer
service, purchasing and
communication that contribute to the
consolidation of value segmentation
for the retail business.

Structuring of the value offer and
customers information platform for the
fourth-generation roadway concession
infrastructure projects that the
Colombia government will develop.

To increase proposals and initiatives
of digital marketing projects through
the Marketing Summit program
carried out in the three regions.

To implement and give continuity to
the customer’s experience through
the Customer Journey Map tool that
allows for knowledge regarding the
way in which the consumer interacts
with the company.



3 Supplier management c=m

Increasingly aware of our role as a global outreach
company with an increased international projection and our
commitment to have a sustainable supply chain, we aim

Sustainable initiatives in the supply chain resulting in business opportunities

with qualitative and quantitative benefits

at strengthening our relations with existing and potential
suppliers, under quality, competitiveness, innovation and
sustainability parameters.

Colombia

Emission planning in
Colombia Region aimed
at quantifying emissions
in future plans of the Colombia Region
operations network and to support
their mitigation, control and financial
impact strategies.

Qualitative benefits:

W To deliver relevant information for decision-
making and indicators control, regarding future
emissions based on the operation plans of the
Colombia Region network.

B To generate business scenarios to operatio-
nally and financially assess the impacts by
controls or strategies implementation in the
mitigation of emissions.

B To support the fulfillment of the MEGA in terms
of CO2 emissions, linking the intended strate-
gies to the daily operation.

Note: The quantitative value will be estimated once
the cost of the CO,, emissions is known.

Colombia

In 2015, the road safety

program was strengthened

through subprograms such
as Habitos de buen conductor (Good
driver habits), Angeles de la seguridad vial
(Road safety angels) and Punto seguro
(Safe checkpoint). The latter initiative was
implemented, in collaboration with the
National Army and Highway Patrol.

Qualitative benefits:

B To raise safety awareness in line with Argos |
Promise Project, which supports our Cultural
Pillars, and communications that the value of
life is the highest priority.

B To raise drivers’ awareness on the importance
of safe behaviors both in their daily activities on
the country’s roads and in their homes.

B We expanded training coverage to 994 drivers.

Honduras

COP $192

million

USD $61,000

The road safety initiative has developed
further. In 2015, we finished the
consulting and implementation stage,
and Icontec visited us for the ISO 39001
pre-certification.

Qualitative benefits

B To save lives and reduce injuries

B Better company reputation

W Safer behaviors

B No injuries for Argos t
ransportation contractors

W 460 certified drivers

Panama

2N COP $762

million

USD $242,000
Optimization of the packing
transportation process through
shipment tendering process.

Qualitative benefits

B The service level improved from 85 percent
to 88 percent.

B More efficient administrative management
by decreasing the amount of freight companies
by 40 percent as compared to those in 2014.

Description of the supply chain

We play a crucial role managing and leading
aspects related to suppliers and contractors
who supply us with raw materials, services,
consumables and spare parts, transportation,
fuel and technology in our three regions
where we operate. In addition, we jointly build
harmonious, fair, and mutually beneficial

relationships supporting a responsible

supply chain.

Colombia

COP $2,924

million

USD $928,410
It refers to the development of an
inventory model to ensure optimal supply.
The model defines the levels of materials
needed to meet the manufacturing and
sale needs that mitigate the uncertainties
of the supply chain. We implemented
the Inventory between Limits indicator
(IEL by its acronym in Spanish) to the raw
materials purchased, which measures
the percentage of materials between the
defined inventory levels.

Qualitative benefits:

B The IEL indicator remained at the same
optimal level of 78 percent as in 2014.

B Reduction of the working capital and increase
of the current asset.

B Better disposal in storage sites.

B Decrease of pollution caused by transporta-
tion, storage and handling of raw materials.

B Synergy in the raw materials management
among our regions.

AT ARGOS, WE SEEK
THAT OUR SUPPLIERS
AND CONTRACTORS

ARE ALIGNED WITH

OUR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE POLICIES,
COMPLY WITH THE CODE
OF BUSINESS CONDUCT,
AND PROTECT SAFETY
AND HUMAN RIGHTS.

We are committed to ensure transparency

and suitability with our supply chain, due to its

direct impact on the business performance in
terms of cost, quality and sustainability.

O SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT
COMPLIANCE

Economic dimension _



Number and payments made to suppliers

Description

Caribbean
Colombia

United States

and Central America

Number of suppliers who

. . Number 3,877 1,882 6,763 12,522
currently have a relationship
COP 2,262,028,276,773 765,790,365,668 2,683,679,683,957 5,711,798,326,398
Value of payments
made to suppliers
usD 718,225,059 243,148,963 852,200,429 1,813,574,451

[ZZE] Value of payments per type of purchase

Caribbean and Central

Colombia America United States
COP UsD COP UsD COP UsD

Raw materials 224,592,008,646 71,311,049 409,071,000,901 129,885,664 1,095,927,113,402 347,971,917
Administrative 372,077,441,880 118,139,700 45,176,854,370 14,344,272 235,106,867,830 74,649,661
Transportation 606,696,483,381 192,634,470 58,528,654,115 18,583,652 554,908,004,687 176,190,916
Fuels 265,451,368,150 84,284,457 40,117,238,045 12,737,774 105,528,225,478 33,506,662
Technology 49,902,477,103 15,844,722 4,290,994,263 1,362,450 108,693,286,299 34,511,612
Services 554,309,554,453 176,000,900 109,415,626,831 34,740,965 115,496,747,709 36,671,804
Consumables,

spare parts 188,998,943,160 60,009,761 99,189,997,143 31,494,187 468,319,438,552 148,697,857

and equipment

One of our basic assumptions is to do business with suppliers who share our principles and values, which revolve around
sustainability, innovation, respect for human rights, and compliance with labor and environmental laws.

DEALING WITH
SUPPLIERS WHO
SHARE OUR
PRINCIPLES

AND VALUES

IS ONE OF OUR
MOST ESSENTIAL
POSTULATES.

O SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT
COMPLIANCE
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Our management approach
Understanding the risks and the need
to mitigate them, we manage our suppliers
through the processes of pre-selection,
selection, performance assessment,
audits, certifications monitoring and
management systems. We also have

a Procurement Handbook for suppliers
of goods and services and a Code

of Business Conduct that governs the
relationship between employees

and other stakeholders, including
suppliers and contractors.

These processes and policies allow
identifying the risks related to legal,
environmental, economic and social
issues, and mitigating them through
compliance with practices set by the
company, which ensure reliability and
sustainability in the services contracting
and goods supply.

We continue to apply the entire cycle
of supplier management. It involves
the execution of selection, assessment
and development activities, supported
by the SAP Ariba technological tool to
increase transparency, traceability and
standardization of the purcha

sing processes.

To continue with the development of
suppliers in order to achieve sustainability
objectives, we continue working to support
our suppliers in the zones of influence

of our plants through field visits, group
meetings and external consultancy
advice. They address specific issues that
strengthen companies and increase their
standards, thus potentially increasing
economic independence of their main
customer and, in other cases, improving
and documenting their processes.



Expenditure percentage in sites with significant operations corresponding to local suppliers

. Caribbean .
Colombia and Central America United States
COP usD CcoP uUsD COP usbD
Total purchase 2,262,028,276,773 $718,225,059 765,790,365,668 243,148,963 2,683,979,683,957 852,200,429

Purchase made

) 2,080,501,111,545 $660,587,690 522,436,525,385 165,880,775 2,565,529,705,756 814,590,933
to local suppliers

Percentage

of purchase 92% 68% 96%

made to local
suppliers

Total number

) 3,877 1,882 6,763
of suppliers
Number of local
. 3,650 1,535 6,742
suppliers
Percentage
94.1 82 99.7

of local suppliers

Performance indicators

We define the suppliers to whom we apply the above
mentioned procedures: pre-selection, selection,
assessment, sustainability index, audits, consultancies
and programs to encourage and contribute to the
development and building of suppliers in line with our
policies. As a challenge, we increase this coverage every
year in order to have greater control and knowledge of

-y

‘-‘ﬂf RO

=

both the new suppliers through pre-selection and current
suppliers to improve their performance. This way, we

ensure compliance with social, environmental, economic
and ethical parameters required by the company, and we
are part of their growth process in terms of sustainability.

i

JRy VLT
e
-

£ 1y
:

‘ﬂj.'ll

THE SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT CYCLE
IS AUDITED BOTH INTERNALLY AND
EXTERNALLY IN ORDER TO IDENTIFY
IMPROVEMENT OPPORTUNITIES.

i il

Supplier AM&M, Colombia Region I SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT
COMPLIANCE

Economic dimension



Iz Environmental

Risk management

In 2015, we continue to implement the
Suppliers Sustainability Index, jointly developed
with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology
(MIT), to identify the sustainability risk
associated with our suppliers and to outline
action plans for management improvement.

The index was applied to 61 suppliers of the
critical segments, approximately 50 percent
more than in 2014. Among them, the social
dimension had the highest performance with
the best rating on the Industrial Safety and
Occupational Health criteria. It results from
the implementation of this type of policies
by our allies. The environmental dimension
ranked second place, and the criteria with
the highest rating was the environmental
management system. Finally, the innovation
criteria had the best rating in terms of the
economic dimension.

Suppliers may or may not take steps to
complete the index. In the mid-term, this will be
a requirement for the critical segments to be
part of our supply chain, and we will establish a
minimum rating to that end.

Supplier risks in the Colombia Region

We ensure our suppliers’ suitability
through the pre-selection process

by checking on reputational,
environmental, ethical, economic and
social aspects of their business.

Aware of the importance that this
procedure has on risk management
and the alignment with the company’s
policies regarding Industrial Safety
and Occupational Health, hedge will
be extended to some contractors in

anan Human rights

|(G4-EN33) | (G4-HR11) | (64-LA15) | (G4-5010)

Number of suppliers assessed

“ Labor practices

% Social impact ® Economic

RO

406 400 406 191 412

Number of suppliers identified with significant, true
or potential negative impact (from those assessed)

50 66 72 46 98

Percentage of suppliers identified with significant,
true or potential negative impact with whom
agreements were made based on the assessment

82 79 82 87 71

Number of suppliers identified with significant,
true or potential negative impacts with whom the
contracting relationship was terminated

Percentage of suppliers identified with significant,
true or potential negative impact with whom the
contracting relationship was terminated

order to ensure well-being, quality and
our suppliers’ service.

In 2015, we continued to assess
sustainability on eight suppliers

of the Colombia mining segment
through conTREEbute, a consulting
firm that started the process in 2014
by evaluating 18 suppliers in this
segment. A total of 26 suppliers
were assessed; particularly, as

a consequence of the potential

risks related to the environment

and child labor. The identification

of sustainability-related risks

allows us to define and implement
improvement plans for each supplier
assessed based on findings. The
environmental dimension had the
best rating, followed by the social and
economic dimensions.

Based on the gaps found among the
sustainability good practices and the
measurement results of our supplier’s
index, we work on strengthening

them through supplier development
programs on issues related to
corporate governance best practices,
our Code of Business Conduct, our
anti-corruption and anti-bribery

policy, risk planning and assessment,
human rights, and relationships with
communities in our areas of influence,
as well as the measurement of
impacts caused on them.

O SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT
COMPLIANCE

m Integrated report 2015



Supplier risks in the Caribbean and Central America Region

185 new suppliers contracted
by the organization

| (G4-EN32) | (G4-HR10) | (G4-LA14) | (G4-509)]

2z Environmental

anan Human rights

 Labor practices

® Economic

% Social impact

Number of new suppliers assessed using criteria N/A
Percentage of new suppliers assessed using criteria 4 3 5 0 N/A
[ (G4-LA15) |
Number of suppliers assessed 158 160 144 0 66
Number of s liers identified with significant, true or potential negative impac
u uppli identified with signifi tru potenti gative impacts 19 20 20 0 9

(from those assessed)

Percentage of suppliers identified with significant, true or potential negative impact

with whom agreements were made based on the assessment*

0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Number of suppliers identified with significant, true or potential negative impact
with whom agreements were based on the assessment

Percentage of suppliers identified with significant, true or potential negative impact

with whom agreements were made based on the assessment

*The company is in the process of making improvement agreements with suppliers

Within the sustainability supply

chain framework, we continue to
implement the strengthening strategy
on 56 suppliers in our Colombia
plants’ zones of influence located in
Rioclaro, Nare, Sogamoso, Yumbo
and Toluviejo. The entrepreneurial
strengthening includes consultancy
with expert external consultants in
the following areas:

Management: strategic
planning, leadership,
corporate culture,
information management, work
team, monitoring and control,
efficient use of resources, control
dashboards, strategic thinking,
and business model.
Financial and
m administrative: cost
structure, revenue
sources, budgets, breakeven analysis,
suppliers, and resource funding and
tax management.
Internal processes: sales
strategies and strategic
marketing, operating
efficiency, standardization and
innovation management.
Customer: price, quality,
after-sales servicing, brand,
image and communication.

We continue to strengthen
relationships with our suppliers
through activities such as
Sustainability Dialogues, which
are opportunities to report our
management results and to have
their feedback, expectations and
suggestions in this regard.

Sustainability Week for our suppliers
took place again in the regions of
Colombia and the Caribbean and
Central America with the economic
dimension as the main subject:

the prevention of fraud, corruption,
money laundering and terrorism
financing. A total of 175 suppliers
were involved in this activity.

One of the main activities of 2015
was the in-depth analysis of the
environmental risk measurement
in the contracting segment by
developing a matrix related to each
service. With this matrix, we can be
sure that suppliers will know the
risks they face in the performance
of their activities and that they will
generate strategies to mitigate
these risks. Following the same
methodology, measurement of the

communities and social risks started

to be carried out.

Future perspective

B The new sustainability index will be initiated

in 2016, with adjustments based on
experience and results obtained during 2014
and 2015. It will be refined again with the
support of the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology (MIT).

We will provide our suppliers with online
tools to assess and suggest sustainability
improvement plans.

In the second half of 2016, we will implement
the Suppliers’ Recognition Program,

which will allow us to close the supplier
management cycle.

In the short term, we will also continue to
strengthen the supply chain and increase
the training coverage for our suppliers on
corporate governance good practices, Code
of Business Conduct, anti-corruption and anti-
bribery policy, planning and risk assessment,
and relationship with communities in

the zones of influence, as well as the
measurement of impacts caused on them.

In the mid- and long-term, we will continue
to analyze and implement the national and
international best practices of sustainability
in order to improve the implementation of
initiatives such as the Global Compact and
the Cement Sustainability Initiative (CSI).

O SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT
COMPLIANCE

Economic dimension _



Employees in the Toluviejo Cement Plant, Colombia Region

O Compliance re=m

[ (G4-EN29) | In 2015, there

was full compliance with the environmental
or supply and use of products- or services-
related legislation.

We received, through the Transparency Hotline,
1,298 calls that were answered according

to the procedure specified in the Code

of Business Conduct.

Our competition policy defines standards
and guidelines for employees in relation to
competitors and the market. In general, our
governance and transparency standards
exceed the minimum legal requirements.

Because of the oligopolistic condition
of the Colombia cement market, we report
some current investigations with no final
decision for Argos:

B The Superintendence of Industry and
Commerce of Colombia initiated an
investigation on August 21, 2013, into five

O COMPLIANCE

m Integrated report 2015

Colombia cement companies,
including Argos, for the alleged
commission of restrictive business
practices. Consequently, it also
initiated an investigation into four
of our employees. This proceeding,
for which the evidentiary stage
ended in December 2014, is dealt
by us, fully convinced of having
always acted with full adherence
to the law, confident that the
Colombia institutions will continue
to follow a process objectively and
professionally. The legal action is
pending.

In December 2008, the
Superintendence of Industry and
Commerce imposed a financial
penalty on Argos and two other
Colombia cement companies in
the amount of COP $923 million
each, for the alleged commission
of restrictive business practices.
In the same action, the legal
representative of the three
companies was fined in the
amount of COP $138 million.

This ruling was subject to

appeal for reversal by Argos and
subsequently confirmed by the
Superintendence in January
2010. Argos filed a lawsuit against
that ruling before the Colombia
administrative jurisdiction, and

in the decision of December 3,
2012, the Administrative Court

of Cundinamarca ruled that both
decisions were invalid, thereby,
exonerating the company and the
legal representative from the total
fines. The Superintendence of
Industry and Commerce decided to
appeal, and the final decision is in
the hands of the State Council.

Future
perspective

H To continue with the training
plan and the dissemination of the
corporate policy and its regional
annexes in the several countries
where we operate
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[0 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

O Occupational health and safety

Industrial Safety and Occupational Health
We seek to ensure safe and healthy working conditions for all of our
employees, preventing work accidents, occupational diseases and
emergencies so that we all go back home healthy and safe.

We promote occupational health and safety monitoring and
minimizing our employees’ risks. We implement the best national
and international practices for occupational health and safety, and
we take due responsibility for complying with the legal requirements.
It is our strong interest to strengthen a safety culture built on values
and supported by a unified management system.

EMPLOYEES WHO ARE PHYSICALLY AND
EMOTIONALLY HEALTHY, TODAY AND IN
THE FUTURE, INSPIRE OUR OCCUPATIONAL
HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT.

To further advance these goals, we implement the | Promise Project,

under the guidance of DuPont, a world leader in occupational health.

It marks a positive change in the safety culture of the company and
has contributed significantly to the decrease in incidents, and it has
also spread to our value chain, specifically the contractors, suppliers
and communities that are close to our operations.

We are currently investigating 100 percent of lost time incidents. We

develop action plans that are continuously monitored for fulfillment.

Lost time incident frequency and severity rate

Contractors’ lost time incident frequency and severity rate

Employee in our Atlanta Cement Plant, United States Region

We learn from our mistakes to prevent risks from
happening again and affecting our employees’ health.

Although the lost time incident frequency rate decreased
47.5 percent, we regret the loss of one employee in 2015,
in a work-related accident. As a result, there is a demand
from all employees to work even harder to ensure their
own and others’ safety.

Lost time incident frequency rate

Colombia

United States

TOTAL

Caribbean
and Central America

3.64
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Severity rate
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United States
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19.59
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SAFETY IS NO LONGER A PRIORITY FOR

CEMENTOS ARGOS, IT BECOME A VALUE, BECAUSE

PRIORITIES CHANGE, BUT VALUES REMAIN.
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Employees’ and contractors’ lost time incident frequency and severity rate consolidated report

Work accidents frequency rate

Work accidents severity rate

Colombia Caribbean United States TOTAL Colombia Caribbean United States TOTAL
and Central America and Central America
8 120 [
r 100 [
6 s F e 84
s+
60 [

4
3 40 O 36.59

® 2.54 ® 25.19
b 9%%9 20 [ ® 16.52

® 138
1 0

2013 2014 2015 Meta 2016 2013 2014 2015 Meta 2016
Colombia CoNEEER G United States TOTAL Measurement unit
Central America
Lost time incident Number of lost See GR Table
; R 0.7 0.00 ND 0.58 time incidents per Total accidents
requency rate 1,000,000 hours and absent
days 2014

Number of lost
Severity rate 10.43 0.00 ND 8.66 days per

1,000,000 hours

Colombia Region

THE | PROMISE PROJECT HAS SHOWN US THE IMPORTANCE OF SAFETY
AND WORKING AS A TEAM. ONE STRATEGIC COMMITTEE, FOUR
TACTICAL COMMITTEES AND 15 OPERATING COMMITTEES FROM 13
COUNTRIES, ALONG WITH THEIR SIX SUBCOMMITTEES PER DISCIPLINE,
MEET EVERY MONTH TO ALIGN AND IMPLEMENT OH&S STRATEGIES.

Consolidated Reports

2015 2015 Goal 2016 Goal
Frequency  Severity Frequency Severity Frequency Severity
Colombia 2.18 25.18 3.37 32.92 2.54 25.19
Caribbean and Central America 1.59 26.51 1.71 16.52 1.38 16.52
United States 2.20 97.49 1.33 56.00 1.8 84
Total Argos 211 36.59 2.78 33.59 2.19 36.59
THANKS TO |

One of our seven principles is “Be the example, you have the right to speak loud.” It

means that any person in our organization can stop work if he/she believes that it is not PROMISE PROJ ECT,

being done in a safe manner. This evidences our commitment to everybody's safety and WE INTEGRATE

the importance of the empowerment of each of the company’s members in this regard. OPERATIONS IN OUR
THREE REGIONS.

Our management approach

Innovation in Cementos Argos spreads to the industrial safety and occupational health
governance structure (OH&S), through which we promote the safety culture transversally
involving about 1,000 people in the three regions by multidisciplinary work teams.

O OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
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OH&S Central Committee

A

dvisor: Raul Salgado, OH&S Manager

Leader
= Jorge Mario Velasquez | CEO

Members
= Colombia Vice President m Vice President of Caribbean = Vice President of Legal = Vice President of Talent m Vice President
Tomas Restrepo and Central America Region and institutional Affairs Jorge Ignacio Acevedo of Sustainability
Corporate Mauricio Ossa Juan Luis Munera Occupational Health Maria Isabel Echeverri
= Technical Vice President Occupational Accidents Risk Management = Vice President Corporate
Victor M. Lizarralde Investigation = Vice President of the of Finance
Operating Discipline m Vice President of Innovation United States Region Carlos Horacio Yusty
Camilo Restrepo Eric Flesch Corporate
I Contractors’ Management | Promise to observe I
Leader Leader Leader Leader Leader Leader
Victor Lizarralde Mauricio Ossa Eric Flesch Juan Luis Miinera Jorge Ignacio Acevedo Camilo Restrepo
Corporate Caribbean and Central The United States Corporate Corporate Corporate

AmericaAmerica

Our work starts from the senior management

of the company with OH&S Central Committee,
which consists of the president and the nine vice
presidents who define and supply documentary
evidence of strategies. They lead six disciplines:
accident investigation and analysis, | promise to
observe, operating discipline, risks, contractors
and occupational health management.

Each area has its own standards, rules and
procedures developed in the different operating

units of the company.

One of the members of each subcommittee
leads, in turn, a Tactical Subcommittee that
reports to the OH&S Central Committee. At the

same time, there is a group

of 43 operations that

report information to the corresponding Tactical
Committee. This way, the communication chain
is clear and fluent and the system is sound.

RAISING OUR EMPLOYEES’
AWARENESS IS ESSENTIAL

TO PROMOTE THE

SELF-

CARE CULTURE IN THE
GLOBAL ORGANIZATION.

[0 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
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OH&S in the Roberta Plant, United States Region

As the senior management of the
company is fully aware of OHS aspects
there is enough leadership and
credibility to improve safety. Each one
of the subcommittees meets every
month for a minimum of two hours,
according to an annual calendar
previously defined. There are 44
meeting hours per year and one of

our purposes is to dedicate at least
80 hours per year to safety. There are
records written after each committee
meetings, all of which are previously
prepared to monitor compliance.

This collaborative work allows a
definition of strategies, allocation of
resources and implementation.



Employees in our Sogamoso Plant, Colombia Region

We currently go into the field to record

safety conditions and to reinforce positive
behaviors and to draw attention to negative
behaviors. This work has been facilitated by our
employees. There were 40,510 observations
conducted in 2015 and 60,000 observations
are expected for 2016. This allowed us to
identify and correct safety deviations to avoid
lost time accidents.

At the same time, we develop tools of

communication, risk management, qualified
personnel, accident investigation, emergency

Performance indicators

preparedness and audits, all of which
with the purpose of consolidating
our position as a leading company in
terms of occupational health

and safety.

One hundred percent of our
employees in the three regions are
currently represented by different
occupational health and safety
committees. There we deal with
issues such as the identification of
risks that might generate injuries

For 2015, we endeavored to reduce the accident frequency rate by 30 percent
as compared to the 2014 result, a goal that we reached with a reduction
of 47.5 percent. This shows that we are going in the right direction and invites

us to accelerate our management.

We have improved in terms of international safety standards, on the basis of the culture
perception survey conducted by the DuPont firm, going from a score of 59 points in 2013
to 70 points in 2015, which sets us closer to the best world practice of 80 points.

In addition, we have made progress in the updating and standardization of procedures
and formats to manage occupational health and safety. We now have more than
40 performance indicators designed to timely assess and modify processes for our

employees’ well-being.

or diseases in all the company’s
activities and facilities, delivery of
personal protective equipment and
the participation of employees in the
promotion and prevention actions;
these aspects are recorded in the
Labor Regulations. Likewise,
100 percent of the collective
agreements include a specific
chapter related to industrial safety
and occupational health policy.

WE HAVE 40
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS FOR THE
COMPANY’S HEALTH
AND SAFETY
ASSESSMENT,
CORRECTION

AND INNOVATION.

O OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
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Occupational risks management
We have corporate systems of epidemiological
monitoring for diseases related to the
productive activity with three priorities: noise,
breathable dust and biomechanical risk. We
also have procedures to monitor, control and
mitigate the occupational risk in employees who

establish action plans. Likewise, as
a way of prevention, our employees
use high-quality personal protective
equipment such as high efficiency
respirators for PM, safety glasses,
helmets, gloves, reflective garments

supplemented by risk mitigation

or control programs, both in the
equipment and the environment.
Employees who are exposed to
these risks undergo regular medical
check-ups.

are exposed. and hearing protectors. This is
Our work starts with the noise and particulate
matter (PM) measurement to identify areas

where permissible levels are exceeded and to

OUR ACTION PLANS PREVENT DISEASES RELATED
TO NOISE, DUST AND BIOMEDICAL RISK.

XS] Type and rate of injuries, occupational diseases, lost days, absenteeism, and number of work-related
fatalities, broken down by region and sex

Employees
Measurement
unit
Colombia 86 76 90 41
Number of work-related Caribbean and Central America 5 5 10 5 Cases
accidents
United States 17 12 12 17
Colombia 1,451 1,520 969 462
Days absent due to Caribbean and Central America 249 7 69 104 Days
work-related accidents
United States 852 319 502 754
Colombia 4 7 5 10
Number of cases of Caribbean and Central America N/A N/A N/A ° Cases
occupational disease
United States N/A N/A N/A N/A
Colombia 21 117 0 147
Days absent due to Caribbean and Central America N/A N/A N/A V] Days
occupational disease
United States N/A N/A N/A N/A
Colombia 4,517 4,743 5,486 4,644
Number of short/long-term
disability cases due Caribbean and Central America N/A N/A N/A 76 Cases
to common iliness United States N/A N/A N/A N/A
Colombia 16,608 19,118 18,215 20,754
Days of short/long
term disabilities due Caribbean and Central America N/A N/A N/A 585 Days
to common iliness United States N/A N/A N/A N/A
Colombia 10,954,632 14,683,741 13,863,459 14,086,050
Total hours worked Caribbean and Central America 2,740,653 3,255,391 4,459,372 2,874,077 Hours
United States 5,616,031 5,789,987 6,666,279 7,252,270

[0 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
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[(X5B1 Contractors

2012 2013 2014 2015

Colombia 88 53 72 37
Number Caribbean and Central America 5 3 5 5
of work-related accidents

United States 0 0 0 V]

Colombia 1,082 784 612 437
Days absent due Caribbean and Central America 72 22 76 63
to work-related accidents

United States 0 0 0 (1}

Colombia 17,276,400 17,613,360 19,758,597 21,614,822
Total hours worked Caribbean and Central America 1,174,565 1,395,167 1,686,202 3,426,210
by the collective contractors

United States N/A N/A 527,118 481,518

2015 2014 2015

TOTAL The Caribbean United
TOTAL Colombia and Central TOTAL

0 States
America
Colombia 8,935
Total number Employees’ . . o o .
Of_ contractors Caribbean and fatalities
It is also understood as total Central America 1,430
number of the suppliers’ Contractors’ ) o 0 o .
kers in th ti iti
workers in the operation United States 240 fatalities
Third parties’
Total number of Colombia 8,935 f?talltles .rtgsid_ents
contractors on which gorf:;ng;?:fu:g 9 6 N/A N/A 6
occupational health and facilities visitors and
safety measurement and Caribbean and 1.430 other stakeholders
: Y
monitoring are conducted Central America
It is also understood as total
number of the suppliers’
workers in the operation United States 240 See GRI Table
Total accidents and absent days in 2014, Colombia Region
Employees whose occupation has
a disease incidence or high risk One hundred percent of our employees are
trained on occupational health and safety
2015 issues. The following aspects are highlighted

_ n these training provesses: emergency plans,

communication of risks, personal protective

Colombia 10 X . .
Number of | equipment, hazardous materials, materials
umber of employees . X . i
e ploye Caribbean handling, electrical hazards, prevention
with incidence or high and Central America 8 ] )
risk of work-related disease of occupational and common iliness, and
United States N/A prevention for working at heights, workplace

order and cleanliness, among others.
Caribbean and Central America: Information from Dominican Republic and Haiti. (These values

were taken from the 2015 medical surveillance measurement, based on the spirometry (CSI - Employee Health and Safety)
and audiometry tests with unusual finding).

In the process of identification of the main occupational disease risks we find the highest

incidence in those related to musculoskeletal problems, respiratory diseases and hearing loss.

Given this situation, we decided to implement epidemiological monitoring systems for each 0 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
of these risks, as well as a common ilinesses preventive program, with the involvement of all

employees and contractors.

Social dimension



Regions and Technical Vice-presidency management

The OH&S structure is reflected in each of the region through
the four tactical central committees, led by the Technical vice
president, Victor Lizarralde and each region vice president: Eric
Flesh in the United States; Tomas Restrepo in Colombia and

Mauricio Ossa in the Caribbean and Central America region All
of them are supported by a primary group and they dedicate
certain time every month exclusively to discuss and address
issues related to safety and health.

Mississippi !

Alabama

THE | PROMISE

Arkansas
North
Texas & Carolina \
‘South

Virginia '_‘ The United States Region

It is worthwhile to acknowledge the operation and its
employees in our Newberry plant in Florida, an operation
without incidents in the last ten years, a benchmark of

good industrial safety and occupational health practices.

Carolina
Georgia
In addition, the region has two directors of Industrial

Safety and Occupational Health, one for concrete and
the other for cement, who support the implementation of
OH&S Policies and the | Promise programs.

Florida

PROJECT HELPED
US TO |NTEGRATE Puerto Rico
OPERATIONS _— - S pp——
IN THE COUNTRIES Haiti-pominican s Antigua
AND TERRITORIES & ~— Dominica
WHERE WE OPERATE.

, ~— Curacao

iSuriname

Caribbean and Central
America Region

Its geographic and cultural

diversity make industrial safety and
occupational health management
to be a challenge. For this reason,
we have undertaken to optimize
this performance seeking that each
country, regardless of its social or
legal development, complies with
the company OH&S Policy so that all
people return home safely.

An occupational health and safety
director was appointed as a result of
this strengthening. Its mission is to
strengthen the OH&S management
in each country and to manage the
information therein set forth.

[0 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
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7

Panama

%

Colombia

N

French
Guiana

Colombia Region

We lowered the accident frequency rate in Colombia by 54.77 percent going from
4.82 to 2.18 between 2014 and 2015. This means that the 162 injury incidents
in 2014 were lowered to 78 in 2015. We now have operations that exceed five
years without work related incidents, which represents a great achievement for
the Colombia culture and context and it becomes a driver to continue working for
our employees and contractors’ health and safety. We are a benchmark of good
practices in the country.

On the other hand, we expanded our team structure in 2015 by appointing an
occupational health and safety director who supports all the country’s operations,
and an occupational health doctor as leader of occupational health. She is
responsible for the prevention of occupational diseases and makes plans for the
control of general ilinesses.



Technical Vice-presidency
In 2015, the Technical vice
president trained two of its
engineers as occupational health
and safety multipliers and appointed
a full time leader to support the
management and implement action
plans to avoid injuries and accidents
in the construction projects led

by this vice-presidency. Likewise,
aspects of the health and safety
system were included in its different
stages of basic engineering,

detail engineering, execution and
commissioning of equipment or the
new facility.

WE STRIVE FOR A SAFER WORLD. WE WANT TO
TRANSCEND SO THAT OUR EMPLOYEES’ SAFETY
BECOMES A REALITY IN OUR OPERATIONS,

AT HOME, IN THE FAMILY AND COMMUNITY.

We underline the generation of the culture
of care, essential for safe working. It plays
a key role in accidents prevention since it
involves a number of skills that allow our
employees to make the right decisions
regarding the risks and to develop safe
habits for their co-workers and their own
safety and health.

Future

perspective

H To strengthen the governance

structure in OH&S.

M To close the performance gaps
of the occupational health and
safety operations.

To ensure compliance with the
procedures that save lives (working
at heights, hot work, confined spaces,
equipment transportation, working
with harmful energy and personal

protective equipment

procedures).

To set up the Amatia platform.

To progressively reduce the number
of incidents, seeking to become
a benchmark in the safety and

health sector.

To have a unified management
system to keep OH&S results

in the long run.

N
il |

Employee in our Puerto Rico Plant, the Caribbean and Central America Region

O OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
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O Talent management

Talent attraction,

development and retention

Talent management is one of our priorities. Talent
allows us to achieve organizational goals and the
development of our employees. The actions we carry
out about our work practices, and the attraction,
retention and development of human talent are based
on Global Compact principles, respect for the laws and
regulations of the countries where we operate, in our
talent management, diversity and inclusion, gender
equality, human rights policies, and on the pillars of
our corporate culture. In line with this approach and in
order to reach the organization’s strategic priorities, we
seek to strengthen our identity as a company based on
respect for diversity. To do this, we focus on the respect,
relevance and leadership corporate pillars.

The Educa training model, along with the Performance
Management Program (PGD, by its Spanish acronym)

and the promotion of healthy work environments are
some of the most important tools we have implemented
for the management and promotion of the employees’
development, which allow us to respond to the challenges
of the coming decade.

Employee
turnover rate

New hires per
gender by percent

o

'||'83-17% 2015 | S 11.05%
2014 |p 11.03%
2013 [p 9.50%
2012 |p 9.28%
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Operational
level
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Specialist
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Director
level

3.31%

Managerial = Executive

1.40%
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DIVERSITY IS OUR MOST VALUABLE

ASSET THAT, BASED ON OUR DIFFERENCES,
ALLOWS US TO BUILD AN INCLUSIVE
COMPANY WITH CREATIVE POTENTIAL.

Employees broken down by age

11.19%
28.08%

24.23%
5.70%

M Younger than 30 years

I Between 30 and 40 years
Between 40 and 50 years

Hl Between 50 and 60 years

[l Between 60 and 70 years

M Older than 70 years

Men and women broken down by employment status
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= Development of our talent

Educa combines online, face-to-face and mixed learning to incorporate specific
and cross-training into the entire organization. Since the beginning in 2013, the
program has shown that geographical and language barriers may be overcome
through a structured training model. This is carried out by a method that allows
for the identification of training needs, from the development of business
variables through human talent improvement.

Educa was launched in Haiti, St. Maarten, St. Thomas, Antigua and Dominica

in 2015. By having this platform in these geographical areas we not only reach
our employees with courses in English and Spanish, but we also officially
implemented the Educa platform in French and Creole. We expect to launch the
program in Suriname and French Guiana in 2016. In addition, for personnel
with low literacy levels, we redesigned orientation modules to adapt them using
a simpler language and without text, totally narrated in English and Creole.

In 2015 we taught 39,972 hours of online training and had 512,376 hours of
face-to-face training, 12 percent more than in 2014.

[ZXTH] Average number of hours of annual
training per employee, broken down
by employment status

2012 2013 2014

Number of training hours

Nivel 1: Executive 372 325 5,213 1,246
Nivel 2: Managerial 2,807 6,271 13,326 12,055
Nivel 3: Director 15,232 35,575 30.628 35,481
Nivel 4: Specialists 55,523 125,658 196,787 193,018
Nivel 5: Operational 80,012 218,023 246,230 310,547
TOTAL 153,946 385,852 492,184 552,348

In partnership with the Georgia Institute of Technology (Georgia Tech) we
provided training processes to 47 employees in the three regions that were
involved in the supply chain course in order to strengthen the supply chain,
create synergies and projects among the regions with value adding.

In addition, in the United States, through our partnership with the University
of California, Berkeley (UC Berkeley), we exclusively developed the
Leadership for Equality course with the participation of 55 women from the
Argos corporate group (35 of them belong to Cementos Argos). The course
seeks to strengthen their leadership skills and analyze the importance of
women’s role in the corporate world and how they can lead the change. In
partnership with this institution, the members of our board of directors and
steering committee were also trained on how to strengthen managerial and
negotiation strategies skills.

BY 2015, 96 OF OUR EMPLOYEES
HAVE TAKEN GRADUATE
CERTIFICATION COURSES,
MASTER’S DEGREES OR
DOCTORATE DEGREES IN
COLOMBIA AND ABROAD WITH
THE COMPANY’S SUPPORT.

In addition, we offer our employees with
development opportunities. We validate the talent
potential through identification methodologies.
Likewise, this year we highlight the implementation
of the Development Road maps model by the vice
president of innovation, methodology which allows
us to visualize different ways of promotion and
development for employees within Argos. For next
year, we expect to implement this methodology in
other areas of the organization.

In order to manage performance, knowledge

and to consequently promote our employees’
development, Argos encourages international
mobility with the possibility of working in different
countries where we operate. This method also
gives employees the opportunity to learn about
different traditions and cultures and allows
broadening work concepts and methodologjes.
This year, 26 employees took part in the
International Mobility Program.

(G4-LA11)
Performance

4 and development
4 assessment

(G4-LA12)
Government
4 bodies

Talent
Management

2| Policy
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Employment equality

Thanks to the organization’s decisive process of cultural
transformation, we make a positive impact on the work
environment while we promote diversity, inclusion and
equal opportunities principles. Convinced that diversity
adds value and that it is needed to generate conditions
and relations to contribute to the improvement of

our employees’ quality of life, we have implemented
sustainable labor practices, which were acknowledged in
Colombia by the Ministry of Labor with the support of the
Office of the Presidential Adviser on Equality for Women
and the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP),
being awarded with the “Implementation of Actions for
Equality” Silver Class of the Equipares Label.

WE HAVE 55 FEMALE CONCRETE
MIXER TRUCK DRIVERS IN COLOMBIA
AND THE UNITED STATES.

This label is part of the label community for Gender
Equality in Latin America, led by the regional United
Nations Development Programme. This recognition
reasserts us as a social innovation benchmark, where
men and women find equal opportunities.

Based on our Diversity and Inclusion Policy, we are
working on issues such as cultural adaptability, work-life
balance, reinstatement and gender equality. Our goal

is to have posts held according to skills, regardless of
gender. This can be illustrated by female drivers who
drive concrete mixer trucks and male personnel who
work in secretarial positions in Colombia. We promote
actions that represent significant progress in terms of

Female concrete mixer truck driver, Colombia Region

equity such as telecommuting, an option that seeks Furthermore, we are an international benchmark in terms of

to provide balance between personal and work life and gender equality, and we were invited to explain our developments
the incorporation of inclusive language within in Panama, El Salvador and Chile. We are now signatories of the
our communications. United Nations Global Compact in the Women’s Empowerment

Principles chapter.

WE SEEK FOR COMPETITIVE

. COMPENSATION IN THE

f "4 management hired DIFFERENT MARKETS, THUS

rom the local community at

significant locations of operation. ENSURING OUR BUSINESS
SUSTAINABILITY.

(G4-LA13)

Comparison bet-

d ween women and
men’s base salary, broken
down by position
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Corporate culture and quality of life

The seven pillars of organizational culture
were deployed through activities that are part
of the All Aboard strategy, which reinforced
the message “It is what is inside that counts.”
The goal of the All Aboard strategy was to
consolidate Argos’ corporate culture and
leadership style, as well as generating a
commitment from employees to do their best
every day and to comply with the strategic
priorities we have set as a company.

The All Aboard event reached more countries

in 2015. At the Caribbean and Central America
Region, it was carried out in Honduras, Antigua,
Dominica, St. Thomas and Puerto Rico, and a
total of 185 employees attended. Four more
events were held at the United States Region,
where 604 people attended. In total, we held
nine All Aboard events and the total number of
participants was 789.

CONCRETOS ARGOS
RANKED FOURTH IN
THE GREAT PLACES
TO WORK 2015 LIST,
AMONG THE BEST
COMPANIES TO WORK
FOR IN COLOMBIA*.

*IN THE COMPANIES WITH OVER
500 EMPLOYEES CATEGORY.

[EXT®] In tune with the framework of talent
management policy and the culture pillars, we
offer a portfolio of benefits, differentiated by
country, which allows our employees to increase
their satisfaction, time spent with their families
and quality of life.

Programs such as special hours, benefits

after maternity leave, proximity work, health,
recreation and sports programs, and extralegal
benefits (health plan, savings plan, life
insurance, among others) motivate employees
to exceed the company's goals, to recognize

the achievement of corporate goals and
help promote a balance between work and
personal life.

In 2015, we implemented in Colombia

the gradual return to work of employees
who were still breastfeeding. After their
maternity leave, mothers return to work on
a part-time basis during the first week, and
then increase one hour each week until
they reach a full-time workday minus one
hour over the course of the first year. By
law, nursing mothers in Colombia return
from maternity leave and must fulfill a full
workday minus one hour for breastfeeding
during the six months following the end of
said maternity leave.

It is also worth mentioning that in 2015
we were recognized in Colombia by

the Ministry of Labor and the Ministry
of Information and Communications
Technologjes as a leading company in
the country in terms of telecommuting.
In 2015, 84 employees worked under
this modality. Telecommuting joins other
quality-of-life-at-work practices that
produce benefits such as increasing
productivity, reducing stress, saving time
and travel expenses, and supporting the
mobility plans of the cities where

we operate.

We develop work relationships under
conditions of respect, equality and fair
treatment. We promote dialog among

our employees and management, and

we receive feedback through different
internal communication mechanisms. We
respect the right to freedom of association
or not, and to establish collective work
negotiations in accordance with the law.
Throughout the year, 64 percent of our
employees participated in the Performance
Management program. As well, the
Evaluation 360° corporate strategy was
carried out with vice presidents and
managers in the three regions by their
supervisors, peers and subordinates.

WE ARE THE
SEVENTH BEST
COMPANY AT
ATTRACTING AND
RETAINING TALENT
ACCORDING TO
THE 2015 MERCO
TALENTO COLOMBIA
RANKING. WE
CLIMBED TWO
SPOTS ON THE
LIST SINCE 2014.

Future
perspective

Hl We are aware of the
importance of preparing
our new employees to face
business challenges and
to reach new goals, so we
will continue to strengthen
our Educa training model
by broadening the available
educational offers according
to the company's needs,
and with special emphasis
in virtual training.
We will expand the
performance management
scope in order to cover 85
percent of our employees
across different levels of
the company,
We will aim for the 360°
evaluation to cover 80 percent
of the posts in middle and
senior management, thus
increasing the base that has
been evaluated so far.

We will strengthen our Pillars
of Culture across the different
geographic locations where
we operate.

O TALENT MANAGEMENT
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O Community engagement

Direct, close and permanent
relationships with neighboring communities
ensure their continuity as well as the fulfillment
of our promise of value: to be good neighbors
and to contribute to the local influential
communities, while endeavoring to be an actor
that adds to social harmony and contributes

to their development. In the specific cases

of the regions Colombia and the Caribbean
and Central America, we have a team of
professionals dedicated exclusively to ensuring

GOOD RELATIONSHIPS

WITH COMMUNITIES ARE

A PILLAR OF OUR STRATEGIC
SUSTAINABILITY PRIORITIES;
THEY ARE CRUCIAL TO
ENSURING THE STABILITY
OF OUR BUSINESS IN

THE SHORT, MEDIUM

AND LONG TERM.

Beneficiary of community management, Colombia

the continuity of these relationships,
directly addressing any concerns or
complaints that may arise regarding
the operation, and proposing and
executing initiatives aimed at
preventing, mitigating and offsetting
the negative impacts the operation
may generate.

Delivery of school kits, Honduras, Caribbean and Central America

Integrated report 2015

We know that industrial activities
have impacts, both positive and
negative, that affect the daily

life of the groups where we have
settled. Our operations generate
direct and indirect quality jobs,
productive chains that energize local
economies as well as local, regional
and national tax contributions
that leverage the development

of the communities. Additionally,
considering that the emission of
PM, noise and vibrations, as well
as the increase of heavy load
traffic are byproducts of the life
cycle of our products that can

be inconvenient, we pay special
attention to preventing, mitigating
and/or correcting them when the
aforementioned measures are
not enough.

(G4-MM6)
Number and
description of

i significant dispute

resolutions related to the
use of land, customary rights
of local communities and
indigenous peoples.




Our management approach

Community management is becoming increasingly important across
the company's diverse operations. We currently have a corporate
division that designs strategies and standardizes goals and lines of
work for all three regions.

Based on socio-economic profiles, the application of a risk model

of community interactions and the identification of local actors, we
acquired detailed knowledge of the areas where we operate, which
enables us to intervene in a manner that is adequate and relevant to
local contexts and the impacts we cause.

The main mechanism for complaints is through local teams,
because we favor face-to-face contact and closeness with our
various communities. We also have a Transparency Line, which
has a communities category. In 2014, complaints were recorded
for the Colombia Region only, but as of 2015 we began to receive
complaints for the Caribbean and Central America Region as

well. The communities category has 12 subcategories which were
created based on the most recurrent complaints, and they refer to
environmental effects (water, noise, air, vibrations, visual), mobility
impairment, effects or damage to private/public property, road
safety, failure to fulfill commitments, illegal mining, and invasion
of land, among others. In order to see the information for the
indicator [ZEXEER, (Number of complaints regarding social impacts
that have been submitted, addressed and resolved through
formal complaint mechanisms), please refer to the chapter on
Governance, Ethics and Transparency.

In 2015 we analyzed the relationship practices at each of the
regions and we identified the strengths that could be replicated in

Operations facilities with real
or potential significant negative impacts
on the local communities

Risks and impacts associated
to road safety.

Actual 6

Damages or effects to private property,
issues associated with road safety.

Caribbean and Central America

Damages or effects to private property,
issues associated with road safety.

Potential 6

Potential 3

Nota: United States information not reported.

other areas, as well as the opportunities for improvement,
based on the acknowledgment of and respect for local
contexts.

Based on this, we are now working on building a
comprehensive and inclusive policy for processes and
procedures that take into account the particular aspects of
each region and sub-region within our areas of influence.

During this same period, we updated the risk matrices
for the Colombia Region and for operations in Honduras,
Panama, the Dominican Republic and Haiti for the
business lines of cement, concrete and aggregates.

The most frequent risk at both regions and in the three
business lines is accidents, the main causes of which are
the number of heavy-load vehicles from our operations
that circulate on the roads and, in some areas, lack of
infrastructure and poor driving etiquette.

=T Percentage of facilities where development, impact evaluation and local community participation

programs have been implemented

Cement
Colombia: 9 plants

1Y |

100%

H Relationship and community
development programs
Voluntary initiatives

55%

Caribbean and Central America: 1 plants

Clinker grinding

Caribbean and Central America:

1S,

100% 5 grinding mills

100% I 0%
United States: total 3 ) o } 100% of our facilities

100% United Stat;;.o/s grinding mills have relationship

100% I 33% . and community

100% development programs.
Concrete Ports/terminals
Colombia: 27 plants Colombia: 1 port
37% 100%
50% 0%

Caribbean and Central America: 9 plants

I 33%

100%
United States: NA

Note 3: There are no clinker grinding mills in Colombia

United States: NA

Note 1: Only fixed plants were considered for concrete | Nota 2: Only active grinding mills were considered

Caribbean and Central America: 11 puertos

63%
100%
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Performance indicators

In order to fulfill the commitment we made in 2014 to
establish educational impact indicators, in 2015 we
carried out an evaluation together with the University

of los Andes through which we collected qualitative and
quantitative information at institutions intervened by the
Argos Colombia Foundation.

The goals were as follows:

B To identify, from the perception of those involved,
the impact of our interventions on indicators of school
environment, coexistence, pedagogical practices,
performance of teachers and students, and the
relationship between them and the community
in general.

Lines of investment

B To determine the causal impact that Argos has had on the
educational infrastructure in terms of variables such as access
to school and attendance, quality of education (understood as
standardized tests) and access to higher education.

Similarly, we developed an application together with the University
of Antioquia to keep track of information, with indicators

for infrastructure and quality of education, and we started
implementing the Regional Educational Infrastructure Census (CIER
for its Spanish acronym) instrument, donated by the Inter-American
Development Bank.

The goal is to find out about the condition of the educational
infrastructure in our areas of influence in order to prioritize

and make decisions related to investment, and managing and
monitoring the existing infrastructure.

The established lines of investment, which are applied according to actual or potential damages derived from our operations
and whose goals are related to building relationships and contributing to development, are: education, housing, community
infrastructure, community strengthening, productive projects, social and cultural strengthening, and sponsorships.

In 2015, some of the impacts achieved by participating in initiatives related to infrastructure were:

Development and impact of investment in infrastructure and types of services

Impacted

P
rogram People

Region

Invested Resources

billion billion

Improvement, construction

Better physical spaces with
adequate provisions for

and provision of educational 20,230 Three regions Education 8.9 2.8 ) :
children to study in good

infrastructure conditions

Improvement, maintenance and/ Better roads, public and

or construction of public parks Infras- i

h public parks, 117,686 Three regions o0 141 4.5 Community spaces that
roads, bridges, tructure promote enjoyment and
community halls community gatherings
L Better, healthier and safer
Housing improvements and Colombia and spaces to inhabit (own
construction. Preferential pricin i i
p g 37,503 Caribbean and Housing 353 11.2 investment)

on products for the improvement

and construction of housing. regions

Results by region

mapping and rating of stakeholders
in all operations

B Creation of structured spaces and
communication and feedback
newsletter for local communities

United States Region
W Relationships with local
communities headed by
the director or manager of each operation
B Implementation of the sustainability program
that includes aspects of community relations
B Recoghnition of relationship practices,
identification of strengths and opportunities,

O COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
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Central America

around the Harleyville and
Roberta plants

Colombia Region

Better opportunities to
purchase or improve housing
through preferential pricing

organized social base and the
capacity to manage programs for
its development

 The involvement of communities in
the development of infrastructure
works and the creation of
spaces for citizen oversight
and socialization enabled us to
strengthen relationships with our
neighbors

m Along the line of community
infrastructure, we can highlight five
road improvements, construction

= Our leadership
training programs
have allowed us to
have a more



) Classification of Contributions
Caribbean

and Central

of four playgrounds and linking of four
projects related to the availability and

quality of potable water America Region
. . 549
B Focus of investment in
In educational infrastructure: the lines established at
0

= Through the Argos Foundation, in the corporate level L%

Colombia we completed thirteen projects ® Consolidation of the healthy floors

and initiated a few others related to the program in Honduras and the Dominican e . L

improvement and/or construction of Republic B Commerclal Initiatives

P P with social impact

public education infrastructure B In Honduras we installed 30,378 square COP 40.1 billion
m We enlisted 18 public and private allies meters of flooring in 1,045 homes, USD 12.7 million

for the development of these projects which improved the lives of 4,384 .

. o ) Community investment

= In 2015 we put out the second open call people; in the Dominican Republic we COP 33.3 billion

for the Argos Scholarship Program for improved 84 homes USD 10.6 million

Regional Development, through which B We expanded the coverage of the basic ;

) o . . ) o H Donaciones

35 new students received scholarships; training scholarship program in Haiti in COP 1.1 billion

additionally, the program expanded its order to increase the productive capacity USD 0.4 million

action to Honduras, where two recipients of the youths in the area

will be granted scholarships in 2016

Revenue associated with social impact commercial initiatives

This category includes the initiatives that, while they represent revenue for the company, also
constitute benefits for the population at the base of the pyramid, which translates to greater
access to and improvement of housing through preferential pricing on our products.

2015 Revenues

Colombia B?Ignps Millions
100,000 Homes Program: Preferential pricing on cement and Futu re
concrete for legally incorporated builders who build the homes of 13.5 4.3 "
the Colombia government's 100,000 free homes program pers peCtlve
LIH Project: Preferential pricing on cement for legally incorporated 589 187 B We will standardize management
builders who participate in Colombia's Low Income Housing program ) ’ (e et EeCE e i
communities in each of the countries
Construya: This program finances housing improvements and where we operate in accordance
expansions; it was created by Argos to serve the non-banking with operational structures
population in social stratas 1 and 2. The loans can be used to 2.7 0.9 We will enhance management
purchase cement and any other construction material or tool at the processes in the United States
depots and hardware stores registered with Construya* Region with actions that will
community and mitigate our risks
National Cement: Cement sold to the State of Honduras, with 08 31 and impacts
preferential pricing, for social investment and development programs We will implement a socio-
economic footprint index to
Habitat for Humanity Agreement: Cement sold to Habitat for T G (e G e
Humanity Honduras with a special discount for the development of low 0.8 0.3 s ol vl e e
income housing projects carried out in Honduras direct or indirect relationships
Haiti Remittance Project: Cement sold through the remittance 0.05 0.0 We will strengthen our public and
marketing channel in Haiti [PAvELD T EilE
We will standardize our methods for
Ceilings of Hope (Techos de Esperanza) Project: Preferential processing complaints and concerns
pricing for the Panamanian Ministry of Housing in order to carry out 1.2 0.4 at our three regions.
social investment programs related to housing
Total 87 27.6

*In 2015, the loans added up to COP 9,081,437,370, 30 percent of which were allocated to the purchase of cement.
O COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
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Investments

United States

Region

COP 217 Million

USD 69,021

Caribbean and
Central America

Region

., COP 4,779
. Million

USD 1,517,425

Colombia

Region

COP 69,459 miillion

USD 22 million

COP 74,456

million
USD 23.6 million

Our social investment in 2015 was
32 percent higher than in 2014.

Number of Volunteer hours
volunteers in during work hours in
2014: 1,105 2014: 649

2015: 1,102 2015: 2,905

M Beneficiaries and contributions by line of investment

(R RRRRRRRRR]

Total beneficiaries
of social investment
programs in 2015

562,335

I

Education/quality

18,632

COP 3,717 billion

D3 L

Education/
infrastructure

21,077

COP 8,920 billion

42,873

COP 2,587 billion

Social and cultural
strengthening

36,108

COP 3,611 billion

USD 1.2 million USD 2.8 million USD 0.8 million USD 1.1 million
"p‘ =0 4
. 5 ]
Community ©
infrastructure Sponsorships Production projects Housing Others

117,686

COP 14,128 billion
USD 4.5 million

m Integrated report 2015

9,730

COP 3,493 billion
USD 1.1 million

570

COP 0.3 billion
USD 0.1 million

37,503

COP 35,304 billion
USD 11.2 million

278,156

COP 2,390 billion
USD 0.7 million



TO INNOVATE IS T

TO BELIEVE IN TOMORROW ¢

Self-compacting concrete wall, Argos Center for Innovation, Medellin, Colombia

ENVIRONMENTAL
DIMENSION




Our environmental performance

Managing our impact on the planet is one of our main priorities
on the road to sustainability.

Our environmental actions promote eco-efficiency,
manage biodiversity, reduce effects on climate change, promote
initiatives related to sustainable construction, and establish

an organizational culture that promotes the responsible use

of natural resources as a function of the quality of life of our
stakeholders and in compliance with our environmental policy.

As of 2015, we can say with utter certainty that our
environmental management goes beyond identifying and
monitoring environmental impacts, and that it is evolving well

towards the prevention, mitigation, correction and offset thereof.

We are also working on extending good practices along the
entire production chain, on fulfilling all legal requirements and
commitments made to national and international agencies we

belong to, and on community co-management and
self-management in the regions where we operate.

Among the results of our management, we can highlight that by
the end of 2015 our emissions were 601 kg of CO,, per ton of
cementitious material, which is 29 percent of our goal for 2025.

Additionally, the substitution of fossil fuels reached 6.1 percent,
water abstraction was reduced by 7.8 percent, PM indices
decreased by 18.3 percent, and the percentage of liberated
areas that have been rehabilitated reached 72.7 percent.

We work together with our employees, the communities and
governments of the countries where we operate, and with
associated environmental agencies.

All our management work has been included in the
information dissemination schemes and is part of corporate
training programs.

3 Energy and co-processing rmm

As an organization that uses caloric
and electric energy intensively,
achieving greater efficiency in their
use throughout the production process
is our constant pursuit.

This is why our energy policy seeks to
minimize the consumption of energy

in our operations, in order to bolster

the company's competitiveness and to
minimize risks. It is an exercise consistent

with our commitments to our stakeholders.

Additionally, through innovation we can
build an efficient and inclusive energy
model in which the use of alternative fuels
is essential. Using fuels other than fossil

IN 2015 WE REACHED

fuels is an opportunity for the cement industry.

By means of co-processing we are moving A FOSSIL SUBSTITUTION
forward in the pursuit of replacing coal and RATE OF 6.1 PERCENT
other fossil fuels with tires, plastic and other BY USING ALTERNATIVE

unconventional supplies.

FUELS AND BIOMASS,
By optimizing energy efficiency and replacing WHICH REPRESENTED
fossil fuels with alternative fuels, we are also AN INCREASE

contributing to reducing the intensity of our CO, FROM 2014.
emissions during the production process.

Our commitments by 2025 are to decrease
our caloric consumption by 10 percent and
our electricity consumption by 15 percent, with
the year 2012 as the baseline. We are also
seeking to substitute 18 percent of the caloric o :

] i ) ] rird#-41 Environmental
consumption of fossil fuels with alternative fuels. ;

and Energy

Energy performance and co-processing

Likewise, our consumption of caloric energy in

[ (A-ENE1) |
Substitution of fossil caloric

our kilns was 3.86 GJ per ton of clinker, while the
consumption of specific electrical energy reached
111 kWh per ton of cement, which includes the ] w

consumption of electrical energy from the crushing
activities at the mine up to the cement silo. 4.6 6.1+
2014 2015

I3 ENERGY AND CO-PROCESSING consumption with alternative fuels

m Integrated report 2015



Itis also worth noting that the installation of [Z=E Internal consumption of energy
new vertical mills at our Harleyville plant in

the United States and at our Rioclaro plant

) o ) ) ﬂ Cement .- Concrete

in Colombia will contribute to decreasing the Consumption of energy (GJ) | Millions o~ Consumption of energy (GJ) | Millions
consumption of electrical energy because of
their greater energy efficiency.

2015 ) I 37.2 2015 ) I 2.1

2014 |p 33.9 2014 |p 1.2
In addition, the tire co-processing project 2013 | 21.5 2013 1» 0.8
started operations at Rioclaro and it reached 2012 [ 30.4 2012 1y 0.5
a 1 percent substitution of fossil fuels for
alternative fuels.
For their part, all the regions carried out H Generation of energy @ Aggregates
energy audits in order to evaluate operations Consumption of energy (GJ) | Millions Consumption of energy (GJ)
comprehensively including the consumption 2015 |) I 6.6 2015 | IS 40,457
of energy, both caloric and electric, with the 2014 |p 7.4 2014 |p 37,146
purpose of identifying the lines of work and the 2013 |p 6.2 2013 |p 35,361
priorities of each one. 2012 |) 7.9

Within other lines of management, we

increased the productivity of cement grinding MP)

| | | (T Coment ot Future

in the Colombia and the Caribbean and Central .emen. G it erspective
America Region, and as a consequence we energy intensity RIS p

achieved significant improvements in the (GJ/Y) B We will continue to work on

initiatives that enable us to increase

mills' yiel r hour an ntly, ener;
s'yield per hour and, subsequently, energy 3.35 .86 3.05 3.03 the co-processing of tires and other
We will continue to implement
projects that contribute to the

consumption decreased significantly. alternative fuels

During 2015 we also began to deploy .

th licy i I ti decrease of energy use in order to
& energy policy in all our operations. 2012 2013 2014 2015 reach the goals established by our

energy policy

Note: This indicator includes all fuels
and electrical energy consumed from

We will continue to monitor and

the moment of extraction at the mine analyze different sources of energy
up to the time of cement packaging that enable us to optimize and
ensure the necessary energy
THE NEWBERRY AND ROBERTA CEMENT PLANTS fesorces forour business
RECEIVED THE ENERGY STAR CERTIFICATION e e SECE
FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY cement factor and to reduce the

(EPA) THAT IS AWARDED TO PLANTS THAT MEET R
THE ENERGY EFFICIENCY CRITERIA.

(G4-EN6)
Risk management i3y Reduction of
Carrying out a productive activity in which Including different fuels leads us to izl ene;gy
the cost of energy can represent up to constantly consider the risks inherent = conSUmpHon
40 percent of the total cost of production in each market with respect to current
poses significant challenges in terms of regulations in the countries where we O ENERGY AND CO-PROCESSING
risk management. This is why we have operate and their contexts. Identifying
an updated mapping of the risks and these variables and designing innovative
opportunities related to energy, as well as strategies is our job in order to ensure the
a task list that guides our performance. continuity of our business.
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I Sustainable construction and materials =m

Sustainable Construction

As one of the pillars of our environmental policy, sustainable construction
shows our customers the environmental results of our products beyond our
operations; this is a way to foster a culture of good sustainability practices
related to the use and application of the products our company offers to
the market.

This is how sustainable construction has evolved across the different regions
where we operate, and how it is starting to generate positive impacts beyond
the environmental realm by producing benefits for human health.

; | M e
Auditorium at the Argos Center for Innovation, Medellin, Colombia

Performance of sustainable

construction and materials

In order to minimize the impact of our operations, in 2015 we focused our
efforts on using alternative materials in the production process which enabled us
to reach a substitution rate of 7.5 percent and 2.6 percent in cement and concrete
operations, respectively. Similarly, we made progress with the project to use
recycled aggregates to manufacture concrete (see chapter on innovation).

Likewise, we continued working on our commitment to find alternatives for the
final disposal of waste generated by our industry.

[ SUSTAINABLE CONSTRUCTION
AND MATERIALS TE=1 (G4END) (GHEN2)

Co-processed

materials and
recycled materials

m Integrated report 2015

Therefore, because we are aware of its
importance in today’s world, the sustainable
construction pillar of our environmental policy
challenges us to minimize the environmental
impacts of our products throughout their

life cycle in such a way that we can offer our
customers products with increasingly superior
environmental characteristics.

In this regard, sustainable construction has
become one of our main lines of action.

It started as a goal to innovate, but now is a
material issue as we seek to consolidate our
goal into a clear strategy that responds to the
environmental needs, market opportunities and
satisfaction of our customers.

We have taken on the challenge of innovating
in our products by increasing the use of
alternative materials that replace natural raw
materials, clinker and cement.

The purpose of this is to offer the industry
added-value solutions whose sustainability,
durability and functionality features promote
improvements in the environmental
performance of the product's life cycle.

An example of the above are ultra-high
performance concretes that, due to their
resistance and durability features, enable
applications with lower CO2 intensity (see
chapter on innovation).

IN 2015, AT THE COLOMBIA
REGION WE SUPPLIED
SOLUTIONS TO MORE THAN
50 PROJECTS SEEKING
THE LEED® CERTIFICATION.

In 2015 we generated a total of 351,212 tons
of waste, which represents a decrease of 18
percent compared to 2014.

[EEEEN Green Bags (Sacos Verdes) program
is an initiative that enables us to close product
cycles; it totaled 111 subscribed customers



which is 54 percent more than in 2014,
represented across 481 projects (more
than twice than in 2014).

In total, 987,187 bags were recycled,
which is equivalent to 141 tons of paper.
This means we obtained a 38.8 percent
rate of bag returns. In 2015 this program
enabled us to determine that 18 percent
of the weight of returned bags was

We demonstrated our commitment

to sustainable construction by having

LEED® Gold certified offices at our Bogota
headquarters, located in the Argos Tower,
which itself is LEED® Silver certified.
Additionally, the Argos Center for Innovation
is currently in the process of obtaining the
LEED® certification as well. We used our own
products and solutions for the construction
of both the Argos Tower in Bogota and for the

represented by cement, which has led us
to promote sustainable practices among
our customers in order to encourage the
use of this product and minimize its waste.

3 Carbon emissions m=m

2015 was a landmark year for climate change.
Not only because it was the period with the
highest temperatures ever recorded, during
which the concentration of CO2 in the atmo-
sphere exceeded 400 parts per million, but
also because it was the year during which more
than 195 countries reached an agreement to
fight the threat that climate change represents.
This global agreement, achieved at the COP 21
conference, means we need to take actions
that are in line with the expectations of different
stakeholders in order to contribute to the
sustainable growth of the company and to the
transition to a low carbon emission economy.

Considering that the cement industry is
intensive in its consumption of energy and

CO2 emissions, our environmental policy
challenges us to decrease our emissions

of greenhouse gases while we adapt to the
impacts climate change will bring to the regions
where we operate.

As such, our management of climate change is
focused on managing risks and opportunities
by implementing a strategy of mitigation

and adaptation accompanied by continuous
innovation in our processes and products within
the parameters and expectations of suppliers,
customers, communities and shareholders.

We work together with other organizations in
the cement sector and we are part of voluntary

Argos Center for Innovation.

initiatives that allow us to identify
and adopt the best practices,
such as the CSI and the World
Business Council for Sustainable
Development (WBCSD).

We also work to ensure that we reach
the goal we have established for 2025
to reduce by 35 percent the specific net
CO,, emissions of our cement activities,

Specific net emissions
of CO,, kilogram/ton
cementitious material

Environmental policy indicator
2015 ) NN 601

2014 |p 589
2013 |p 613
2012 |p 677

Baseline 2006

Year established for goal 2025

Goal to reduce specific net emissions of
greenhouse gases in cement by 35 percent

By 2025 we will reduce 35 percent
of kg of CO, ton of cementitious material

Forest Reserve, Panama, Caribbean and Central America Region

Future
perspective

H In 2016 we will define our strategy
and specific goals for sustainable

construction to be achieved by 2025

We will endeavor to continue to
generate a positive impact on
society, for our customers, to
strengthen our portfolio and our
competitive position in this market

compared to 2006 as baseline.

[(XZFW Among the results of our
management work we can highlight
the fact that total emissions by the
end of 2015 were 601 kilograms
of 002 per ton of cementitious
material, which corresponds to a
decrease of 29 percent compared
to our baseline.

(G4-EN18)
Intensity

of GHG
emissions

O CARBON EMISSIONS
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As for the intensity of CO,, there was an
increase of 2.1 percent for cement operations
due mainly to a shortage of natural gas at

the Colombia Region, which implied a higher
consumption of coal as the main fuel.

Our progress in energy management has been
significant in terms of decreasing emissions.
For example, we achieved important milestones
in the substitution of fossil fuels for alternative
fuels and in decreasing the consumption of
caloric and electrical energy.

XS] [EEEE] Direct and indirect emissions

[m] e

In 2015 we were included

in the Climate Disclosure

Leadership Index (CDLI)

for Latin America in which
we were acknowledged as leaders by
placing us among the top 10 percent of
companies in terms of good practices,
quality and transparence of information
related to climate change.

Cementos Argos participated
in the COP 21 conference
as a voice for the cement
industry in the panel
“Delivering technological Solutions—
Public and private collaboration to drive
innovation,” in which our president,
Jorge Mario Velasquez, presented the
proposal of the cement industry, as
part of the CSI, towards a low carbon
economy (the LCTPi) and the progress
our company has made along this line.

ﬂ Cement
GHG emissions

Direct millions of CO, tons
2015 ) I 7.1

2014 |p 6.5
2013 |p 5.6
2012 |p 6.0

Indirect thousands of CO, tons

2015 » m 315
2014 |p 634
2013 (p 971
2012 |p 1351

Concrete
GHG emissions

Direct Direct thousands of CO, tons

147

2014 72
2013 50
2012 29

Indirect thousands of CO, tons

19
2014 22
2013 18
2012 15

(G4-EN17)
Emission

of greenhouse
d gases Scope 3

O CARBON EMISSIONS
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Aggregates
GHG emissions

Direct thousands of CO, tons
2015 ) IS 1.5

2014 |p 1.4
2013 |p 1.5
2012 [p ND

Indirect thousands of CO,, tons
2015 |) EEE——— 0.97

2014 |p 0.55
2013 |p 0.73

Co-processing at the Rioclaro Plant, Col

Generacion de energia
GHG emissions

Indirect thousands of CO,, tons

568
2014 642
2013 550
2012 619

(G4-EN19)

Reduction
of emissions




Risks and opportunities associated with climate change

Climate change generates risks and opportunities for
our industry, therefore we are working to prevent and
minimize the negative impacts and enhance the positive
effects of our operations.

During 2015 we identified and evaluated the inherent
risks of climate change and its interrelationship with
the company's strategic risks, which in turn will allow us
a comprehensive management strategy framework as
defined by the company.

Co-processing of tires at the Harleyville Plant, United States Region

Likewise, we have continued to make progress
along the lines that represent the greatest
opportunities in the face of climate change:
Improvements in the efficiency
of caloric and electrical energy
consumption in Argos' operations
Substitution of fossil fuels for

alternative fuels

Increase in the use of alternative
materials in the production of cement
(decrease of the clinker/cement factor)
Innovation in the development of new
products, processes, services

and applications low in CO, intensity.

BETWEEN 2006 AND 2015 THE USE OF
ALTERNATIVE FUELS, THE OPTIMIZATION
OF THE CEMENT CLIKER FACTOR AND

THE EFFORTS TO IMPROVE ENERGY
EFFICIENCY HAVE ENABLED US TO REDUCE
BY 29 PERCENT THE KILOGRAMS OF CO,
PER TON OF CEMENTITIOUS MATERIAL

Direct and indirect emissions

/\ Potential impact

Risks from regulation changes
Changes in applicable regulations and standards

International agreements

/\ Loss or decrease of income

Market of CO, emissions
/\ Loss or decrease of income

Carbon taxes
/\ Loss or decrease of income

Mandatory report of 002 emissions

/\ Damage to the image
of the company

Risks from change in physical parameters of climate
Afectacion de las operaciones por eventos de la naturaleza

/\ Pérdida o disminucion del ingreso

Risks from other climate related variables
Effect on operations caused by natural eventsders

/\ Loss or decrease
of income

Risks associated with the availability, reliability and
variability of costs of energy resources for the operation
and their efficient use

/\ Loss or decrease of income

Future
perspective

We will detail our Risks and
management work related to

our direct emissions based on

L] opportunities
4 associated with
climate change

specific plans for operations
that enable us to push forward

our progress towards the
established goal of decreasing
co2 emissions

We will have an external
audit of our inventory of CO,
emissions to confirm the
transparency of the report
and in the management

of emissions

O CARBON EMISSIONS
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Compressed natural gas (CNG) powered mixer trucks, United States Region

==Em Transport

As part of our sustainability initiatives,
transport management is very important as
it is a key link in our operational activities,
as well as in the safety of our employees,
the supply of the production chain, customer
service, our competitiveness in the industry
and our environmental impact, among

other aspects.

Our approach to this issue is focused around
operational efficiency and effectiveness,

safe, agile and timely deliveries that are cost
efficient, the implementation of good practices
that minimize emissions, and the constant
pursuit of offset strategies.

O CARBON EMISSIONS
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In 2015 our management work was
centered on managing environmental
impacts. We made progress in the
measurement of direct CO2 emissions
(scope 1) generated by transportation
for the cement business, and the
measurement of the cement business'
carbon footprint (scope 3). By the end
of our work in 2015, we had calculated
the direct CO,, emissions generated by
the transportation of concrete in our
three regions, which estimated the
generation of 121,781 tons of CO,,.
These emissions are counted in the
direct CO,, emissions of the concrete
business.

We know that the scope of our
operations goes beyond the direct
impact of our plants, which is why
we continue to calculate the CO,
emissions (scope 3) that correspond

to the transport of raw materials for
the manufacture of cement, and the
transport of finished products in the
Colombia Region, where 112,916

tons of CO,, were generated in 2015.

We are also aware of the impact
generated by fossil fuels, which

is why we commissioned 40
Compressed natural gas (CNG)
powered mixer trucks at the United
States Region. They will allow us to
reduce CO2 emissions and increase
the use of cleaner fuels.

Similarly, we remain committed to
increasing the use of mobile plants
that require a lower mobilization of
raw materials and finished products,
and that minimize the consumption
of fuels and emissions associated
with transportation.



O Water m=m

Water is essential to life and is closely related to the social, economic and
political dimensions of our planet. The appropriate management of water in
the cement, concrete and aggregates industry is relevant because it is a main
and auxiliary material used in direct operations and in the supply chain, both
for the operation of production processes and to fulfill the need for drinking
water and basic sanitation of the company's employees.

This is why at Argos we are committed to using this resource responsibly,
focusing our management strategy on two lines of action that contribute to
ensuring its availability, both for the company and our stakeholders:

The efficient use of water through the correct quantification of the
consumption of water in operations and the implementation of plans to reduce
this consumption, such as technological reconversion, reusing water, reduction
of losses, utilization of rainwater, among other things Managing water
resources through the identification, evaluation and management of risks
associated with the consumption of water.

Efficient use of water

In line with the goals we have established in our environmental policy of
reducing specific water consumption by 30 percent in the production of
cement by 2025 and by 20 percent in the production of concrete by that same
year, in 2015 we remained committed to measuring our water footprint and

Artificial reserve, Panama, Caribbean and Central America Region

Environmental policy indicator

Cement (L/t)
ﬂ Specific consumption of water

in liters per ton

2015 |» I 350

Concrete (L/m®)

% Specific consumption of water in liters
per cubic meter

2015 |» = 249

Aggregates (L/t)
Specific consumption of water
in liters per ton

2015 » me4

to implementing the best practices in order for
our processes to consume less of this resource.
This is how we managed to decrease the
specific consumption of water of the cement
business by 46 percent and by 8 percent in the
concrete business compared to 2012. This way
we surpassed the goal that had been initially
set for cement, which will lead us to revise it.

Water risk management

We are permanently vigilant of the water supply
of the basins where our facilities are located.
We use the Global Water Tool (GWT), which
enables us to implement water management
strategies in a prioritized manner for facilities
located in areas of water stress, that is, in
hydrographic basins whose availability of
surface water is below 1,700 m? per person per
year. During the last analysis we carried out, we
found that 21 percent of our plants are located
in areas in this condition.

O WATER
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Results of our performance in 2015
Our actions for water conservation incorporate the guidelines of the six principles of the CEO Water Mandate, an initiative we
signed in 2014.The following information constitutes our Communication of Progress of this Global Pact initiative:

1. Direct operations: In line with our corporate of industrial water, as is the case of the cement plant in Panama, where
strategy for water management, in 2015 we invested USD 45,000 in order to minimize industrial dumping and thus
we developed two guides that will allow us reduce water abstraction.
to improve the quantification and reporting
of water consumption of our operations. On the other hand, the Colombia Region made progress in our effort to
The first is the Argos Protocol for Water measure water with state-of-the-art instruments that enable us to have better
Reporting, which contains the guidelines control of the flow of water within the facilities, which in turn helps us to
to calculate water-related indicators, and identify opportunities for improvement and to increase the efficiency of water
the second is the Argos guidance on good use, with an investment of COP 300 million.

practices for water accounting, and it
contains the indications to account properly
for this resource. They are both the product
of adapting the guides developed by the

[@XIE]1 Total abstraction of water in m®

Water Work Group of the CSI through field

For the production of For the production of
work that enabled us to detect the best . cement concrete3

o 5 ot

practices, operational difficulties and Millions of m Millions of m
methodologies at our concrete, cement 2015 > . 6.1 2.8
and aggregates plants at the regions in the 2014 |p 6.8 2014 31
United States, Colombia and the Caribbean 2013 [p 6.2 2013 2.5
and Central America. 2012 |p 7.2 2012 2.3
[EESEHN Additionally, in 2015 we
made progress in the formulation and For the production of For the production of
implementation of comprehensive water generation of energy aggregates

Millions of m Thousands of m®
management plans at the cement and 3847 , 187
concrete facilities of the Caribbean and ’ 2015

) . . ) 2014 2014
Central America Region, with an investment 3511 > 260
of USD 130,000. Similarly, we currently 2018 3623 2013 | 382
) ) ) 2012 375.3 2012 [p ND

have projects underway for the recirculation

(G4-EN10)

!ES

Total percentage and volume of recycled and recirculated water in m®

2012 2013 2014 2015
Cement 2,014,518 279 | 1,768,646 2859 | 1,822,926 26.78 | 2,468,982 a1
Concrete 392,527 17.27 | 516,875 2086 | 965,175 3091 551,966 20
Generation of energy 270,611 0.072 17,510 0.005 4,581 0.001 | 25,752,257 6.7
Aggregates ND ND | 507,314 13272 | 462,047 177.09 298,376 159.3
THE TOTAL VOULME OF
i g RECIRCULATED WATER
O WATER Dumping IN 2015 WAS 29,071,581 M3,

m Integrated report 2015



2. Management of supply chain and basins:
Another one of our significant achievements
was the annual evaluation of global water
risk with the GWT, which helped us to
determine that 319 plants, or 21 percent
of the total plants in operation at our three
regions, are currently located in basins
under water stress.

Additionally, we made progress with other
analytical tools that will enable us to assess
and manage water risks at the local level as
well as to consider risks other than scarcity,
such as risks associated with issues of
quality of water, floods, reputational risks,
and legal risks, among others. In 2016 we
will define which of the assessed tools is the
most adequate for our needs.

IN 2015 WE ASSESSED
THE GLOBAL WATER RISK
WITH THE GLOBAL WATER
TOOL. 79 PERCENT

OF OUR PLANTS ARE

NOT IN CONDITIONS

OF WATER STRESS.

Likewise, in 2016 we plan to expand the
scope of our global water risk evaluation to
our critical providers at the three regions

in order to determine which of them are
located in areas of water stress and work
with them in a prioritized manner to advance

sustainable water management along our
supply chain. Natural reserve, Rioclaro, Colombia

Moreover, in 2015 we evaluated Management Plans for Basins
53 critical suppliers of the Colombia and Aquifers (POMCAs is the Spanish
Region and one supplier of the Caribbean acronym) at the Colombia Region.
and Central America Region using the
Supply Sustainability Index made At eight of them we were chosen to
by MIT for Argos. We also evaluated seven represent the production sector at
critical suppliers at the Colombia Region their Basin Councils.
using the sustainability index developed
by conTREEbute. We also continued to contribute

to the conservation of the water
Among other actions, we can highlight resources and ecosystems
our monitoring and participation in of Beidler Forest in the southeastern 3 WATER
the formulation of 19 Regulation and United States.

Environmental dimension _



3. Collective actions: We participated actively

in the construction of the local division of the
CEO Water Mandate in Colombia together
with Isagen, Celsia, Postobon, Nutresa,
Bancolombia, Ecopetrol and Bavaria, among
other companies that are unifying their good
practices, management work and projects in
favor of water resources.

As part of the group of 25 companies that
make up the CSlI, in 2015 we continued to
participate in the Water Work Group, whose
objective it is to generate common indicators
and best practice guides that enable

the use of water resources to be sustainable
in the industry of cement, concrete

and aggregates.

We also contributed to the discussions
related to water issues in the sector tables of
the National Association of Industrialists of
Colombia (ANDI is the Spanish acronym), in
the National Ready Mix Concrete Association
(NRMCA), in the Portland Cement
Association (PCA), and we became involved
with the Colombia Ministry of Environment
and Sustainable Development's campaign:
"All against wastefulness" which promotes
the efficient use of water to offset the effects
caused by El Nino.

Future perspective

B In 2016 we implemented a training program
based on the Water Report Protocol and the Best
Practices Guide for the Quantification of Water
at the three regions

We will continue to identify global water risks
for our operations and we will broaden the scope
to our critical suppliers

We will select and implement a water risk
evaluation and management tool for our
local operations

m Integrated report 2015

Natural reserve, Rioclaro, Colombia

. Public policy: By participating in trade associations, we continue to push

toward the achievement of our Millennium Development Goals through the
generation of ideas and recommendations for the formulation of water-
related regulations. This is how in 2015 we monitored and intervened in
the revision of different regulatory projects related to water resources.

At the Colombia Region, we participate actively in reviewing regulatory
projects such as the National Development Plan, the Regulations for
Reusing Treated Wastewater, and the Regulations for Ocean Dumping,
among others, while at the United States Region we participated in the
discussions for the Waters of the United States (WOTUS) through the ANDI
and the PCA, respectively.

. Communities: We have made an effort to understand the challenges

related to sanitation and water management in the communities where
we operate, and we are vigilant of the impact our operations may have on
these dynamics. This is why in 2015, based on the lessons learned within
the framework of the Suizagua Project, we continued our environmental
awareness and education campaigns at the Colombia Region aimed at
students from schools around the Toluviejo plant.

. Transparency: In 2015 we reported the results of our water management

work in our annual comprehensive report, which we put together based

on the guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and in which we
divulge the key performance indicators developed by the CSI. Additionally,
we published the Progress Communication of the CEO Water Mandate and
we filled in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index survey, for which we obtained
the best score in the industry for our water management work for the
second year in a row.



I Biodiversity mmm

The value and importance of biodiversity in the
environmental is recognized by our company.
Therefore, as part as our commitment to
conservation and together with important
allies, we have developed strategies to prevent,
mitigate, correct and offset our impact on
biodiversity. We center our efforts around two
lines of action: rehabilitation of intervened
areas and management of biodiversity.

Rehabilitation

of intervened areas

Our management work is focused on designing
strategies that enable the comprehensive
rehabilitation of areas after mining operations
have concluded, in order to recover their
environmental, social and economic
functionality. This way, we promote

Number and percentage
of active quarries with established
closure plans

AS A RESULT OF OUR EXCELLENT

PERFORMANCE, WE OBTAINED IN 2015,
FOR THE SECOND YEAR IN A ROW, THE
HIGHEST SCORE FOR BIODIVERSITY IN THE
DOW JONES SUSTAINABILITY INDEX.

the rehabilitation of soil which in turn enables
us to develop ecologic restoration models
aimed at recovering and, in some cases,

improving the ecosystemic services of the areas

where we operate.

In accordance with our 2025 goal, which
stipulates that 100 percent of mining
operations will have to have an established
closure plan, by the end of 2015 the amount

XA Number and percentage
of rehabilitated liberated intervened areas

Colombia
Region
Active quarries: 32

78%

Active quarries with
an established closure
plan: 25

United States
Region

Active quarries: 3

100%

Active quarries with
an established closure
plan: 3

O G

Caribbean and
Central America
50% Region

Active quarries: 8

O/

Active quarries with
an established closure
plan: 4

ARGOS TOTAL

Active quarries: 43

74+

Active quarries with
an established closure
plan: 32

Colombia

Region

Total liberated intervened area at
all active quarries: 163.82

87.5%

Total rehabilitated area at all
active quarries: 143.41

United States

Region

Total liberated intervened area
at all active quarries: 79.13

Total rehabilitated area at
all active quarries: 30.43

Caribbean

and Central America
Region

Total liberated intervened area
at all active quarries: 12.38

95.4

Total rehabilitated area at
all active quarries: 11.81

TOTAL ARGOS
Total liberated intervened area
at all active quarries: 225.33

712.7%

Total rehabilitated area at
all active quarries: 185.65

COO0C

of quarries with this plan
was 74 percent.

Likewise, in 2015 72.7
percent of intervened
areas liberated at active
quarries were rehabilitated
thus surpassing this

year's goal, which is to
permanently have 70
percent of liberated areas
rehabilitated by 2025.

The terms of reference
for closure plans or
rehabilitation, formulated
and divulged in 2014,
were broadened in

2015 with an exclusive
chapter that contains

the design elements and
considerations for the
quarry restoration process.
This information was
shared at the IV Technical
Mining Conference "Mine
planning in the short,
medium, and long term”
and “Closure plans for
mining projects," which
was organized by the
resource development
management area and

O BIODIVERSITY
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where experts from other companies also
participated. The employees responsible for
planning and production of facilities at our
company attended as well.

that promote vegetation growth that
were isolated and identified during
the first phase of the project in the
soil of the areas where our facilities

2010 and in which we participate
actively in through the Biodiversity
Work Group. In this group we have
defined key indicators to measure the
performance of member companies
and we have formulated guidelines
to guide their development of quarry
rehabilitation plans, biodiversity
management plans and their
evaluation of their environmental
and social impacts.

are located.
Additionally, during 2015 we formulated the
second phase of the soil rehabilitation project
together with the University of Antioquia, which
will continue through 2016 and 2017 with
pilot tests in the field in order to evaluate the
species of nitrogen-fixing bacteria and bacteria

All of our biodiversity management
actions are in line with the
guidelines established by the
Cement Sustainability Initiative,
which we have been a part of since

Number and percentage of quarries
with high biodiversity value

O Active quarries

[IEF Number and percentage of active quarries with
biodiversity value and a management plan in place
M With biodiversity value

M With biodiversity value O Active quarries

34
32
23
22
69%
8 8
1 1 ° 3 1
% % 100%
Ul g il o | [o] . i 0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
Colombia Caribbea United Colombia Caribbea United
and Central America States and Central America States

Biodiversity management

Through this line of action, and based on the evaluation of our
impact on biodiversity, we focus our work on properly managing
this impact by developing operation management plans in areas
of high value.

value. The chosen tool was the Integrated Biodiversity
Assessment Tool (IBAT), which will allow us to determine
potential risks related to biodiversity by the location

of our operations with respect to specific areas of
importance to biodiversity.

In this regard, last year we participated in the CSI Biodiversity
Work Group where we helped to analyze, review and create new
management methodologies and indicators to evaluate the
efficiency and strength of the actions to be implemented in the

Number of facilities with high
biodiversity value

rehabilitation and biodiversity management plans. In order to 2014 2015

do this, we expect to have in 2016 a new performance indicator Active N° % Active N° %
for rehabilitation issues on intervened areas and a methodology

to evaluate the net impact on biodiversity by the cement industry, United States 230 1 0.4 244 1 0.4

) ) ) ) ) ) Region
which will be constituted in a crucial tool that will enable us to

project a model management procedure for all three regions. Caribbean and

As a complement to the above, Central America 21 4 19 21 3 14.3
we carried out the process of Region
selecting the tool to identify and
prioritize the operations located Colombia Region 73 32 444 70 30 42.9
in areas of high biodiversity

TOTAL 324 37 114 335 34 101

O BIODIVERSITY
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Species included in
the IUCN's red list and whose
habitats are located in areas
impacted by operations

4 In critical danger

8 In danger
19 Vulnerable
5 Nearly threatened
E— 25 M Vinor concem

(G4-EN14)
Threatened

species

Other achievements of 2015

At the XXXII Technical Congress of the Inter-American Cement
Federation (FICEM is its Spanish acronym), held in Mexico City,
we revealed the results of our research on soil rehabilitation
and the use of clinker dust as a conditioner for soil intended for
agricultural purposes.

Based on the results obtained from the first area of research,
we will begin to adjust the protocols for soil rehabilitation and
ecological restoration currently in use for our operations.

The results of the second area of research open up the possibility
of different uses for the waste generated by our processes,
thus mitigating our impact even further and turning it into an
innovative alternative.

Implementation of the conservation plan for
the Agalychnis terranova frog, which lives in
an area of the Mid Magdalena Valley, where
some of our operations are located.

We participated in the work group of

the "Biodiversity and Development"
initiative—led by the National Association
of Industrialists of Colombia (ANDI), the
Ministry of Environment and Sustainable
Development, the National Agency for
Environmental Licenses (ANLA for its
Spanish acronym), the Alexander von
Humboldt Institute, the Sinchi Amazonic
Institute of Scientific Research and National
Parks of Colombia—in which we reviewed
regulatory projects such as the update to
the Manual to Offset Biodiversity Losses
and we worked on proposals for collective
initiatives related to prioritized basins in
the country, such as the Dique Channel,
for which there is currently a proposal in
the works to restore its wetlands.

Honduras

Colombia ————=

Frog Agalychnis Terranova, Rioclaro, Colombia Region

Caribbean and Central

America Region

= The partnership with the Smithsonian Institute in Panama,
through which we carried out biodiversity studies on 228
hectares planted with native and introduced species in
areas formerly used for mining, allowed us to determine
the importance of each type of coverage (with native
species, introduced species, secondary forests and
riparian forests) for both biodiversity and for the services
of the newly created ecosystems, especially water and
environmental quality. Among the highlighted results are
the presence of 152 species of birds (of which 15 are
migratory), 37 of bats, 12 of amphibians, 11 of reptiles,
6 of small mammals and 15 species of large mammals,
as well as 263 species of butterflies and a new
geographical distribution of the Diasporus citrinobapheus
frog in Panama. We also managed to determine the
relevance of the planted areas to the hydrological services
associated with the Panama Canal sector.

) 10
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United States Region

m The results of our strategic partnerships are ongoing.
Our terminals at Cordele, Newman, Ball Ground and
Durham, as well as the cement plants at Roberta,
Harleyville and Atlanta, continued with the certification
awarded by the WildLife Habitat Council (WHC) for
preserving special sites to conserve biodiversity. They
are joined by the Manatee terminal and the Tampa and
Newberry plants, which were also certified in 2015.

= We contributed USD 10,000 to conservation projects
. . ) South Carolina
led by the National Audubon Society, a non-profit
American organization dedicated to the conservation ~ Georgia

of nature. Of particular note is our support to the Mississippi
conservation project for the migratory bird Prothonotary Alabama
warblery, as one of their key habitats is in the Beidleren
Forest of South Carolina.

Texas Arkansas

Virginia

North
Carolina

Florida

Future perspective

B Our long-term goal is to move towards making a net
positive impact on the biodiversity of the areas in
which we operate, meaning that all negative impacts
we could generate on the biodiversity are prevented,
mitigated, corrected and offset to a point where the
final balance, in terms of conditions and importance of
habitats, is positive.

We will invest close to USD 30,000 to acquire the
Integrated Biodiversity Assessment Tool (IBAT),
which will guide our prioritization of the areas of high
biodiversity value to the company.

We will define the Argos Guide for construction

of biodiversity management plans, which will contain
the principles the CSI has proposed for such plans,
and which will be adapted and implemented at each

of our regions.

We will begin the second phase of the soil
rehabilitation project together with the University of
Antioquia, which we expect to complete in 2017.

We will continue to participate in the CSl's Biodiversity
Work Group.

We will maintain existing partnerships and we will
endeavor to participate in local and international
initiatives that seek the conservation and restoration of
ecosystems.

At the Colombia Region we will continue our quarry
rehabilitation plans in which we will invest an
estimated COP 758 million in 2016.

Prothonotary Warbler migratory bird, United States

With the results obtained from the studies carried out
by the Smithsonian in Panama, we will establish a
biodiversity management plan for the areas that where
native and introduced species were planted.

O BIODIVERSITY
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I Other emissions m=m

In order to have operations with higher eco-efficiency standards, we have established goals
in our environmental policy to reduce emissions of PM, SO, and NO,. These goals drive us
to implement initiatives to minimize the emissions of these components that go beyond the
legal requirements of the different regions where we operate.

That is why these goals involve an effective reduction of our emissions by 2025 of 85
percent per ton of clinker for PM and of 65 percent for SOX. Likewise, our goal is to keep
nitrogen oxide (NOX) emissions at the same levels as 2012.

As members of the CSI, we control and monitor atmospheric emissions according to

the provisions of the "Guidelines for monitoring and reporting emissions in the cement
industry," which allows us to reference the best international practices in the industry and
adapt them to our operations.

Our management approach

In 2015 we decreased PM emissions by 76 percent compared to our 2012 baseline. This
was due mainly to the optimization and technological renewal of the PM control systems,
including changing electrofilters and other systems to more efficient equipment, which
demanded an investment of USD 2.7 million in the United States Region and of COP
12.869 million (USD 4,087) at the Colombia Region.

Additionally, we invested USD 10.7 million at the United States Region for projects designed
to comply with the atmospheric emission parameters suggested in the National Emission
Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) and the standards for Commercial and
Industrial Solid Waste Incineration (CISWI).

We also controlled scattered sources in areas of storage and transportation of materials for
the Colombia and Caribbean and Central America Region, which implied an investment of
COP 847.6 million (USD 269,125) and USD 1.4 million, respectively.

During 2015, sulfur oxide emissions (SOX) increased compared to the previous year and
reached 0.31 kilograms of SOx per ton of clinker, a behavior that is associated mainly with the

Grinding mill in French Guiana, Caribbean and Central America Region

IN 2015 WE INVESTED
COP 847.5 MILLION TO
CONTROL SOURCES
OF STORAGE AND
TRANSPORTATION.

increase in coal consumption brought
on by the scarcity of natural gas in

the energy market in the Colombia
Region. However, in line with the goal
established in the environmental policy,
the regions team made progress in
identifying projects and initiatives that
will enable it to maintain its emission
levels below the targets established

by the company.

Our NOX emissions decreased to 1.4
kilograms of NOX per ton of clinker,
which is explained by the lower use
of gas as a source of energy at the
Colombia Regjon, and the operation
optimizations carried out at the
Caribbean and United States plants.

As part of our CSI commitments,

we have included in this report

our performance results regarding
emissions of NO , SO , PM and other
minor pollutants such as volatile
organic compounds and heavy metals
(see CSI Table in Appendices).

Our 2015 investments add up to USD
5.3 million, which has enabled us to
reach 83 percent online monitoring
coverage of our cement production
operations. Thus, we have progressed
towards a stricter operational

control that will in turn enable us to
improve our performance in terms of
decreasing emissions.

O OTHER EMISSIONS
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Case studies

Hl Our Yumbo plant underwent a
technological reconversion that
involved the installation of a
baghouse system, which is more
efficient in capturing PM.This enabled
the plant to reduce specific emissions
of PM by 18 percent.

The Rioclaro plant replaced an
electrostatic filter with a new
baghouse filter, with which they
reduced their specific emissions of
PM by 20 percent.

At the United States Region,

the Newberry plant replaced an
electrostatic filter with a baghouse
filter and thus reduced their
emissions of PM by 24 percent.

At the Piedras Azules plant in the
Caribbean and Central America
Region, we installed an online
multiparameter meter to monitor our
emissions in real time and establish
actions to control them. The improved
operational control allowed us to
reduce specific emissions of NO, by
13 percent.

Future
perspective

Il We will continue to implement the
best control and emission reduction
practices in order to meet the targets
established in our environmental policy

We will achieve stability in the
operation of the installed online
monitoring equipment in order

to meet the operational control
standards of the industry

We will continue to move forward
with expanding the coverage

of measurement of other minor
pollutants in our operations

ENERGY AND CO-PROCESSING

SUSTAINABLE CONSTRUCTION
AND MATERIALS

CAMBIO CLIMATICO
WATER
BIODIVERSITY

O OTHER EMISSIONS
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Interior of Argos Center for Innovation, Medellin, Colombia
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CERTIFICATION OF
THE LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
OF THE COMPANY

Barranquilla, February 25, 2016

To the attention of the shareholders of Cementos Argos S. A. and the general public:

As the legal representative of the company, | hereby certify that the consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2015, which have been made public, do not contain any material
flaws, imprecisions or errors, that could impede the understanding of the actual assets and
financial position or transactions made by Cementos Argos S. A. during the reporting period.

s

Jorge Mario Velasquez J.
Legal Representative
Cementos Argos S. A.

Integrated Report 2015



LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE
AND CORPORATE ACCOUNTING
MANAGER OF THE COMPANY

Barranquilla, February 25, 2016

To the attention of the shareholders of Cementos Argos S. A.:

The undersigned Legal Representative and Corporate Accounting Manager of Cementos Argos S. A., hereby

certify that the consolidated financial statements of the company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, have
been faithfully taken from the accounting books and that the following statements have been verified before
being disclosed to the shareholders and third parties:

a) All assets and liabilities included in the company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 exist and all transactions included in those financial statements have been made during the years
ended on those dates.

b) All of the economic activities carried out by the company during the years ended on December 31, 2015
and 2014 have been recorded in the financial statements

¢) Assets represent probable future economic benefits (rights) and liabilities represent probable future
financial commitments (obligations), obtained or accrued by the company as of December 31, 2015 and

2014.

d) All items have been recorded with their proper values in accordance with the financial reporting standards
applicable in Colombia.

e) All economic events that affected the company were correctly classified, described and disclosed in the
financial statements.

\md

Jorge Mario Velasquez J. odrigo Rubio C.
Legal Representative Corporate Accounting Manager
Cementos Argos S. A. T. P. 47208-T
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Deloitte.

To shareholders of Cementos Argos S. A.:

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CEMENTOS ARGOS S.A. and its subsidiaries which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The consolidated financial statements
as at December 31, 2014 and the opening consolidated statement of financial position as at January 1, 2014 in accordance with
the accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia are included for comparative purposes.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and keeping an adequate internal control system for the preparation and presentation of financial statements, free of significant
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, as well as making reasonable
accounting estimates under the circumstances.

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on my audit. | obtained the necessary
information to comply with my duties and carried out my work in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
Colombia. Those standards require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatements. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The audit procedures selected depend upon the
auditor’s professional judgment, including his/her assessment of the risks of material misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements. In performing the risk assessment, the auditor considers the Company “s internal control that is relevant for the
preparation and reasonable presentation of the financial statements, with the purpose of designing audit procedures appropriate
to the circumstances. An audit also includes an evaluation of the accounting principles used and significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as an evaluation of the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statement. | consider that
my audit provide a reasonable basis to express my opinion.

In my opinion, based on my audit and, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of CEMENTOS ARGOS S.A. and its subsidiaries companies as at December 31, 2015,
as well as the results of all its operations, the changes in its equity, and the cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
the accounting and financial reporting standards accepted in Colombia.

These financial statements and notes to the financial statements were translated into English for the convenience of readers
outside Colombia from financial statements originally issued in Spanish.

SEBASTIAN BEDOYA CARDONA
Statutory Auditor T.P. 166002-T
Designated by Deloitte & Touche Ltda. February 25, 2016
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CEMENTOS ARGOS S.A. Y SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31
(million of Colombian pesos)

Notes 2015 2014 January 1, 2014
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 $ 545,708 $ 525,864 $ 504,395
Derivative financial instruments 6 22,114 23,067 -
Other financial current assets 7 3,676 2,953 10,832
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable, net 8 1,071,587 932,857 668,645
Tax receivable 9 278,959 153,518 83,963
Inventories 10 727,709 556,887 364,587
Biological assets 11 - 304 -
Prepaid expenses 64,268 59,728 46,424
Non-current assets held for sale 18 10,114 7,725 15,090
Total current assets $ 2,724,135 $ 2,262,903 $ 1,693,936
Non-current assets
Trade receivables and other accounts receivable, net 8 35,628 12,686 22,481
Investments in associates and joint ventures 12 81,857 75,432 60,980
Derivative financial instruments 6 324 168 2,272
Other non-current financial assets 7 1,466,654 1,730,717 1,471,310
Other intangible assets, net 14 1,202,700 1,096,971 998,862
Biological assets 11 20,242 66,970 61,767
Property, plant and equipment, net 15 9,373,182 7,816,626 5,543,106
Investment property, net 16 153,033 61,067 62,513
Goodwill 17 1,836,087 1,397,450 1,043,153
Deferred tax assets 9 550,883 313,784 190,206
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,273 2,762 6,302
Total non-current assets $ 14,722,863 $ 12,574,633 $ 9,462,952
TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,446,998 $ 14,837,536 $ 11,156,888
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 19 1,186,029 527,552 278,263
Trade liabilities and accounts payable 22 988,134 783,588 577,755
Taxes, liens and duties 9 323,805 182,084 216,276
Employee benefits liability 23 145,041 115,130 114,523
Current provision 24 86,055 33,023 39,216
Other financial liabilities 25 45,019 35,416 30,238
Derivative financial Instruments 6 - - 932
Outstanding bonds and preferred shares 26 426,638 395,603 353,372
Prepaid income and other liabilities 25 154,955 111,823 86,796
Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale 18 856 856 8,935
Total current liabilities $ 3,356,532 $ 2,185,075 $ 1,706,306
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 19 2,243,125 1,942,733 400,180
Trade liabilities and accounts payable 22 10,495 8,937 12,185
Employee benefits liabilities 23 245,395 234,389 240,382
Other financial liabilities 25 - 32,850 51,897
Derivative financial Instruments 6 172,156 126,704 45,986
Taxes payable 9 - 446 -
Provisions 24 186,920 177,081 143,559
Outstanding bonds and preferred shares 26 1,822,157 2,075,558 1,742,006
Other liabilities 25 8,720 25,537 25,476
Deferred tax liabilities 9 663,992 514,103 357,957
Total non-current liabilities $ 5,352,960 $ 5,138,338 $ 3,019,628
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 8,709,492 $ 7,323,413 $ 4,725,934
EQUITY (see attached statement) $ 8,737,506 $ 7,514,123 $ 6,430,954
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES $ 17,446,998 $ 14,837,536 $ 11,156,888

Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statments.
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Sebast?ﬁn Bedoya Cardona
Statutory Auditor
P.T. 166002-T
Appointed by Deloitte & Touche Ltda.
(See attached report)
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Jorge Mario Velasquez J.
Legal Representative
See attached certification)

Oscar-Rodrigo Rubio C.

Corporate Accounting Manager
P.T. 47208-T
(See attached certification)
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CEMENTOS ARGOS S.A. Y SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For years ended 31 December
(million of Colombian pesos, except earnings per share)

Notes 2015 2014
Continuing Operations
Income from operations 32 $ 7,912,003 $ 5,817,129
Cost of goods sold 10 6,097,927 4,485,753
Gross profit $ 1,814,076 $ 1,331,376
Administrative expenses 34 598,662 451,845
Selling expenses 35 264,387 235,558
Other income (expenses) from operations, net 36 (11,608) (36,953)
Impairment of goodwill and assets 234 603
Operating profit $ 939,185 $ 606,417
Finance charges, net 38 274,963 230,596
Gain on the net monetary position 33,107 65,494
Net equity in the income of associates and joint ventures (787) 4,440
Profit before income tax $ 696,542 $ 445,755
Income tax 9 126,905 162,530
Income from continuing operations for the year 39 $ 569,637 $ 283,225
Net discontinued operations, after tax 18 (13,315) 21,590
Net Income for the year $ 556,322 $ 304,815
Income for the period attributable to:
Controlling interest 491,357 272,102
Non-controlling interest 31 64,965 32,713
Net profit for the year $ 556,322 $ 304,815
OTHER AFTER-TAX COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified after income statement for the period:
(Loss) Earnings on new measurements of defined benefits obligations $ (9,982) $ 9,336
(Loss) Earnings from equity investments measured at fair value (257,854) 257,606
Income tax of components that will not be reclassified 3,830 (2,990)
Total items that will not be reclassified after income statement for the period $ (264,006) $ 263,952
Items that will be reclassified after income statement for the period:
Net profit (loss) of instruments in cash flow hedges (5,929) 4,355
Exchange differences by foreign currency translation 1,235,118 785,619
Income tax of components that will be reclassified (3,534) 1,704
Total items that will be reclassified after result of the period $ 1,225,655 $ 791,678
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes $ 961,649 $ 1,055,630
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD $ 1,517,971 $ 1,360,445
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Controlling interest 836,090 974,784
Non-controlling interest 125,559 80,846
Other comprehensive income $ 961,649 $ 1,055,630
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Controlling interest 1,327,447 1,246,886
Non-controlling interest 190,524 113,559
Total comprehensive income $ 1,517,971 $ 1,360,445
Earnings per share
Basic, Income attributable to controlling shares 40 426.65 236.27
Basic, Income from continuing operations attributable to controlling shares 438.21 21752
Basic, Income from discontinued operations attributable to the controlling shares (11.56) 18.75

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Jorge Mario Velasquez J. Osc. odri o Rubio C. Sebastl’iin Bedoya Cardona

Legal Representative Corporate Accounting Manager Statutory Auditor
See attached certification) P.T. 47208-T P.T. 166002-T
(See attached certification) Appointed by Deloitte & Touche Ltda.

(See attached report)
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CEMENTOS ARGOS S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

At 31 December
(million of Colombian pesos)

Notes 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 556,322 $ 304,815
Adjustments to reconcile profit
Depreciation and amortization 580,271 381,422
Income tax 126,905 162,687
Net finance charges 277,165 239,844
Provisions, post-employment and long-term defined benefit plans 27,950 4,938
Assets impairment 21,724 14,226
Loss from exchange difference 282,032 150,227
Loss by fair value measurement 10,261 1,562
Equity on loss (gain) of associates and joint ventures 787 (7,983)
Loss on the disposal of non-current assets 864 1,170
Other adjustments to reconcile gain (32,763) (59,794)
Changes in the working capital of:
Increase in inventory (58,376) (28,940)
Decrease in receivables and other accounts receivable 605,170 167,110
Decrease in liabilities and other accounts payable (1,110,080) (710,769)
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 731,910 315,700
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,288,232 $ 620,515
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash flows used to obtain control of subsidiaries or other businesses 42 (43,701) (1,558,398)
Acquisition of financial assets (284) (9,217)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 8,867 14,775
Purchase of equity in associates and joint ventures (170) (1,753)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and investment properties 27,054 65,318
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and investment properties (688,177) (532,203)
Proceeds from the sale of intangible assets - 1,868
Purchase of intangible assets (15,740) (21,062)
Proceeds from the sale of other long-term assets - 210
Purchase of other long-term assets - (2,683)
Dividends received 31,167 26,197
Collection from financial derivatives contracts (90,221) 45,192
Net cash flows used in investing activities (771,205) $ (1,971,756)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans 3,310,956 4,608,471
Payments of loans and debt instruments (3,123,908) (3,232,653)
Proceeds from bond issue - 600,000
Payment of outstanding bonds (191,400) (192,575)
Payments for finance lease liabilities (44,991) (29,615)
Dividends paid 30 (241,226) (223,671)
Dividends paid on preferred shares (48,325) (48,325)
Interest paid (257,037) (171,645)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (595,931) $ 1,309,987
Decrease of cash and cash equivalent by operations (78,904) $ (41,254)
Effect of the exchange differences on cash 98,748 55,886
Net increase of cash and cash equivalent 19,844 14,632
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 532,371 517,739
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 552,215 $ 532,371

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

-

Jorge Mario Velasquez J. Os%.

gal Representative Corporate Accounting Manager
See attached certification) P.T. 47208-T
(See attached certification)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2015 2014 and January 1st, 2014
(Millions of Colombian pesos, except where otherwise indicated)

NOTE 1: OVERVIEW

Cementos Argos S.A. is a commercial company set up anony-
mously according to Colombian legislation on August 14, 1944,
with its headquarters in the city of Barranquilla, in the Depart-
ment of Atlantico, Republic of Colombia. The company’s corpo-
rate purpose is the exploitation of the cement industry, the pro-
duction of concrete mixes and any other materials or items made
of cement, lime or clay, the acquisition and exploitation of miner-
als or deposits of exploitable minerals in the cement industry and
similar rights to explore and mine the aforementioned minerals,
whether by concession, privilege, lease or other title. Its head-
quarters is in the city of Barranquilla and the term of duration
of the company expires on August 14, 2060, with an extended
duration. The headquarters address is Via 40 Las Flores, Barran-
quilla. No branches are established in Colombia or abroad.
Cementos Argos S.A. is part of Grupo Empresarial Argos whose
parent company is called Argos Group S.A.

The Board authorized the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2015
on February 24, 2016.

NOTE 2: BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Compliance Status

The consolidated financial statements of Cementos Argos S.A.
have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Finan-
cial Information Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF for their
Spanish acronym), issued by the Ministry of Finance and Public
Credit and the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Tourism of
the Republic of Colombia , which are based on the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) along with their interpre-
tations, translated to Spanish and issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as of December 31, 2012.
In accordance with the provisions of Law 1314 of 2009, Reg-
ulatory Decree 2784 of December 2012 and Decree 3024 of
2013, companies that belong to Group 1 of preparers of financial
information must prepare and publish their first financial state-
ments in accordance with the Accounting and Financial Informa-
tion Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF) up to December 31,
2015. Cementos Argos S.A., in accordance with the provisions of
Decree 3024 of 2013, adopted in advance the process of imple-
menting international financial information standards, preparing
their first consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards up to December
31, 2014. According to the stipulations of Decree 2420 of 2015
of the Republic of Colombia, companies who opted for an early

adoption of IFRS must submit a complete set of financial state-
ments up to 31 December 2015, taking January 1st, 2014 as the
date of transition to NCIF. For these purposes, assets and liabil-
ities under IFRS for early adopters will correspond to the values
under the IFRS on this transition date, January 1st, 2014.

From the moment that the financial statements are published
and made available to the public, it is understood that the com-
pany has fully adopted the Accounting and Financial Information
Standards accepted in Colombia (NCIF) issued by the Ministry of
Finance and Public Credit and the Ministry of Commerce, Indus-
try and Tourism of the Republic of Colombia.

Group 1 of preparers of financial information includes compa-
nies that have securities registered at the National Registry of
Securities and Issuers (RNVE for its Spanish acronym) under the
terms of article 1.1.1.1.1. of Decree number 2555 of 2010, pub-
lic interest agencies, and those that exceed certain parameters
and conditions related to the number of employees, total value
of assets or of imports or exports and/or are subordinate to a for-
eign or domestic company that fully applies the IFRS, or if itis an
associated parent company or joint venture of one or more for-
eign entities that apply the full IFRS. Cementos Argos SA meets
the first criteria established in the decree.

Decree 2784 of 2012 and Decree 3023 of 2013 regulate the
preparation of financial statements based on the Standards
(IFRS / International Accounting Standards [IAS]), Interpretations
(IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standards Inter-
pretations Committee (SIC) and the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Information issued up to December 31, 2012, and pub-
lished by the IASB in 2013.

For all prior periods and up to the fiscal year ended December
31, 2014 inclusive, the Group prepares its financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
Colombia. For all legal purposes, the financial statements ended
on December 31, 2014 and 2013 will be the last financial state-
ments pursuant to Decrees 2649 and 2650 of 1993 and the
regulations in force at this time in Colombia. Note 45 includes
information on how the Group adopted the IFRS for the first time.

2.2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

2.2.1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements include the financial statements of Ce-
mentos Argos S.A. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015.
These have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except
the measurement of certain financial assets and financial liabil-
ities, and derivative financial instruments that have been mea-
sured at fair value. The Group does not measure non - finan-
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cial assets or liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Colombian
pesos, which is the functional currency of the parent group,
and all values are rounded up to the closest million, unless
otherwise indicated.
The financial statements have been prepared on the accounting
basis of accumulation or accrual, except the cash flow informa-
tion. Usually, the historical cost is based on the fair value of the
consideration granted in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received when selling an
asset or would be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trans-
action between market participants at the date of measure-
ment, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another method of valuation. When estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group considers the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants take
into account these characteristics to value the asset or liabili-
ty at the date of measurement. The fair value for purposes of
measurement and/ or disclosure of these consolidated finan-
cial statements is determined on that basis, except for payment
transactions based on actions within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing
transactions within the scope of IAS 17 and measurements that
have some similarities fair value but are not fair value, such as
the realizable value in IAS 2 or useful value in IAS 36. Addition-
ally, for financial information purposes, fair value measurements
are categorized as Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the entries to fair value measurements are observable and the
importance of the entries to fair value measurements as a whole,
which are described as follows:

Level 1 entries are quoted prices (not adjusted) in active

markets for identical assets and liabilities to which the com-

pany has access on the date of measurement;

Level 2 entries are entries different from the quoted prices

included in Level 1 that are observable for an asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly, and

Level 3 entries are unobservable entries for an asset or

liability.

The main accounting principles are expressed later on.

2.2.2. Principles of consolidation and accounting policies
Consolidation Principles

Investments over which the Group has control are fully consolidat-
ed using the global consolidation method, under which the finan-
cial statements of the controlling company or matrix are added to
the total assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, costs and expenses
of the subsidiaries, after having been removed from the parent or
matrix, as well as operations and existing reciprocal balances at
the date of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
The Group controls an investee when it has power over it, is ex-
posed, or has a right to variable profits from its participation and
it has the ability to influence these profits through its power over
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them. The Group re-evaluates whether it has control or not over
an investee, if the facts and circumstances indicate that there
have been changes to one or more of the three aforementioned
control elements. During the control evaluation, the Group con-
siders existing substantive voting rights, contracts signed be-
tween the company and third parties, and the rights and ability
to appoint and remove key management members, among other
activities.
When The Group as less than a majority of voting rights in an
investee, it has power over this entity when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability of to direct the relevant
activities of the investee in a unilateral manner. The Group con-
siders all of the events and circumstances that may be relevant
when evaluating whether the voting rights of the Group in an in-
vestee are sufficient or not to grant it power, including:

The percentage of the Group’s voting rights relative to the

size and distribution of percentages of other votes;

Potential voting rights held by the Group, other shareholders

or other parties;

Rights under contractual agreements, and,

Any additional facts or circumstances that indicate that the

Group has or does not have, the current ability to direct the

relevant activities when decisions need to be made, inclu-

ding voting patterns in assemblies of previous shareholders.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the con-
solidated financial statements starting on the date on which the
Group takes control over the subsidiary, which may be different
from the date of acquisition, up until the date when the Group
loses financial control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the reve-
nues and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or sold during the
year are included in the consolidated profit and loss statement
as well as other comprehensive results from the date when the
Group gains control up until the date the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary. Changes in participation in the ownership of a
controlling interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are posted as equity transactions. The book value of
the Group’s participating shares and non - controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect changes in their relative participation in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non - controlling interests were adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the parent company.

When the group loses control of a subsidiary, profits or losses
are recognized in the income statement, and they are calculat-
ed as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of the retained
participation, and (ii) the previous book value of the assets (in-
cluding goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non
- controlling interests. Amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income statements related to that subsidiary
are recorded as if the Group had sold the relevant assets direct-



ly (i.e. reclassified them to profits or losses or transferred them
to another category of equity as specified/allowed by applicable
IFRS). The fair value of the retained investment in the former
subsidiary, on the date in which control was relinquished, must
be considered as the fair value for purposes of initial recogni-
tion of a financial asset in accordance with IFRS 9 or, where
appropriate, the cost of initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture.

Non - controlling interests in net assets of consolidated subsidiar-
ies are identified separately from the Group's equity. The profits
and losses of the period and other comprehensive income are
also attributed to the controlling and to non-controlling interests.
The total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Group and to non - controlling interests, even if
the results in non-controlling interests have a negative balance.
The financial information of consolidated subsidiaries is pre-
pared based on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). However, some of the foreign subsidiaries prepare their
financial statements for statutory purposes by applying the Unit-
ed States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP),
which is why adjustments are included to standardize these prin-
ciples with the NCIF applicable in Colombia.

The Administration should make estimates and assumptions
that affect the numbers reported for assets and liabilities, rev-
enues, costs and expenses, disclosures of assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial statements. In Note 4,
the critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation
made by the Administration are detailed.

Significant accounting policies
Below are the significant accounting policies that Cementos Ar-
gos S.A. and its subsidiaries apply to the preparation of their con-
solidated financial statements:

1. Business Combinations and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contin-
gent liabilities assumed from the acquirer are recognized at fair
value at the date of acquisition, the costs of acquisition are recog-
nized in the income statement of the period and the goodwill is
recognized as an asset in the consolidated financial statements.
The transferred consideration is calculated as the sum of the
fair value, at the date of acquisition, of the relinquished assets,
the assumed liabilities and the equity instruments issued by Ce-
mentos Argos and its subsidiaries, including the fair value of any
contingent consideration, in order to gain control of the acquire.
Acquired identifiable assets and assumed liabilities are recog-
nized at fair value at the date of acquisition, except for:
Deferred tax liabilities or assets and liabilities or assets re-
lated to employee benefit agreements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS
19 Employee Benefits, respectively;

Liabilities or equity instruments related to payment agree-
ments based on shares of the acquiree or payment arrange-
ments based on shares of the Group carried out to substitu-
te payment agreements based on shares of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the date of acqui-
sition, and

Assets (or group of assets for disposal) which are classified
as held for sale pursuant to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in ac-
cordance with that standard.

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum of the consi-
deration transferred, the value of any non-controlling interests,
and where applicable, the fair value of any previous equity
interests held in the acquiree, divided by the net value of the
acquired assets, assumed liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed on the date of acquisition. When the transferred con-
sideration is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the corresponding profit is recognized in the income statement
of the period, on the date of acquisition.

Non - controlling interests that represent ownership interests
and that guarantee their holders a proportion of the net assets
of the company in the event of liquidation can be initially cal-
culated at fair value or as the proportional share of non - con-
trolling interests of the recognized amounts of the identifiable
net assets of the acquiree. The measurement basis is chosen
on a transaction by transaction basis. Other types of non -con-
trolling interests are calculated at fair value or, when applica-
ble, on the basis specified by another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities that arise from a con-
tingent consideration agreement, the contingent consideration
is measured at the fair value at the date of acquisition and it is
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Any changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as adjustments to the measurement
period are adjusted retrospectively with the corresponding
adjustments against the goodwill. Adjustments to the mea-
surement period are adjustments that arise from the addi-
tional information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot be more than one year after the date of acqui-
sition) about facts and circumstances that existed on the date
of acquisition.

The subsequent record of changes to the fair value of the con-
tingent consideration that do not qualify as adjustments of the
measurement period depends on how the contingent consider-
ation is classified. The contingent consideration that is classi-
fied as equity is not measured again at the subsequent report-
ing dates and its subsequent cancellation is recorded in equity.
A contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
remeasured based on its reporting date in accordance with IAS
39 Financial Instruments or |IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabil-
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ities and Contingent Assets where appropriate, with the corre-
sponding profit or loss recognized in profits or losses.

In the case of business combinations carried out in stages, the
equity participation of the Group in the acquiree is recalculated
at fair value on the date of acquisition (i.e., the date on which
the Group gained control) and the resulting profit or loss, if any,
is recognized in profit or losses. The amounts resulting from
participation in the acquiree prior to the date of acquisition that
had been previously recognized in other comprehensive income
statement are reclassified as profits or losses, provided that such
treatment is appropriate, in the event that said participation were
to be sold.

If the initial accounting of a business combination is not finished
by the end of the financial period in which the combination oc-
curs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which accounting is incomplete. During the measurement peri-
od the buyer recognizes adjustments to the provisional amounts
or recognizes additional liabilities or assets necessary to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of purchase and that, had they been known,
would have affected the measurement of amounts recognized
at that date.

Goodwill is not amortized, it is measured at cost minus any loss
accumulated due to impairment. If the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit is less than the book value of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the goodwill book
value assigned to the unit and then to the other unit assets, in a
proportional manner, based on the book value of each asset in
the unit. The cash - generating units to which the goodwill is as-
signed are subject to yearly impairment evaluations, or more fre-
quently if there is an indication that the unit could be impaired.
Impairment losses are recognized in the comprehensive income
statement in the period results section. Goodwill impairment
losses cannot be reversed in the following period. In the event
of withdrawal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the calculation of profit or loss due to
withdrawal.

2. Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair va-
lue plus (minus) directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those that are measured later at fair value with changes in the
income statement. Cementos Argos and its cash flows that are
only payments of subsidiaries subsequently measure financial
assets and liabilities at an amortized cost or fair value, depen-
ding on the Group's business model for managing financial as-
sets and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the
instrument.

Financial Assets
Financial assets other than those at amortized cost are subse-
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quently measured at fair value with recognized changes in the in-
come statement. However, for investments in equity instruments
that are not held for negotiation purposes, Cementos Argos and
its subsidiaries can choose, during the initial recognition and irre-
vocably, to present the profits or losses from fair value measure-
ments in another comprehensive statement. When disposing of
investments at fair value in another comprehensive statement,
the accumulated value of profits or losses is transferred directly
to retained earnings and are not reclassified as income for the
period. Cash dividends received from these investments are re-
cognized in the other comprehensive income statement. Cemen-
tos Argos and its subsidiaries have chosen to measure some of
their investments in equity instruments at fair value in another
comprehensive income statement.

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost us-
ing the effective interest rate if the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold them in order to obtain contrac-
tual cash flows and its contractual terms gran, on specific dates
principal and interest on the value of the outstanding principal.
A financial asset or part of one is written off from the statement
of financial position when it is sold, transferred, it matures or
control is lost over the contractual rights or cash flows of the in-
strument. A financial liability or part of one is written off from the
statement of financial position when the contractual obligation
has been settled or has matured.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same counterparty on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a write-off of the original liability and the
recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respec-
tive book values, are recognhized in the comprehensive income
statement.

Financial Liabilities

The initial recognition of financial liabilities is done at fair value
and subsequently valued at the amortized cost using the effec-
tive interest method. Losses and profits are recognized in the
income statement when liabilities are written off, as well as ac-
crued interest using the effective interest method.

The amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and installments or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest method.

Financial Derivatives

Financial derivatives are calculated at fair value with changes
in the comprehensive income statement. Certain derivatives
embedded in other financial instruments (implicit derivatives)
are treated as separate derivatives when their risk and char-
acteristics are not closely related to the host contract and it is
not recorded at fair value with its unrealized profits and losses
included in the income statement.



Certain derivative transactions that do not qualify to be posted as
derivatives for hedging, are treated and reported as derivatives
for negotiation, even though they provide effective hedging for
the management of risk positions.
The Group formally appoints and documents the relationship
with derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting at the begin-
ning of the hedging relationship, and also documents the goals
of the risk management strategy for the hedge. The documen-
tation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the
hedged transaction or item, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how the Group will evaluate the effectiveness of the changes
in the fair value of the hedging instrument when offsetting the
exposure to changes in the fair value of the hedged item or in
the cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in fair
value or cash flows and are being constantly evaluated to deter-
mine that this has been so throughout the information periods
for which they were appointed. For hedge accounting purposes
and for those applicable to the Group, hedges are classified and
accounted for as follows, once the strict criteria for accounting
are met:
Fair value hedges, when they hedge exposure to changes
in the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or unre-
cognized firm commitments. The change in fair value of a
derivative that is a hedging instrument is recognized in the
comprehensive income statement in the income statement
section as financial income or cost. The change in fair value
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recor-
ded as part of the book value of the hedged item, and is also
recognized in the comprehensive income statement in the
income statement section as financial income or cost.
Cash flow hedges, when hedging exposure to variations in
the cash flows attributed either to a particular risk associa-
ted with a recognized asset or liability or with a highly pro-
bable a foreseen transaction, or with the exchange rate risk
related to an unrecognized firm commitment. Cash flow hed-
ge accounting aims to recognize changes in the fair value of
the hedging instrument in the other comprehensive results,
to apply them to the income statements when and at the
pace in which the hedged item affects them. The inefficiency
of the derivative will only be recognized in the income state-
ment as they occur.
The effective portion of the profit or loss from measuring the
hedging instrument is immediately recognized in the other
comprehensive statement, whereas the ineffective potion is
recognized immediately in the comprehensive income sta-
tement in the section income statement as a financial cost.

The values recognized in the other comprehensive income are re-
classified to the comprehensive income statement in the income
statement section when the hedged transaction affects the re-

sult, just as the financial income or hedged financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast transaction takes place. When
the hedged item constitutes the cost of a non - financial asset
or liability, the values recognized in the other comprehensive in-
come statements are reclassified to the initial book value of the
non-financial asset or liability. If the forecast transaction or firm
commitment is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in the other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the comprehensive income statement in
the income statement section. If the hedging instrument matures
orissold, it is resolved, or it is exercised without a replacement or
successive renewal of a hedging instrument for another hedging
instrument, or if its designation as hedge is revoked, any cumu-
lative profit or loss recognized previously in other comprehensive
income remains in the other comprehensive income until the
forecast operation or firm commitment affects the result.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, Cementos Argos and its sub-
sidiaries evaluate if there is objective evidence to suggest that a
financial asset or a group of them measured at amortized cost
are impaired.

If there is any evidence of impairment, the value of the loss is
calculated as the difference between the book value of the asset
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred, discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the financial asset. To recog-
nize the impairment loss, the book value of the associated asset
is reduced and the loss is recognized in the comprehensive in-
come statement

3. Provisions for Decommissioning, Restoration

and Rehabilitation
Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries recognize as part of the cost
of ownership of an element, plant and equipment when there is
a legal or implicit obligation to dismantle an asset or restore the
site where it was built, the present value of the estimated future
costs expected to be incurred for the dismantling or restoration.
The provision for decommissioning or restoration is recog-
nized at the present value of estimated future disburse-
ments to pay the obligation. Cash flows are discounted at a
risk - free rate before taxes.
The estimated future cash flows for decommissioning or res-
toration are reviewed periodically. Changes in estimates, in
the expected dates of disbursements or in the discount rate
used to discount the flows are recognized as an increase or
decrease of the decommissioning cost included in the own-
ership item, plant and equipment. The change in the value
of the provision associated with the passage of time is rec-
ognized as a financial expense in the comprehensive income
statement.
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4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
and in the cash flow statement include money in cash and in
banks, highly liquid investments that are easily convertible into
a certain amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, with a maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

5. Disbursements of Exploration and Evaluation

Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries recognize as an expense
for the evaluation and exploration of mineral resources those
disbursements incurred in prior to demonstrating the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of an exploitation project,
even if they are directly related to or associated with the activity
of exploration and evaluation of mineral resources. If disburse-
ments meet the conditions for recognition they are recorded as
intangible assets.

The expenses will be recognized at the disbursed value at the
time they are incurred.

6. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received when selling an as-
set or would be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the date of measurement. The
fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is determined at
the date of filing of the financial statements to be recognized or
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Judgments include data such as liquidity risk, credit and volatility
risk. Changes to the hypotheses about these factors could affect
the reported fair value of the financial instruments.

7. Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies corresponding to those trans-
actions in currencies other than the functional currency of the
company are recorded initially at the exchange rate of the func-
tional currency valid on the date of the transaction. Later, the
monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are convert-
ed at the exchange rate of the functional currency valid on the
closing date of the period. Non - monetary items measured at
their fair value are converted using the exchange rates of the
date when their fair value is determined, and non -monetary
items measured at historical cost are converted using the ex-
change rates determined to be applicable on the date of the orig-
inal transaction, and have not been converted.

All exchange rate differences of monetary items are recognized
in the income statement except for monetary items that provide
an effective hedge for a net investment in a foreign business and
those that come from investments in shares classified at fair
value through equity. For the presentation of Cementos Argos’
consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations have been converted into Colombian pesos at
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the exchange rate valid on the closing date of the reporting peri-
od. Revenues, costs and expenses, and cash flows are converted
at the average exchange rates of the period, unless these fluctu-
ate significantly during the period, in which case the exchange
rates of the date of the transactions are used.

Any differences that arise in the exchange rate are recognized
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in equity
(attributed to non-controlling interests where appropriate).

When disposing of a foreign operation, including the disposal of
the Group’s total participation in a business abroad and a dis-
posal involving the partial sale of a stake in a joint venture that
includes a foreign business deal in which the retained participa-
tion becomes a financial asset, all exchange differences accumu-
lated in equity relating to that operation attributable to owners of
the Group are reclassified from equity to the consolidated results
of the period.

Additionally, with regards to the partial disposal of a subsidiary
(that includes a foreign operation), the company will attribute
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
again to the non-controlling interests and will not be recog-
nized in profits or losses. For any other partial disposals (i.e.
the partial disposal of associations or joint agreements that do
not involve the loss of significant influence and joint control by
the Group), the company will reclassify to profits or losses only
the proportional share of the cumulative amount of exchange
differences.

The adjustments corresponding to goodwill and the fair value of
identifiable acquired assets and liabilities generated in the acqui-
sition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and are converted at the valid exchange
rate for the end of each reporting period. Any exchange differ-
ences that may arise will be recognized in other comprehensive
income.

8. Impairment of Asset Value

Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries evaluate the impairment of
assets when facts and circumstances suggest that the book va-
lue of cash-generating unit may exceed its recoverable amount or
least at the end of each reporting period. When this happens, Ce-
mentos Argos and its subsidiaries measure, present and disclose
any loss to the resulting value due to impairment in the compre-
hensive income statement.

9. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each period, Cementos Argos and its subsidiar-
ies evaluate the existence of any indications that an asset’s
value may be impaired. The recoverable value of the asset or
cash-generating unit is estimated; when it is not possible to es-
timate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, at the
time when an indication of impairment is detected, or at least
annually for intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and



intangible assets not yet in use. When a reasonable and consis-
tent basis of distribution is identified, common assets are also
allocated to individual cash generating units or distributed to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reason-
able and consistent distribution basis can be identified.

The recoverable value of an asset is the highest value between
the fair value minus the sales costs, whether it's an asset or a
cash-generating unit, and its value in use. When estimating the
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted at the
current value using a discount rate before taxes that reflects cur-
rent market valuations of the temporary value of money and the
specific risks to the asset for which the estimated future cash
flows have not been estimated. When the book value of an as-
set or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and the value of its recoverable
amount is reduced.

When an impairment loss is reversed later, the book value of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimated value of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
book value does not exceed the book value that would have been
measured had the asset’s (or cash-generating unit’s) impairment
loss not been recognized in previous years. The reversal of an
impairment loss is automatically recognized in profits or losses.

10. Taxes
The expense for income taxes represents the sum of the paya-
ble current income tax and the deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current assets and liabilities for the income tax period are mea-
sured by the values expected to be recovered or paid to the tax
authority. The expense for income tax is recognized in the cur-
rent tax according to the refinement of the income tax and the
accounting gain or loss affected by the tax rate on income for
the current year and pursuant to the provisions of the tax stan-
dards of each country. The tax rates and standards used to com-
pute these values are those that have been approved or substan-
tially approved by the end of the reporting period in the countries
where Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries operate and gener-
ate taxable income.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the liability method cal-
culated on the temporary differences between the tax bases of
the assets and liabilities and their book values. The deferred tax
liability is recognized for temporary taxable differences and the
deferred asset tax is recognized for temporary deductible differ-
ences and future offset of tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that the availability of future taxable income against
which they can be allocated is likely. These assets and liabilities
are not recognized if the temporary differences arise from the

initial recognition (other than the business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in an operation that does not affect taxable
profit or the accounting profit.

Additionally, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the tem-
porary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Tax liabilities deferred due to temporary taxable differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates
and interests in joint ventures, except those in which the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
when there is the possibility that this cannot be reversed in
the near future, must be recognized. Deferred tax assets that
arise from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and holdings are only recognized to the ex-
tent that it is likely that the company will have future taxable
gains against which the temporary difference can be charged
and when there is the possibility these can be reversed in the
near future. The book value of a deferred tax asset should be
subject to revision at the end of each reporting period and
should be reduced to the extent it is likely that the company
will not have sufficient tax gains in the future to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities should be calculated using the tax rates that are ex-
pected to be applicable during the period in which the asset is
realized or the liability is settled based on the rates (and tax
laws) that have been approved or practically approved by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax as-
sets will reflect the tax consequences that would occur from the
manner in which the company expects to recover or settle the
book value of its assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred taxes are not discounted.

Deferred tax is recognized in the result of the period, except
those related to items recognized outside the income; in

this case they will be presented in another comprehensive in-
come or directly in equity. In the case of a business combination,
when the current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial ac-
counting of the business combination, the tax effect is consid-
ered within the accounting of the business combination.

11. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially calculated at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in business combina-
tions are recognized separately from goodwill at fair value at the
date of acquisition (which is regarded as its cost). After the initial
recognition, intangible assets are posted at cost minus any accu-
mulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated costs for intangible assets, except for devel-
opment costs that meet recognition criteria, are not capitalized
and when disbursed they are recognized in the comprehensive
income statement at the time when they are incurred.
Disbursements arising from research activities are recognized as
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an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
An internally generated intangible asset as a result of develop-
ment activities (or of the development phase of an internal proj-
ect) is recognized if, and only if, the following conditions are met:
Technically, it is possible to complete the production of the
intangible asset so that it can be made available for use or
sale;
The intention is to complete the intangible asset in question
for use or sale;
Its ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
The manner in which the intangible asset will generate pro-
bable economic benefits in the future;
The availability of adequate resources, technical, financial or
otherwise, to complete its development and to use or sell the
intangible asset, and
Its ability to measure reliably the disbursement attributable
to the intangible asset during its development

The amount initially recognized for an internally generated intan-
gible asset will be the sum of the disbursements incurred from
the time when the item meets the conditions for recognition set
forth above.

After the initial recognition, an internally generated intangible
asset will be accounted at cost minus the accumulated amortiza-
tion and accumulated amount of impairment losses on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

The period of amortization and the amortization method for in-
tangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each period. Changes in estimated useful life of the asset
are recognized prospectively. The expense for amortization of in-
tangible assets with finite useful lives is recognized in the com-
prehensive income statement. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are not amortized, but rather tested for impairment.
An intangible asset is written off at the time of disposal or when
no future economic benefits from its use or disposal are expect-
ed. Profits or losses arising from the write-off of an intangible
asset, calculated as the difference between the net income
from the sale and the book value of the asset is recognized in the
consolidated profits or losses at the time the asset is written off.

12. Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

An associate is a company over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in fi-
nancial policy and operational decisions of the investee, but with-
out having absolute or joint control of the investee.

Ajoint venture is a joint agreement whereby the parties that have
joint control have rights to the net assets of the agreement. Joint
control is shared control contractually agreed upon that only
exists when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The results,
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assets and liabilities of the associate or joint venture are incorpo-
rated into the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method, unless the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale, in which case it is accounted pursuant to IFRS 5.
BUnder this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost
and adjusted with the changes in the participation of Cementos
Argos and its subsidiaries and are later adjusted to account for
the participation of the Group in profits or losses and in other
comprehensive income statements of the associate or joint ven-
ture, minus any losses due to impairment of the investment.
When the participation of the Group in the losses of an associ-
ate or joint venture exceeds the participation of the Group in the
associate or joint venture (including any long-term participation
that is basically a part of the Group’s net investment in the asso-
ciate or joint venture), the Group ceases to recognize its partici-
pation in future losses.

Additional losses are recognized as long as the Group has ac-
quired a legal or implicit obligation or has made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

In the acquisition of the investment in the associate or joint ven-
ture, any excess of the cost of the investment on the distribution
of the net fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognized as Goodwill Credit, which is included in the
amount book value of the investment.

When the equity method applies, the necessary adjustments are
made to standardize the accounting policies of the associate or
joint venture with those of Cementos Argos. The share belonging
to Cementos Argos is included in the obtained profits or losses
and unrealized losses from transactions between the Group and
the associate or joint venture. The equity method is applied from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate or joint
venture. This is because, for example, it can occur in stages, and
it is not the date of acquisition; until such time as significant in-
fluence or joint control over the entity is lost.

With regards to the acquisition of the associate or joint venture,
any excess in the cost of the investment on the distribution of the
net fair value of the investee's identifiable assets and liabilities is
recognized as goodwill, and is included in the investment's book
value.

Any excess in the Group’s distribution of the net fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities on the cost of investment, after
having been revaluated, is posted immediately in profit or losses
for the period in which the investment was acquired. The require-
ments of IFRS 9 are applied to determine whether it's necessary
to post an impairment loss from the Group's investment in an
associate or joint venture. The total book value of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as an individual asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (highest between the useful value and
the fair value minus the cost of disposal) to its book value. Any



recognized impairment loss is part of the book value of the in-
vestment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in
accordance with IAS 36 until the recoverable amount of the in-
vestment increases later.

The Group stops using the equity method on the date when the invest-
ment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the invest-
ment is classified as held for sale. When the Group has a stake in a
former associate or joint venture and the holding is a financial asset,
the Group measures the holding at that date’s fair value and at the
fair value considered fair value during the initial recognition, pursuant
to IFRS 9. The difference between the book value of the associate or
joint venture on the date the equity method stopped being used
and the fair value of any retained stake and any result from the
sale of a part of the stake in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of profit or losses from the sale of
the associate or joint venture.

Additionally, the Group records all previously recognized amounts
in other comprehensive income regarding that associate or joint
venture on the same basis that would have been required if the
associate or joint venture had sold the assets or liabilities direct-
ly. Therefore, if a profit or loss previously accounted in another
comprehensive result by the associate or joint venture had been
reclassified to profits or losses upon selling the related assets or
liabilities, the Group would reclassify the profit or loss from equity
to profits or losses (as a reclassification adjustment) at the time
when they stop using the equity method. The Group continues
using the equity method when an investment in an associate be-
comes an investment in a joint venture, or an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. No recal-
culation at fair value at the time of such changes in ownership
interests.

When the Group reduces its equity stake in an associate or a
joint venture but continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profits or losses the share of the profit or loss that
had been recognized previously in other comprehensive income
in relation to that reduction in equity participation, if such a profit
or loss were reclassified to profit or losses upon the sale of the
corresponding assets or liabilities.

If a company within the Group engages in a transaction with an
associate or joint venture of the Group, the profits and losses
resulting from these transactions are recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only for the share of the stake
in the associate or joint venture that is not related to the Group.
The goodwill that arises from the acquisition of an associate or a
joint venture is included in the book value of the investment and
is not amortized or individually tested for impairment of its value.

13. Joint Operations
Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries recognize a joint operation
when the contractual agreement is not structured through a

separate vehicle, or if the contractual agreement is structured
through a separate vehicle, the company evaluates whether Ce-
mentos Argos and its subsidiaries are granted rights to the assets
and obligations regarding the liabilities relative to the agreement,
and not rights to the net assets of the agreement.
Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries consider the following as-
pects in order to recognize a joint operation: the legal form of the
separate vehicle, the clauses of the contractual agreement, and
where appropriate, other factors and circumstances.
The Group recognizes in its consolidated financial statements,
regarding its participation in a joint operation, the following:

Its assets, including its participation in assets held jointly

Its liabilities, including its participation in liabilities incurred

jointly;

Its revenue from ordinary activities arising from the sale of

its stake in the product resulting from the joint operation;

Its participation in the revenue from the sale of the product

made by the joint operation, and

Its expenses, including its participation in the expenses in-

curred jointly.
The Group recognizes the assets, liabilities, revenues and ex-
penses related to its participation in a joint operation in accor-
dance with the applicable policies, in particular those applicable
to assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. When the Group is a
joint operator and engages in sales transactions or contribution
of assets to a joint operation, it recognizes the gains and losses
from this transaction only to the extent of the participation of the
other parties in the joint operation, and if the transaction pro-
vides evidence of reducing the net realizable value of assets or of
causing an impairment, the total losses are recognized.
When the Group is involved in a joint operation but does not have
joint control of it, it accounts for its participation as indicated in
the previous paragraphs only if Cementos Argos and its subsid-
iaries have rights to the assets and obligations regarding the lia-
bilities related to the joint operation.

14. Investment Properties

Investment properties are property (land or buildings considered
in whole or in part, or both) that are held (by the Group or by a
lessee under a financial lease) in order to earn income, capital
gains or both, instead of a) using it for the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, or b) sell-
ing it in the ordinary course of operations, including investment
properties under construction for such purposes. These are mea-
sured initially at their acquisition price, plus all costs associated
with the transaction and non -recoverable indirect taxes, after
deducting financial or commercial discounts as well as the costs
attributable directly of place the investment property under the
necessary conditions for it to operate in the manner intended by
the Administration. After the initial recognition, investment prop-
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erties are measured at cost minus the accumulated depreciation
and any accumulate impairment losses.

An investment property is written off when it is disposed of or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected to be received
from its sale. Any profit or loss arising from the removal of the
property (measured as the difference between the net income
from the sale and the book value of the asset) is included in the
consolidated income for the period in which the property was
written off.

15. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations
Non-current assets and groups of assets for disposal are clas-
sified as held for sale if their book value can be recovered
through a sales transaction rather than through their continued
use; these assets or groups of assets are presented separately
as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at
either their book value or fair value minus sales costs, which-
ever one is lowest, and are not depreciated or amortized from
the date of their classification. This condition is considered to
be met only when the sale is highly likely and the asset (or
group of assets for disposal) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition, subject only to the usual terms adapted
for the sale of these assets (or group of assets for disposal). The
Administration must be committed to making the sale, which
should be recognized as a completed sale within the period of
one year after the date of classification.
When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
are classified as held for sale when they meet the criteria de-
scribed above, regardless of whether the Group is going to keep
a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after its sale.
When the Group is committed to a sales plan involving the sale
of an investment, or a portion of an investment in an associate
or joint venture, the investment or portion of the investment
that will be sold is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method the in relation with the portion that is classi-
fied as held for sale. Any portion retained in an investment in an
associate or a joint venture that has not been classified as held
for sale, will continue to be accounted under the equity method.
The Group will discontinue the use of the equity method in rela-
tion with the portion that is classified as held for sale when the
sale results in the Group losing significant influence over the
associate or joint venture.
After the sale is made, the Group recognizes any interest retained
in the associate or joint venture in accordance with IAS 39, un-
less the interest retained is still an associate or a joint venture,
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in which case the Group uses the equity method (see accounting
policy related to the influence over an associate or joint venture).
In cases where the Group undertakes to distribute an asset (or
group of assets for disposal) to the owners, said non-current
asset (or group of assets for disposal) is classified as held for
distribution to owners. For this to be the case, the assets must
be available for immediate distribution in their present condition
and the distribution must be highly likely, i.e. activities must be
underway to complete the distribution and should be expected to
be completed within a year from the date of classification. The
Group has classified its subsidiaries in liquidation processes as
groups of assets for distribution to owners.

Revenues, costs and expenses from a discontinued operation
are presented separately from those from continuing opera-
tions -- in a single item after income taxes -- in the consolidated
comprehensive income statement for the current period and
for comparative the period of the previous year, even when the
Group retains a non -controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale.

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

The property, plant and equipment includes the amount of land,
buildings, furniture, vehicles, equipment, computing equipment
and other facilities owned by the consolidated companies, and
which are used for the companies’ operations. Cementos Argos
and its subsidiaries recognize an item of property, plant and
equipment when it is likely that the asset will generate future
economic benefits, it is expected to be used for a period longer
than one year, or all the risks and benefits inherent to the asset
have been received and its value can be measured reliably.
Spare parts and permanent maintenance equipment are recog-
nized as an item of property, plant and equipment as they meet
the recognition criteria.

Fixed assets are measured at cost minus accumulated deprecia-
tion and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Trade discounts,
rebates and other similar items are deducted from the cost of
acquisition of fixed assets.

Properties under construction for administrative, production or
service supply purposes are recorded at cost minus any recog-
nized impairment loss. The cost includes professional fees and,
in the case of qualifying assets, capitalized loans costs in accor-
dance with the accounting policy of the Group. These properties
are classified in the appropriate property, plant and equipment
categories at the time of their completion and when they are
ready for their intended use. The depreciation of these assets,
as in the case of other property assets, begins when assets are
ready for use.

The depreciation begins when the asset is available for use and
is measured in a linear manner over the estimated useful techni-



cal life of the asset as follows:

Buildings and constructions 401to 70 yrs
Means of Communications 20to 40 yrs
Machinery and equipment 10 to 30 yrs
ng#;rigﬂitég)trigﬁgt and furniture, computers and 3t010yrs
Transportation Equipment 3t0 10 yrs
Furniture, vehicles and tools 2to 10yrs

Owned land is not depreciated

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated for the period
of their estimated useful life equal to the held assets. However,
when there is no reasonable assurance that the property at will
be obtained at the end of the lease period, assets are depreciat-
ed over either the term of the lease or their useful life, whichever
one is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment will be written off at
the time of disposal or when economic future benefits are no
longer expected from their continued use. The profit or loss aris-
ing from writing off an asset or property, plant and equipment is
measured as the difference between sales revenue and the book
value of the asset and it is recognized in profit or losses.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of the
assets are reviewed and adjusted prospectively at each year-end,
if required.

17. Leasess

The Group classifies leases by evaluating the extent to which the
risks and benefits of owning the asset affect the lessor or lessee.
The Group classifies a lease as financial when all risks and bene-
fits inherent to the property are substantially transferred, and op-
erational when not all risks and benefits inherent to the property
are substantially transferred.

The Group initially recognizes an asset acquired through a finan-
cial lease according to its nature in the Statement of Financial
Position, at either its fair value or the present value of the mini-
mum lease payments, whichever one is lower, and recognizes a
short or long-term liability for the same amount.

Later, the asset is measured in accordance with the property,
plant and equipment policies (see property, plant and equipment
policy), and liabilities at amortized cost.

18. Borrowing Costs

The Group capitalizes borrowing costs that are directly attribut-
able to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset, if these costs could have been avoided if no disburse-
ments had been made for the asset. Borrowing costs are capital-
ized as part of the cost of assets when they are likely to generate
economic benefits and can be measured accurately. The capital-
ization of borrowing costs starts as part of the cost of a qualified

asset on the date on which the following conditions are met: a.
Disbursements are made in relation with the asset, b. Borrowing
costs are incurred, and c. Necessary activities to prepare the as-
set for its intended use or sale are carried out.

The Group suspends capitalization of borrowing costs during the
periods in which the activities of a qualifying asset are interrupt-
ed. However, the capitalization of borrowing costs is not inter-
rupted by during a period if important technical or administrative
actions are being carried out. Capitalization of borrowing costs
will also not be suspended when a temporary delay is a neces-
sary part of the preparation process of a qualified asset for its
intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ends when all necessary activi-
ties to prepare a qualified asset for its intended use or sale have
been substantially completed.

If the asset has components and these components can be used
separately while the construction continues, the capitalization of
borrowing costs on these components should be stopped.

19. Agriculture

The Group recognizes a biological asset or agricultural product
when it controls the biological asset or agricultural product as a
result of past events, it is likely it will generate future economic
benefits and the cost of the biological asset or agricultural prod-
uct can be measured reliably.

The Group measures biological assets both at the beginning and
at the end of the period, at fair value minus selling costs.

The fair value of a biological asset is established by its quoted
market price in an active market. In the event there are different
asset markets for the same biological asset, the fair value of the
asset will be determined by the price quoted in the most relevant
asset market.

If there is no asset market, the Group uses the following infor-
mation to determine the fair value, provided it is available, and
select the most reliable: a) the price of the most recent market
transaction, assuming there have been no significant changes
in economic circumstances between the date of the transaction
and the end of the reporting period, b) the market price of similar
assets, adjusted to reflect existing differences, c) sector bench-
marks such as the value of plantations expressed as a function
of surfaces, units of capacity, weight or volume.

Profits or losses arising from the initial recognition of a biological
asset or agricultural product at fair value minus selling costs and
from changes in this value are included in the consolidated in-
come statement of the period in which they occur.

20. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when Cementos Argos and its subsid-
iaries have a current, legal or implicit obligation as a result of
a past event, it is likely that the company will have to expend
resources to settle the obligation, and the value of the obliga-
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tion can be estimated reliably. In cases where Cementos Argos
and its subsidiaries expect the provision to be partially or fully
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate as-
set only when such a reimbursement is virtually certain and the
amount of the account receivable can be measured reliably.
Provisions are measured with the Administration’s best estimate
of the future disbursements required to settle the present obli-
gation and it is discounted using a risk-free rate. The expense
related to the provisions is presented in the comprehensive in-
come statement, net of all reimbursements. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a financial
expense in the comprehensive income statement.

The Group recognizes the present obligations, derived from an
onerous contract, as provisions. An onerous contract is one in
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations it implies
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it.

Contingent Liabilities

Possible obligations arising from past events and whose exis-
tence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the con-
trol of Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries, are not recognized in
the Statement of Financial Position, but are disclosed as contin-
gent liabilities.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a
going concern and as of December 31, 2015 there are no mate-
rial uncertainties related to events or conditions that produce sig-
nificant doubts about the ability of any company within the Group
to continue operating.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
At the end of the subsequent reporting periods, such contingent
liabilities are measured either the amount at which it would have
been recognized under IAS 37 or the amount at which it was
initially recognized minus the accumulated amortization recog-
nized under IAS 18 Revenue, whichever one is higher.

21. Post-Employment Benefit Plans

The Group recognizes liabilities for pensions, pension securities
and bonds, retirement premiums and other post-employment
benefits in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 Employ-
ee Benefits, except as provided by Decree 2496 of December
23, 2015, which determines that the parameters to establish the
liability for post-employment benefits of pension, pension secu-
rities and bonds must correspond with Decree 2783 of 2001,
as the best market approximation. This decree establishes the
actuarial assumptions for calculating future increases in salaries
and pensions, sets the actual rate of interest applicable and the
manner in which to consider the anticipated increase in income
for active and retired staff.

The Group recognizes the benefit plans classified as contribution
plans in the consolidated income statement as an administrative
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or sales expense, or cost of merchandise sold according to a pre-
sentation by function on the date on which it occurs.

The Group recognizes benefit plans classified as benefit plans
defined as an asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Po-
sition by the difference between the fair value of the plan assets
and the present value of the obligation of said plan, using the
projected unit credit method to determine the present value of
the obligation related to the defined benefits and the cost of the
current service and, where applicable, the cost of past services,
at least once a year. Plan assets are calculated at fair value,
which is based on market price information and, in the case of
quoted securities, it constitutes the published purchase price.
The Projected Unit Credit treats each period of service as a gen-
erator of an additional unit of entitlement to benefits and mea-
sures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
Group deducts the total value of post-employment benefits ob-
ligation even if part of it is to be paid within the twelve months
following the reporting period.

The estimate of the liability for post-employment benefits is per-
formed by an independent actuary.

Actuarial gains or losses, the yield on plan assets and changes
in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
the net interest on the liability (asset) of the defined net bene-
fits are recognized in the other comprehensive income. Actuarial
gains or losses include the effects of changes in actuarial as-
sumptions, as well as experience adjustments. The net interest
on the liability (asset) of the defined net benefits includes income
from interest on plan assets, interest costs for the defined benefit
obligation and interest on the effect of the asset ceiling.

The current service cost, the past service cost, any liquidation or
reduction of the plan is recognized immediately in the compre-
hensive income statement in the statement section in the period
in which they arise.

22. Inventories

Assets acquired with the intention of selling them in the ordi-
nary course of business or consumed in the process rendering
services.

The inventory of raw materials, products in process, merchan-
dise manufactured for sale and finished products are measured
at cost of acquisition. The Group recognizes a decrease in the
value of inventories of finished goods, materials, spare parts and
accessories if the cost exceeds the net realizable value. Net real-
izable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, minus the estimated costs of finalization and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories include goods in existence that do not require trans-
formation, materials such as minor parts and accessories for ren-
dering of services, and goods in transit and held by third parties.
Inventories are valued using the weighted average method and
its cost includes costs directly related to the acquisition and
those incurred to give them their current condition and location.



23. Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration re-
ceived or receivable. Revenues are reduced by discounts or re-
bates and other similar allowances estimated for customers.

Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods should be recognized when
goods are delivered and ownership has been transferred and
each and every one of the following conditions are met:
The entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and advantages of owning the asset;
The company does not remain involved in any way in the cu-
rrent management of the goods sold, to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor does it retain effective con-
trol over them
The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
It is likely that the company will receive the economic bene-
fits associated with the transaction, and
The costs incurred or to be incurred in relation with the tran-
saction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from service contracts is recognized by referencing the
completion status of the contract. The completion status of the
contract is determined thusly:
Installation fees are recognized as revenues in reference
to the completion status of the installation, determined as
the proportion of the total estimated time to install that has
elapsed by the end of the reporting period on;
Service fees included in the price of products sold are re-
cognized in reference to the proportion of the total cost of
the service provided for the product sold, and
Revenues from material contracts are recognized at the con-
tractual rates to the extent in which hours of production and
direct expenses are incurred.

Royalties

Royalties must be recognized on the basis of accumulation, ac-
cording to the economic substance of the agreement they are
based on (provided it is likely that the economic benefits will flow
for the company and the revenues can be measured  reliably).
Royalties determined on a time basis are recognized using the
straight line method during the period of the agreement. Royal-
ty agreements based on production, sales and other measure-
ments are recognized in reference to the underlying agreement.

Income from Dividends and Interest

Income from dividends from investment is recognized once estab-
lished the rights of shareholders to receive this payment have been
established (as long as it is likely that the economic benefits will
flow for the company and the revenue can be measured reliably).

Income from interest on a financial asset is recognized when it is
likely that the Group will receive the benefits associated with the
transaction and the amount of revenue can be measured  re-
liably. Interest income is recorded on a time basis, in reference
to the outstanding principal and the applicable effective rate of
interest, which is the discount rate that equals the receivable or
payable cash flows estimated along the expected life of the fi-
nancial instrument with the net book value of the financial asset
upon initial recognition.

Operating Leases Revenue

The policy of the Group for the recognition of revenue from op-
erating leases is the recognition of payments received as reve-
nue in the income statement in a linear manner throughout the
useful life of the contract, unless another basis of distribution
is deemed representative.

NOTE 3: ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

3.1. New and revised IFRS issued not adopted at the date of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to ex-

isting standards have been published and are mandatory for the

Group's consolidated financial statements for periods beginning

on January 1st, 2016 or at a later date; the Group has not applied

these requirements in advance.

Standards issued by the IASB and incorporated in Colombia as
of January 1st, 2016
Decree 2420 of 2015. With this decree, as of January 1st 2016
the following rules will govern the regulatory technical framework
that contains the standards in force at December 31, 2013 with
their respective amendments issued by the IASB, allowing early
application.

IFRIC 21 - Levies, interpretation of IAS 37.

IAS 36 - Impairment of assets, changes in the disclosure of

recoverable amounts of non-financial assets

IAS 39 - Financial Instruments - Changes in the novation and

continuation of hedging transactions.

Annual improvements, 2010 - 2012 Cycle.

Annual improvements, 2011 - 2013 Cycle.

Standards issued by the IASB to be incorporated in Colombia on
January 15, 2017
Decree 2496 of 2015. With this decree, starting on January 1st,
2017 the following standards will govern the regulatory technical
framework that contains the standards in force at December 31,
2014 with their respective amendments issued by the IASB, al-
lowing early application:
IAS 19 - Employee Benefits, employee or third party contribu-
tions associated with the defined benefit plans or services.
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IAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, offset of finan-
cial assets and liabilities.

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 - Dis-
closure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 27 - Separate
Financial Statements. Exception to the requirement to con-
solidate the subsidiaries of an investment entity.

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements, disclosure.

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 - Intan-
gible Assets, clarification of acceptable depreciation and
amortization methods.

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41 - Agricul-
ture, production plants.

IAS 27 - Separate Financial Statements, equity method in
the separate financial statements.

IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 -
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, sale or con-
tribution of goods between an investor and its associate or
joint venture.

IFRS 11 - Joint Operations.

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts.

Annual improvements, 2012 - 2014 Cycle

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" issued in November 2009,
introduced new requirements for the classification and mea-
surement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was later amended in
October 2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for writing off
financial instruments. Both were adopted by the Group in
advance. Subsequently, IFRS 9 was amended in November
2013 to include new requirements for general hedge accou-
nting and in July 2014 the final revised version of IFRS 9 was
issued, which includes: a) new requirements for impairment
of financial assets (expected credit losses model), b) limited
modifications to classification and measurement require-
ments, introducing the category of fair value with changes in
equity for certain debt instruments. The new requirements
included in IFRS 9 issued in July 2014 have not been adop-
ted by the Group yet. Currently, the Group is evaluating the
potential impact the application of these requirements on its
consolidated financial statements. The impairment model in
accordance with IFRS 9 reflects expected credit losses, as
opposed to the credit losses incurred according to IAS 39. In
the scope of the impairment under IFRS 9, it is no longer ne-
cessary for a credit event to occur before its credit losses are
recognized. Instead, an entity always posts both the expec-
ted credit losses and their changes. The amount of expected
credit losses must be updated at each reporting date to re-
flect changes in credit risk since the initial recognition. The
general hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 maintain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms included
in IAS 39. However, the ideal types of transactions for hed-
ge accounting are now much more flexible, particularly by
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broadening the types of instruments that are classified as
hedging instruments and types of risk components of ideal
non-financial elements for hedge accounting. Additionally,
the effectiveness test based on the principle of "economic
relation" has been revised and replaced. A retrospective
evaluation is no longer required to measure hedge effective-
ness. Many more requirements have been added regarding
the effectiveness test based on the principle of "economic
relation" has been revised and replaced. A retrospective
evaluation is no longer required to measure hedge effective-
ness. Many more requirements have been added regarding
the disclosure of the company’s risk-management activities.
The macro- hedge work conducted by the IASB is still in the
preliminary stages.

Standards issued by the IASB to be incorporated in Colombia a
January 1% 2018
Decree 2496 of 2015, with the allowed early adoption of this
decree starting January 1st, 2018 IFRS 15 "Revenue from Con-
tracts with Customers" will take effect. IFRS 15 establishes a
single comprehensive model to be used by entities to account
revenues from contracts with customers. The basic principle of
IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue represented
by the promised transfer of goods or services to customers for
amounts that reflect the considerations that the entity expects
to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard:

Step 1: Identifying the contract with the client;

Step 2: Identifying the performance obligations of the con-

tract;

Step 3: Determining the price of the transaction;

Step 4: Assigning the price of the transaction to each perfor-

mance obligation of the contract, and

Step 5: Recognizing the revenue when the entity fulfills the

performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when the obligation
is fulfilled, i.e., when control of the goods or services underlying
the performance obligation have been transferred to the custom-
er. IFRS 15 also includes guides to deal with specific situations. It
also increases the amount of required disclosures.

This standard replaces existing income recognition standards in-
cluding IAS 18 "Revenue", IAS 11 "Construction Contracts" and
IFRIC 13 "Customer Loyalty Programs".

The Group is currently reviewing the potential impact of the ap-
plication of IFRS 15 on its consolidated financial statements and
information to be disclosed.

Standards issued by the IASB in 2016 not yet incorporated
in Colombia:
IFRS 16 "Leases" issued in January 2016 and effective for periods



beginning on or after January 1st, 2019, with early adoption antici-
pated allowed - IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as op-
erating lease or financial lease contracts the tenant. Instead, leases
are recognized at the present value of the lease payments and pre-
sented as lease assets (right to use the asset) or as property, plant
and equipment. If lease payments are going to be made at a future
date, the company should recognize a financial liability representing
the contractual obligation to make such payments. IFRS 16 estab-
lishes as exceptions to the general principle of recognition contracts
for short-term leases and unrepresentative values.
The Group is currently evaluating the potential impact of the ap-
plication of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements and
information to be disclosed. The Administration estimates that
the application of IFRS 16 in the future could have a significant
effect on the reported amounts and disclosures made in the con-
solidated financial statements of the Group.
The standards, amendments and interpretations above are not
expected to have any impact or an insignificant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group:
Annual improvements to the IFRSs, 2012-2014 Cycle, is-
sued in September 2014 and effective for periods that start
on or after January 1st, 2016.
Investment Entities: application of the consolidation exemp-
tion (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28), issued
in December 2014 and effective for periods beginning on or
after January 1st, 2016.
Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28), issued in September 2014 and effective for periods be-
ginning on or after a date to be fixed by the IASB.
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
(Amendments to IFRS 11), issued in May 2014 and effective
for periods beginning on or after January 1st, 2016.
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortization (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38), issued
in May 2014 and effective for periods that start them on or
after January 1st, 2016.
Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1), issued in De-
cember 2014 and effective for periods beginning on or after
January 1st, 2016.
Agriculture: Bearer Plats (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS
41), issued June 2014, effective for periods beginning on or
after January 1st, 2016.
IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts" issued in January
2014 and effective for periods beginning on or after January
1st, 2016.

NOTE 4: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
When applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are de-

scribed in note 2, the Administration has to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and li-
abilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported figures for rev-
enues and expenses during the reporting period. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors considered relevant. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed regular-
ly by the Administration. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which they were reviewed if the revi-
sion only affects that period, or in future periods if the revision
affects both the current and subsequent periods.

4.1. Critical judgments when applying accounting policies
Below are presented the essential judgments, apart from those
involving estimates (see 4.2), made by the Administration during
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
which have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of entities

The Group's financial statements include the accounts of subsid-
iaries over which Cementos Argos S.A. has control. In the control
evaluation, the Group evaluates the existence of power over the
entity, the exposure, or rights, to variable returns from their in-
volvement with the entity; and the ability to use their power over
the entity to influence the yield of the Group. The Administration
uses their judgment to determine when control over an entity
exists. The judgment is applied to determine the relevant activi-
ties of each entity and the ability to make decisions about these
activities. In order to do this, the Group evaluates the purpose
and design of the entity, identifies the activities that most impact
their performance and evaluates how decisions about the rele-
vant activities are made. During the decision making evaluation,
the Group considers the existing voting rights, potential voting
rights, the contractual agreements between the entity and other
parties, and the rights and ability to appoint and remove the key
members of management, among other aspects. The judgment
is also applied to the identification of variable returns and the
Group’s exposure to them. Variable returns include, but are not
limited to, dividends and other distributions of economic profits
from the company, compensation for managing the assets or
liabilities of the entity, commissions and exposure to losses by
providing credit support or liquidity.

(a) Investment in SURCOL HOUDSTERMAATSCHAPPIJ NV

The Administration has assessed the degree of influence that

the Group has over SURCOL HOUDSTERMAATSCHAPPIJ NV
and determined that it exercises control over the entity while
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maintaining a percentage of participation equal to 50%, due
to their representation on the Board of Directors and the con-
tractual terms of the agreement, which states that the Group
has the current ability to decide on the activities that most
impact the performance of the entity according to the terms.

(a) Investment in Corporacion de Cemento Andino C.A. and its
subsidiaries, Andino Trading Corporation, Comercializadora
Dicemento C.A. and Depoan S.A.; and the companies Intern-
ship Agency Venezuela C.A. and Surandina de Puertos C.A.
The Administration has assessed the degree of influence that
the Group has over the aforementioned entities located in Ve-
nezuela, and determined that it has no control over the entities
even while maintaining a percentage of participation higher
than 50%, due to the fact that Cemento Andino was stripped
of its asset and declared a public and social interest utility by
the government of Venezuela on March 13th, 2006. The Group
is in the process of litigation to recover the companies.

Functional Currency

The Administration uses its judgment to determine its functional
currency. The determination of the functional currency of Cemen-
tos Argos S.A. and each of its investments in subsidiaries, associ-
ates and joint ventures is determined by evaluating the principle
and indicators in IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Ex-
change Rates.

Cash-Generating Units

When conducting impairment tests on non-current assets, as-
sets that do not individually generate cash inflows that are largely
independent from the cash flows generated by other assets or
groups of assets, they should be grouped to the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs, which is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows for the company that
are largely independent from other assets or groups of assets.
The Administration uses its judgment to determine the cash-gen-
erating units for purposes of impairment testing.

Determination of the average exchange rates for the conversion
of financial statements

The revenues, costs and expenses of consolidated subsidiaries
whose functional currency differs from the functional currency of
the parent company are converted into the presentation currency
using the average exchange rate for the reporting period. The Ad-
ministration considers that the average exchange rates approach
the rates in effect at the date of the transaction.

Hedge Accounting

The Administration uses their judgment to determine whether a
hedging relationship meets the requirements of IAS 39 Finan-
cial Instruments to be accounted for as hedge accounting, and
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evaluates the effectiveness of the hedging and sources of inef-
fectiveness. The Group applies fair value and cash flow hedge
accounting in its financial statements to hedge mainly the foreign
currency risk and interest rate. The decision to apply hedge ac-
counting has a significant impact on the financial statements of
the Group.

Recognition of deferred tax assets from losses or unused tax
credits

The Administration uses their judgment to recognize a deferred
tax asset when evaluating the existence of sufficient taxable prof-
its in future periods to offset it.

4.2. Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The basic assumptions about the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of a reporting period are
presented below, which involve a significant risk of material ad-
justments in the book values of assets and liabilities during the
upcoming financial period.

Evaluation of impairment on goodwill

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least once a year. The
evaluation of impairment on goodwill requires an estimate of the
useful value of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-gener-
ating units to which it has been assigned. The estimate of useful
value requires the estimate of future cash flows of the cash-gen-
erating unit or groups of cash generating units, and the estimate
of financial assumptions such as inflation rate, the discount rate
and the growth rate in perpetuity. In the process of measuring the
expected future cash flows, the Administration estimates future
operating results. Changes in valuation assumptions can cause
adjustments to the Group’s goodwill for the next few reporting
periods.

Income tax

The Group recognizes significant amounts of current and de-
ferred tax income in its consolidated financial statements due to
the volume of its operations and the multiple countries in which it
operates. The determination of current and deferred tax is based
on the Administration’s best interpretation of the existing and ap-
plicable laws and practices, and practical improvements of the
jurisdictions in which it operates. The reasonableness of this es-
timate depends significantly on the ability of the Administration
to integrate complex tax and accounting standards, to consider
changes in applicable laws and to evaluate, for deferred tax asset
recognition purposes, the existence of sufficient tax profits for
realization.

Uncertain tax positions are fiscal positions where the tax treat-
ment is not clear, or it may be challenged by the tax authorities
and it is expected that the situation will not be resolved favorably.
The Group recognizes uncertain tax positions mainly by exclud-



ing or treating income as untaxed in tax returns. No provision is
recognized for remote or possible uncertain tax positions. The
probability analysis is based on expert opinion and on analysis of
the valid tax regulations in the applicable jurisdiction. The Admin-
istration uses the available information to measure a  provision
for the best estimate of payments or resources required to settle
the obligation whenever an unfavorable resolution for the Group
is likely. Refer to Note 9 - Income tax which includes informa-
tion on uncertain tax positions for which the Group recognizes
provisions.

Pension plans and other defined post-employment benefits
The post - employment benefit liability is estimated using the
projected unit credit method, which requires financial and de-
mographic assumptions including but not limited to discount
rate, inflation indexes, expectation of salary increase, life expec-
tancy and turnover of employees. The estimate of the liability,
as well as the determination of the values of the assumptions
used in the valuation, is performed by an independent external
actuary, considering the country in which the benefit plan oper-
ates and the existing market conditions on the measurement
date. Because of the long-term horizon of these benefit plans,
estimates are subject to a significant degree of uncertainty; any
changes in actuarial assumptions directly impact the value of the
obligation for pensions and other post-employment benefits. On
December 23rd, 2015, the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and
Tourism issued Decree 2496, by which Decree 2420 of 2015 of
the Accounting, Financial Reporting and Information Assurance
Standards changes. The decree establishes provisions on the
parameters to determine the liability for post-employment ben-
efits, and it specifically states that the parameters established
in Decree 2783 of 2001 shall be used as the best market ap-
proximation when estimating the liability for pension and titles
and pension bonds. The Ministry of Finance and Public Credit will
review these parameters every three (3) years and, if needed,
it will make the necessary adjustments that are duly supported
with related technical studies. Other post-employment benefits
other than the above requirements will be determined in accor-
dance with IAS 19.

Identifiable assets and liabilities assumed in business combi-
nations

On the date of acquisition, the identifiable assets and liabilities
assumed in business combinations are included through the
global consolidation method in the Group’s financial statements
at their fair values. When measuring the fair value, the Adminis-
tration makes assumptions about future operating results and
key assumptions such as the discount rate and the growth rate in
perpetuity. The estimate of the fair value of acquired assets and
liabilities, as well as the determination of the values of the as-
sumptions used in the valuation, is performed by an independent

external appraiser. Any subsequent changes in estimates affect
the goodwill as long as the change qualifies as an adjustment of
the measurement period; any other change is recognized in the
income statement in the following period.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

As described in Note 2, the Group reviews the estimate of the
useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment
at least once a year. When there is evidence of changes in con-
ditions or in the expected utilization of an item of property, plant
and equipment, the Administration makes a new estimate of the
useful life of the item. The estimate of the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment is determined based on historical perfor-
mance of the asset, expected use of the asset by the Adminis-
tration and existing legal restrictions on its use. The estimate of
the useful lives requires a significant degree of judgment by the
Administration.

Fair value of financial derivatives and financial assets

The fair value of financial derivatives is determined by using val-
uation techniques widely known in the market, when there is no
observable market price. The Group uses its judgment to select
the appropriate valuation method for an asset or liability and
maximizes the use of observable variables. The assumptions are
consistent with market conditions at the time of measurement
and with information that market participants would consider
when estimating the price of the instrument. The Administration
believes that the selected valuation methods and assumptions
used are appropriate for the determination of fair value of finan-
cial derivatives. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the inherent lim-
itations of valuation models and parameters required by these
models can result in the estimate of an asset or liability fair value
does not exactly match the price at which the asset or liability
could be exchanged or liquidated on the date of measurement.
Additionally, changes in internal assumptions and forwards
curves used for valuation can significantly affect the fair value of
financial derivatives.

Additionally, the Administration measures  at fair value the eg-
uity investments classified in the category of fair value through
other comprehensive income with reference to their quoted price
at the end of the measurement period in the stock market where
they are traded.

Decommissioning, removal or restoration liabilities

The provision for decommissioning, removal or restoration is
recognized by the present value of the expected costs to settle
the obligation using estimated cash flows. In the process of mea-
suring the present value of the obligation, the Administration
makes estimates of future disbursements for the decommission-
ing, removal or rehabilitation, the estimated date(s) in which the
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disbursements will be made and financial assumptions such as
inflation rate and the discount rate. Given the long-term horizon
of decommissioning obligations, the estimates are subject to a
significant degree of uncertainty and can significantly affect the
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions for contingencies, litigation and claims

Litigations and claims to which the Group is exposed are han-
dled by the legal department, such processes are of labor, civil,
criminal and administrative character. The Group considers that
a past event has given rise to a present obligation if, taking into
account all available evidence at the date on which it is reported,
it is likely to be a present obligation, regardless of future events.
In these cases, it is understood that the occurrence of an event
is more likely than not when the probability of occurrence is
greater than 50%. The Group recognizes a provision when it is
probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will occur,
it discloses information about the contingency when their occur-
rence is possible, and does not record or disclose information
when it concludes that the probability of occurrence is remote.
The Group involves the professional judgment of internal and ex-
ternal attorneys to determine the possibility of occurrence of a
present obligation. When estimating the provision for litigation
and claims the Administration considers assumptions such as,
but not limited to, inflation rate, lawyer fees, estimated duration

of the litigation or lawsuit, economical information of processes
with similar characteristics and the discount rate to be applied to
cash flows to determine the value of the obligation, for those obli-
gations expected to be settled within a period longer than twelve
(12) months after the end of the period reported.

Wealth tax

Through Law 1739 of December 23rd, 2014, the national govern-
ment set a wealth tax. This tax is generated by the possession of
wealth (gross assets minus debts outstanding) equal to or over
1 billion pesos in between the January 1st, 2015 and 2017. This
law states that taxpayers will be able to charge this tax against
equity reserves without affecting net income, both in separate
and consolidated financial statements. The Group recognized the
wealth tax under the consolidated equity as permitted by law, by
the tax value recognized tax on January 1%, 2015.

NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash and banks, net outstanding bank
overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting
period in the consolidated cash flow statement can be reconciled
with the related items in the consolidated statement of financial
position as follows:

2015 2014 January 1,
Cash and banks 545,708 525,864 504,395
545,708 525,864 504,395
%arssha:%alances and banks included in a group of assets held 6,507 6,507 13,344
Total cash and banks 552,215 532,371 517,379
VALUE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT RESTRICTED OR NOT AVAILABLE 944 937 758

FOR USE

As of December 31st, 2015 and 2014, and January 1st, 2014 the
Group had cash and cash equivalent balances restricted by agree-
ments with the Administrative Department of Science, Technology
and Innovation (Colciencias) and the Institute for the Development
of Antioquia (IDEA), which state that the contribution of resources
and scheduled disbursements are restricted to address the activi-
ties restricted destination the agreements.
During the current year and in comparative periods, the Group car-
ried out the following investment and financing activities that are
not reflected in the consolidated cash flow statement:

Public deed 1830 of July 16, 2015 perfected the swap agre-
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ement signed between Cementos Argos S.A. and the Foun-
dation for Social Benefit in order to transfer properties to
Cementos Argos S.A. as a swap, and to transfer in favor of
the Foundation for Social Benefit 100% of the shares of sub-
sidiaries Tekia S.A.S, Ganaderia Rio Grande S.A.S, Alianza
Progenetica S.A.S and mercantile trusts for administration
N° 7321-359 and N° 732-1435, for a total of $93,579.

Subscription of leases agreements for the acquisition of pro-
perty, plant and equipment recognized as financial leasing
for $ 5,152 (2014: $ 32, January 1st, 2014: $ 22,268).



NOTE 6: FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

2015 2014 January 1,
Derivative financial assets not designated as financial instruments - - 1,934
Fair value hedges -
Cash flow hedges 338
Derivative financial assets designated as financial instruments 22,438 23,235 338
22,438 23,235 2,272
Current 22,114 23,067 -
Non-current 324 168 2,272
22,438 23,235 2,272

2015 2014 January 1,
Derivative financial assets not designated as financial instrument - 4,707 10,592
Fair value hedges 932
Cash flow hedges 172,156 121,997 35,394
Derivative financial assets designated as financial instruments 172,156 121,997 36,326
172,156 126,704 46,918
Current - - 932
Non-current 172,156 126,704 45,986
172,156 126,704 46,918
NET LONG (SHORT) POSITION IN FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES (149,718) (103,469) (44,646)

To mitigate risks with foreign currency transactions and expo-
sure to interest rates, Cementos Argos S.A. and its subsidiaries
undertake natural hedging and financial hedging operations by
using derivative financial instruments, mainly derivative swap
contracts (“swap") and forward contracts. Certain derivative in-
struments are designated as hedging instruments for cash flow
or fair value in accordance with the criteria of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. The Group does not use derivative instruments, or
any other public financial instruments for speculative purposes.
Swap operations relate to financial transactions in which the
Group, through a contractual agreement with a bank, exchanges
cash flows with the purpose of reducing the risks related to cur-
rency, rate, term or issuer, and also relate to the restructuring of
assets or liabilities.

Forward transactions and currency swap transactions are used
to hedge the exchange rate risk in operations of foreign currency
debt, to hedge future cash flows with high probability of occur-
ring, such as the Group’s monthly exports, and with the purpose
of balancing the Group’s currency exposure by taking advantage

of what, in the opinion of the Administration, are considered fa-
vorable market conditions. The existence of this agreement has
no impact on the underlying debt valuation.

The Group also uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure
to interest rates. In the case of interest rate swaps there is no ex-
change of capital, and the Group is responsible for its debts with
defined amounts and terms, the accounting record is indepen-
dent from the swap. These exchanges aim to convert financial
instruments either from fixed to variable or from variable to fixed.
Financial derivatives are recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their fair values, taking into account the
market curves in effect on the date of valuation. The accounting
of changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the use
of the derivative and its designation as a hedging instrument. In
relations of fair value hedging, changes in the fair value of the
hedged item and the hedging instrument are recognized and off-
set in the consolidated income statement for the period.

In cash flow hedging relationships, changes in the fair value of
the hedging instrument are recognized directly in the other con-
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solidated comprehensive income for the effective hedging por- Management documents the hedging relationship from the time
tion, and the ineffective portion is presented in the consolidated  of initial recognition. This documentation includes, but is not lim-
financial income or expenses. Profits or losses recognized in eq-  ited to, the following:

uity are subsequently reclassified to the consolidated statement Designation and hedging relationship, hedging objective and
of income when the hedged item affects the consolidated results risk management strategy;

of the Group. Designation date of the accounting hedge;

Derivatives that are not designated as hedges for accounting pur- Procedure to assess the effectiveness and method to assess
poses under IAS 39 are measured at fair value. the effectiveness of the prospective and retroactive hedging
Changes resulting from the measurement of contracts are rec- and its periodicity.

ognized in the consolidated results of the period, as financial in-
come or expense.
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As of December 315, 2015 and 2014 there were no currency pur-
chase forward operations to convert credits in dollars to pesos
synthetically. As of December 31st, 2014, the Group maintained

NOTE 7: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

a currency swap operation on a credit of USD $51.9 million to
convert it synthetically to pesos. The details of the swap are ex-
plained in this note.

2015 2014 January 1,
Financial assets measured at fair value with change in the results 9,677 11,527 13,430
Zilrgigggl)assets measured at fair value with change in other comprehensive results 1,459,070 1,720,536 1,456,395
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 1,583 1,607 12,317

1,470,330 1,733,670 1,482,142
Current 3,676 2,953 10,832
Non-current 1,466,654 1,730,717 1,471,310

1,470,330 1,733,670 1,482,142

As of December 31st, 2015 and 2014 there were no currency
purchase forward operations to convert credits in dollars to pe-
sos synthetically. As of December 31%, 2014, the Group main-
tained a currency swap operation on a credit of USD $51,9 mil-
lion to convert it synthetically to pesos. The details of the swap
are explained in this note.

The category of other financial assets at fair value with change in

other comprehensive income includes investments the Group’s
investments in Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S.A. and Ban-
colombia S.A. These investments are measured at fair value on
a monthly basis. Note 27.2.1 Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, details the value of
these investments for the reporting periods.

NOTE 8: TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2015 2014 January 1,
Trade receivables and other receivables 1,180,600 994,874 736,502
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable (73,385) (49,331) (45,376)
1,107,215 945,543 691,126
Current 1,071,587 932,857 668,645
Non-current 35,628 12,686 22,481
1,107,215 945,543 691,126
Average age (days) 37 39 31

Trade accounts receivable disclosed in the above paragraphs
include amounts (see below the age analysis) that will have ma-
tured by the end of the reporting period, but for which the Group
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has not recognized any allowance for irrecoverable accounts be-
cause there has not been any significant public change in credit
quality and also those that are still considered recoverable.



January 1,

2015 2014

2014

Movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable
Starting balance (49,331) (45,376) (33,386)
Impairment losses recognized for accounts receivable (25,072) (14,050) (11,923)
Write-off for amounts considered irrecoverable during the year 12,583 14,171 1,406
Recovered amounts during the year 165 100 39
Reversed impairment losses 1,310 2,999 1,338
Loss of control of a subsidiary 36 - -
Assumed through business combinations - (92) (697)
Result of foreign currency conversions (13,037) (7,253) (2,168)
Other changes (39) 170 15
YEAR-END BALANCE (73,385) (49,331) (45,376)
Age of overdue but unimpaired accounts receivable
60-90 days 35,894 37,533 29,804
90-180 days 46,075 24,504 55,963
180-360 days 51,504 61,879 18,451
Over 360 days 42,594 80,048 81,820

176,067 203,964 186,038
Age of overdue trade receivables
60-90 days 8,299 3,477 2,758
90-180 days 9,818 8,965 11,253
180-360 days 16,342 13,267 11,119
Over 360 days 38,926 23,622 20,246

73,385 49,331 45,376

The average credit period on the sale of goods is 30 days. There
is no interest surcharge on trade accounts receivable after the
average credit period. The Group evaluates at the end of the re-
porting period, and with the same frequency as the interim fi-
nancial information, if there is objective evidence to suggest that
financial assets are impaired, and if this is the case, the Group
recognizes an impairment in consolidated income statement.
The Group recognizes a provision for individual customers when
they are in a state of economic insolvency or when a financing or
restructuring agreement is reached, for the account receivable.
Additionally, it also performs a collective impairment analysis by
grouping the portfolio by ranges of overdue days and applying to
these values the default rates estimated by the Administration
based on historical default experience.

When determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the account
from the date the credit was initially granted until the end of the
reporting period.

NOTE 9: INCOME TAX

Applicable tax provisions in force state that nominal income tax
rates for 2015 and 2014 applicable to Cementos Argos and its
subsidiaries located in Colombia and its subsidiaries located in
Antigua, Curacao, Dominica, the United States, French Guiana,
Haiti, Honduras, US Virgin Islands, Panama, the Dominican
Republic, Saint Maarten, Saint Thomas and Suriname, are as
follows:

Notes to the consolidated financial statements




Country 2015 2014

Antigua 25% 25%
Colombia (1) 34% 34%
Colombia Free Trade Zone 15% 15%
Curacao 27.50% 27.50%
Dominica 30% 30%
USA 35% 35%
French Guiana 33.33% 33.33%
Haiti 31% 31%
Honduras 30% 30%
British Virgin Islands 0% 0%
Panama 25% 25%
Dominican Republic 29% 28%
San Martin 30% 30%
St Thomas 35% 35%
Suriname 36% 36%

(1) In 2015, a surcharge of 5%is added corresponding to the surcharge income tax for equity purposes CREE, which applies prospectively

as follows:

2015 2016 2017

2018

5% 6% 8%

9%

Below are the major laws and issues applicable to Cementos Ar-
gos and its subsidiaries in the countries where the main activities
are carried out:

Colombia:

The income tax rate applicable in Colombia is 25% plus 9% more
for the CREE. Additionally, there is a special tax regime for the Free
Trade Zone whose benefits include an income tax rate of 15% and

Surcharge
CREE taxable base minus $800 million

not being subject to the CREE income tax for equity purposes.

Law 1739 of 2014
CREE surtax for the periods of 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018
is created. The operative event of the surcharge applies to
taxpayers whose annual CREE tax return has a liquid income
equal to or over $800 million. Applicable marginal rates to
establish the surtax are as follows:

2016
6%

2017
8%

2018
9%

2015
5%

The surcharge is subject to an advance payment of 100% of
the value thereof, calculated on the CREE taxable base on
which the taxpayer settled the aforementioned tax on the
previous year.

Tax losses incurred by CREE taxpayers as of 2015 can be
offset when calculating this tax. They can also be offset the
taxable income of the next five (5) years, the surplus of the
minimum income base for equity purposes calculated with
the second paragraph of article 22 of Law 1607 of 2012.
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Under no circumstances may the CREE tax or its surchar-
ge be offset with credit balances from other taxes that have
been settled in tax returns. Similarly, credit balances to be
settled in CREE and CREE surcharge tax returns cannot be
offset with debts on other taxes, advances, deductions, in-
terest and penalties.

Law 1607 of 2012
It is established that, for tax purposes only, remittances con-



tained in tax regulations of accounting standards will continue
to be valid during the four years following the entry into effect of
the International Financial Reporting Standards. Consequently,
during this time, the tax bases of items to be included in the tax
returns will be unchanged. Additionally, the requirements of ac-
counting treatments for the recognition of special tax situations
will no longer be valid from the date of application of the new
accounting regulatory framework.

Law 1739 of 2014

This law creates the wealth tax that applies from January 1st,
2015 onwards. The operative event is the possession of wealth
(gross assets minus debts outstanding) greater than or equal
to $1 billion as of January 1st, 2015. The taxable base for the
wealth tax is the value of the gross assets of entities, minus out-
standing debts held at January 1st, 2015, 2016 and 2017. The
applicable rate is as follows:

Taxable Base Ranges 2015 2016 2017
From $0 to $ 2,000 million 0.20% 0.15% 0.05%
From $ 2,000 to $ 3,000 million 0.35% 0.25% 0.10%
From $ 3,000 to $ 5,000 million 0.75% 0.50% 0.20%
$5,000 million and above 1.15% 1.00% 0.40%

Law 1370 of 2009

This law creates the equity tax for the year 2011. The operative
event is the possession of wealth, as of January 1st, 2011, for a
value greater than or equal to 3 billion pesos. The statement was
filed in May 2011 and payment made in eight equal instaliments
in the months of May and September of the years 2011, 2012,
2013 and 2014.

United States of America

In the US, the federal tax rate is 35%. Similarly, there is a state
tax rate, which varies by state in a range from 3% to 7%. The
state of Texas has a particular rate of 1%, called "Texas Margin
Tax". Tax returns for the past three years are subject to revision
by the tax authorities. When tax losses occur, federal tax losses
have a period of validity of 20 years, and state tax losses have a
period between 5 and 20 years. When tax losses are used, these
have a maximum utilization limit equivalent to 90% of the taxable
income; this limit is calculated through a mechanism called Al-
ternate Minimum Tax "AMT". The tax applicable to the remaining
10% is settled at 20%.

Panama

The current tax refers to the tax on the year’s net taxable income
using the current income tax rate (25%) on the date of the con-
solidated statement of financial position.

Deferred taxes are calculated based on the liability method con-
sidering the temporary differences between the book values of
the assets and liabilities reported for financial purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
is based on the form of realization of assets and liabilities, using
income tax rates in effect on the date of the consolidated finan-
cial statement.

Honduras

Decree No. 25 of 20 December 1963, established the obligation
of natural or legal persons engaged in civil or commercial activ-
ities to pay income taxes, and its article 22 determined the rate
for legal persons as twenty five percent (25%) of total net taxable
income. On the other hand, Decree 278 of December 2013 re-
formed the Tax Equity Act by establishing a surcharge on income
called Solidarity Contribution equal to five percent (5%) applied
to the excess of the net taxable income higher than one million
lempiras ($140 million) starting with the fiscal period of 2014.

Firmness of statements:

The parent company and its subsidiaries have terms open to re-
vision by the tax authorities of each country, which vary between
the years 2009 and 2014. The managers of the companies con-
sider that no additional significant obligations will occur as a re-
sult of any eventual revisions.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements




9.1. Income tax recognized in the period income

Current Tax 2015 2014
Regarding the year in progress 178,521 138,079
178,521 138,079
Deferred tax
Origin and reversal of temporary differences (16,016) 108,770
Changes to tax laws and rates 2,382 (15,218)
Other components of deferred tax expenses (income) (37,982) (68,944)
(51,616) 24,608
Total current tax expense 126,905 162,687
Current tax expense from discontinued operations - (157)
TOTAL CURRENT TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 126,905 162,530

Below is the detailed conciliation of the effective rate applicable to Cementos Argos and its subsidiary companies:

Conciliation of the
effective tax rate

2015 2014

Profits before income taxes and discontinued operations 696,542 467,909
Discontinued operations - (21,363)
Adjustments for policy changes - (791)
PROFITS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 696,542 445,755
CURRENT TAX EXPENSES AT THE LEGAL RATES APPLICABLE TO 305.152 229,928
THE COMPANIES ’

Non-deductible expenses 117,393 39,519
Untaxed income (28,487) (58,886)
Sale of untaxed investment (1,147) -
Untaxed dividend (10,514) (28,919)
Temporary difference taxables 51,743 168,652
Temporary difference deductibles (177,318) (149,923)
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses or presumptive income surpluses (29,114) (9,609)
Others, net (100,803) (28,074)
mgggﬂﬁ#ﬁﬁ;&(ggggiﬁ{)ﬁglNANCIAL STATEMENTS PRIOR TO 126,905 162,687
Discontinued operations - (157)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE S/G FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AT THE EFFECTIVE 126,905 162,530

TAX RATE)

Variations between statutory rates applicable to Cementos Ar-
gos and its subsidiaries, considered individually, and the effec-
tive rate generated in the consolidated financial statements are
mainly due to:
Untaxed income accounted through the equity method post-
ed in Cementos Argos’ separate financial statements as the
controlling entity, in accordance with Law 222 of 1995.
Tax benefits associated with a greater participation of the
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subsidiary Zona Franca Argos S.A.S in operational activities
Benefits in the consolidated utilities from recognizing de-
ferred tax assets for unused tax losses to use which have
been impaired in the financial statements of subsidiaries
located in the United States, according to the principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States.

Untaxed dividends received by Cementos Argos S.A. from
Colombian subsidiaries.



Non-deductible expenses treated as non-temporary differences.
9.2. Income tax recognized directly in equity and other comprehensive income

Deferred Tax 2015 2014
New measurements for defined benefit plans (11,328) (15,165)
Cash flow hedging 4,167 7,703
(7,161) (7,462)

9.3 Assets and liabilities of current tax and deferred tax balances

2015 2016 2017
Deferred tax assets 278,959 153,518 83,963
Deferred tax liabilities 323,805 182,084 216,276
(44,846) (28,566) (132,313)

The analysis of deferred tax assets (liabilities) presented in the consolidated statement of financial position is presented below:

2015 2016 2017
Deferred tax assets 550,883 313,784 190,206
Deferred tax liabilities 663,992 514,103 357,957

(113,109) (200,319) (167,751)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements




The movements of the net deferred tax liability for Cementos Argos and its subsidiaries for the period ended December 31, 2015,

2014 and January 1st, 2014 is as follows:

Recognized Assumed Loss of
2015 Opening Recognized in the other Reco_gnlzed through EchIE\fafﬁgeOF:ate Control Other Closing
Balance in Results Comprehensive Equit Business Differences of a Changes Balance

.......................................................... Results WY combinations Subsidiary
Other Current
Assets 611 35,856 - - - 4,109 - - 40,576
Associates
and Joint (5,144) 1,549 - - - - - - (3,595)
Ventures
Other
Equity (38,788) 7,305 - 38,433 - (6,129) (698) - 123
Investments
Property,
Plant and (392,136) (88,761) - - (21,666) (60,470) 815 - (b62,218)
Equipment
Intangible
Assets (105,119) (9,975) - - (16,475) (44,037) - - (175,606)
Other Non-
Current 2,857 (76,491) - - 271 8,048 10,404 - (54,911)
Assets
Provisions 232,968 (24,246) - - 145 4,546 (104) - 213,309
Employee
Benefits 32,544 259 (2,309) - 223 2,614 - (1,271) 32,060
Financial
Liabilities 29,182 36,874 (3,584) - - 8,065 - - 70,537
Lenges. (2,540) 3,620 - - () (466) ) ) 608
Other
Liabilities (277,491) 11,690 - - 353 2,878 (1,515) 9,755 (254,330)
Unused Tax
Credits 278 1,633 - - - 49 - - 1,960
Unused Tax
Losses 317,418 139,329 - - - 115,750 - - 572,497
Unused
Presumptive
Income 5,041 839 - - - - - - 5,880
Surpluses
TOTAL
Dy FRRED T (200,319) 39,481 (5,893) 38,433 (37,155) 34,957 8902 8484 (113,110)
LIABILITIES
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Recognized N Assumed Loss of
January, Opening  Recognized in the other Recoigrflmzed through Excf\fafﬁgteol':ate Control  Other Closing
2014 Balance in Results Comprehensive Equity Business Differences of a Changes Balance
Results q Combinations Subsidiary

Other Current
Assets (9,471) 10,081 - - - - - - 610
Associates
and Joint (2,302) (2,842) - - - - - - (5,144)
Ventures
Other
Equity (14,222) 24,566 - - - - - - (38,788)
Investments
Property,
Plant and (341,567) (50,569) - - - - - - (392,136)
Equipment
Intangible
Assets (79,586) (25,534) - - - - - - 115,120
Other Non-
Current (75,710) 91,335 - - (33,641) 20,875 - - 2,859
Assets
Provisions 158,430 74,538 - - - - - - 232,968
Employee
Benefits 31,314 3,089 (1,860) - - - - - 32,543
Financial
Liabilities 9,433 19,749 - - - - - - 29,182
Financial
Leases (2,618) 79 - - - - - - (2,539)
Other Liabilites ~ (111,717)  (165,774) - - - - - - (277,491)
Unused Tax
Credits ; 278 ) ) ) ) ) . 278
Unused Tax
LoSSEs 266,503 50,915 - - - - - - 317,418
Unused
Presumptive
Income 3,762 1,279 - - - - - - 5,041
Surpluses
TOTAL
DryERRED (167,751)  (17,942) (1,859) - (33,641) 20,875 - - (200,319)
LIABILITIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements




January,
014

Opening Recognized
in Results Comprehensive

Balance

Recognized

in the other  Recognized

Results Equity

Assumed Effect of
through Exchange
Business Rate
Combinations Differences

Loss of
Control of
a Subsidiary

Other Closing
Changes Balance

Other Current
Assets

- 2,907

2,907

Associates
and Joint
Ventures

- (2,733)

(2,733)

Other
Equity
Investments

- (20,823)

(20,823)

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

- (216,621)

(216,621)

Intangible
Assets

- (3,342)

(3,342)

Other Non-
Current
Assets

- (5,746)

67,189

Provisions

- 17,274

17,274

Employee
Benefits

- 26,548

26,548

Financial
Liabilities

- (20,022)

(20,022)

Convertible
Instruments

Financial
Leases

(41)

(41)

Other
Liabilities

4,438

(13,581)

Unused Tax
Credits

Unused Tax
Losses

30,837

30,837

Unused
Presumptive
Income
Surpluses

10,648

10,648

TOTAL
DEFERRED
TAX
LIABILITIES
(ASSSETS)

(13,223) 2,274 -

(176,675)

65,866 (121,758)

The recognition of deferred tax assets was based on the following
evidence:

The more conservative scenarios evidence the full recovery of
accumulated tax losses periods of time that are more than satis-
factory. The Administration has analyzed, technically and with re-
straint, the probabilities and horizons of reversal of these losses.
The projections for measuring asset impairment made by Cherry
Bekaert were used as the base, assuming that for every trial year
only the projections to date were known in the most conservative
scenario. With these projections, through the simulation of cash
flows and financial obligations, financial expenses were calculat-
ed to finally achieve tax profits before taxes, confirming the early
recoverability of losses incurred.

After adjusting, stabilizing and even moderating growth in the
medium term, the results of the projections show persistence
and consumption of losses accumulated before nine years for all
cases. A summary of the results is shown in the following table:
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Balance
of Operating
Losses

443,705
624,167
824,683
1,248,306

Expiration of
Operating
Losses

2030
2031
2032
2033

Trial Year

2012
2013
2014
2015

To recognize deferred tax assets, Cementos Argos analyzes the
total tax losses in each country, considering those that will not
be rejected by tax authorities, based on the available evidence,
as well as the probability of their recovery before their maturi-
ty, through the generation of future taxable income. When the
analysis determines that there is a high probability of rejection
of the tax asset by the tax authorities, the amount of the asset
is reduced. When it is considered that it will not be possible to



use a deferred tax asset prior to its maturity, the asset is not
recognized. Both situations affect the income tax expense in the
period in which the determination is effected. In order to assess
the likelihood that deferred income tax assets will be realized,
all available evidence is taken into consideration, both positive
and negative, including, among other factors, industry analysis,
market conditions, expansion plans, tax strategies, tax structure
and expected changes in them, projected taxable income, the
maturity of the tax losses and future reversal of temporary differ-
ences. The company has not generated any deferred tax assets
that depend on the reversal of temporary taxable differences.

Temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiar-
ies, associates and interests in joint ventures for which no de-
ferred tax liabilities were recognized are $2,635,996 (2015) and
$2,709,449 (2014), whose deferred tax liability is $896,239
(2015) and $921,212 (2014).

9.4. Unrecognized deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and unused tax credits

Deductible temporary differences, presumptive surplus income,

unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred

tax assets were recognized are attributable to the following.

2015 2014
Unused tax credits and losses
More than one year and up to five years - -
No time limit 1,503 1,445
1,503 1,445
Surplus presumptive income on ordinary liquid income
More than one year and up to five years 346 355
346 355
TOTAL TAX BENEFITS FOR WHICH NO DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 1,849 1,800

WERE RECOGNIZED

There were no proposed dividends before the financial statements
were authorized for issuance upon which could be expected to have
an impact on the income tax. In fact, there were no proposed or
declared dividends before the financial statements were authorized
for issuance.

9.5. Impact of business combinations on income tax during
the period
During the reported periods they were no changes to the value

of deferred income tax assets related to business combinations.

9.6. Impact of payment of potential dividends to shareholders
on income tax

El Grupo no tiene consecuencias potenciales en la declaracion

The Group has no potential consequences in the tax return in the

event of paying of dividends to its shareholders.

NOTE 10: INVENTORIES

2015 2014 January 1,

Finished products 110,928 69,173 64,042
Products in process 144,073 125,173 62,271
Raw materials and direct materials 203,974 204,017 122,371
Materials, spare parts and accessories 194,681 126,031 98,121
Inventory in transit 27,649 9,199 1,692
Goods not manufactured by the company 34,066 9,824 4,800
Others 10,686 7,526 5,603
Advances for the acquisition of inventory 1,652 5,944 5,687

727,709 556,887 364,587

Notes to the consolidated financial statements




The cost of inventories recognized as cost of merchandise sold
during the period regarding continuing operations in the consol-
idated income statement corresponds to $6,097,927 (2014: $
4,485,753).

The value of the decreased inventories to the net realizable value
net corresponds to $2,205 (2014: $4,321) with a reversal of the
reduction in value of $4,312 (2014: $1,648). The reversal of the

NOTE 11: BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

reduction in value of inventories relates mainly to the companies
Argos Panama, S.A. for $ 1,673 due to discarded parts, and Hon-
duras Argos S.A. de CV for $2,639 due to changes in the estimate
of the net realizable value of spare parts.

As of December 31, 2015 and comparative periods, the Group
does not maintain inventories pledged as collateral liabilities. The
Group expects to realize its inventories in less than 12 months.

Plantations Liveg:g::(sand Total

2015
Book value at Jan. 1st 43,894 23,380 67,274
Disposals and loss of control of subsidiaries (28,547) (23,380) (51,927)
Cambios en el valor razonable menos costos de venta 4,895 4,895
Book value at Dec. 31st 20,242 - 20,242
Current - - -
Non-current 20,242 20,242

20,242 - 20,242

Plantations Liveg:z:lr(sand Total

2014
Book value at Jan. 1st 41,023 20,744 61,767
Additions 1,437 1,246 2,683
Transfers to inventories (4,573) (4,573)
Disposals - (255) (255)
Changes in fair value minus selling costs 6,685 1,645 8,330
Other changes (678) (678)
Book value at Dec. 31st 43,894 23,380 67,274
Current 304 304
Non-current 43,590 23,380 66,970

43,894 23,380 67,274

The Group carries out agricultural activities through Cementos
Argos S.A., which engages in forestry projects, and the subsidiar-
ies Tekia S.A.S, a company that operates in and manages forestry
and agroforestry projects in the Republic of Colombia and whose
main biological assets are teak, pine and acacia plantations;
Ganaderia Rio Grande S.A.S, a company whose corporate pur-
pose is the exploitation of agriculture and livestock industries
and whose main biological asset is livestock; mercantile admin-
istration trusts N° 7321-359 and N° 732-1435, which include
forest assets located in EI Carmen de Bolivar and land intended
for livestock activity; and Alianza Progenética S.A.S, a company
that operates in biotechnology projects and commercializes em-
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bryos for bovine production to third parties.

The Group’s biological assets are measured at fair value minus
estimated costs of sale at the point of harvest or collection, tak-
ing into account significant observable entry data, Level 2 for
livestock and Level 3 for plantations. Changes in the fair value
of biological assets are presented in the comprehensive income
statement as income or valuation expense, as appropriate. The
discounted cash flow model was used for the valuation of plan-
tations, taking into account that the future economic benefits
associated with forestry are expected to perform 3 or 4 times
over time, like so: when the plantation has been pruned 2 or 3
times, depending on the age and diameter of the plantation, and



the last time when the clearcutting is carried out. In this regard,
the fair value is determined by applying a discount rate to the net
future cash flows and, for such purposes, we used the weight-
ed average cost capital which was estimated at 8.2% in 2015
(2014: 10.4%, January 1st, 2014: 8.5%).

For its part, the fair value of livestock was estimated using the
market approach, which in this case corresponds to the spot
market price agreed upon according to an estimate of the weight,
age and other conditions of the livestock that determine the price
of a kilo of meat on the market.

The Group’s biological assets are made up of plantations,
as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Plantations
(hectares
planted 1172 5,556 5,517
= ha)
Livestock
(animals) 8,448 8,095

Plantations include mainly teak, eucalyptus, pine, rubber, acacia
and melina spread throughout the country in Boyacaj, Riosucio
(Caldas), Montebello (Antioquia), Rioclaro (Antioquia), Cartagena
(Bolivar), Victoria (Caldas), Puerto Nare (Antioquia), Puerto Lib-
ertador (Cordoba), San Onofre (Sucre) and El Carmen de Bolivar
(Bolivar). There was no harvest of wood in 2015 (forest harvest in
2014 was 30,760 m3 and in 2013: 43.886 m3).

The livestock animals correspond to animals for breeding, rear-

ing, fattening, donors, thoroughbred, horses, sheep, buffalos,
recipients, LG cattle, and others. The Group’s revenues related
to this line of business are mainly due to national sales of cattle
and related activities including the sale of silo, hay, semen and
pregnancy services.

On July 16, 2015 the swap agreement between Cementos Argos
S.A. and the Foundation for Social Benefit was perfected in or-
der to transfer lands as a swap in favor of Cementos Argos S.A.
and to transfer in favor of the Foundation for Social Benefit 100%
of the shares of subsidiaries Tekia S.A.S, Ganaderia Rio Grande
S.A.S, and mercantile trust for administration N°7321-359 of
administration and N°732-1435. This transaction implied the
disposal of a significant portion of the Group’s biological assets.
The statement of financial position of December 31st, 2015 con-
tained only the biological assets of Cementos Argos S.A. Refer to
Note 18 Non - Current Assets Held for Sale, wherein the size of
the disposal transaction is detailed.

At the end of the reporting period and comparable ones, there
were no restrictions on the ownership of the Group’s biological
assets, or contractual commitments for their development or ac-
quisition, and they have not been pledged as collateral debts.

NOTE 12: INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The details of the associates and joint ventures of the Group at
the time of the reporting period are as follows:

Shareholding Ratio
and Voting Power

Investee Type Location Core business 2015 2014 01-2014

Concesiones Urbanas S. A., ; ; i ;
in liquidation Associate Colombia Civil constructions 33.34 33.34 33.34
Omya Andina S. A. Joint Venture Colombia Prod. of non-metallic 50.00 50.00 50.00
Caltek S. A.S. Joint Venture Colombia Lime exploitation 50.00 50.00 50.00
st i’ 732-1354 Joint Venture Colombia ~ rorestry ma”agegl‘;r?st 44.21 44.21 44.21
Trans Atlantic . British Maritime cargo
Shipmanagement Ltd. Joint Venture Virgin Islands transport 50.00 50.00 50.00

- . Cement
MMC Cement Division C.V. Joint Venture Curacao commercialization 50.00 50.00 50.00
Granulados Reciclados de Joint Venture Colombia Sanitary services 40.00 - -

Colombia Greco S. A.S.

All associates and joint ventures are accounted using the equi-
ty method in the consolidated financial statements. None of the
Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are listed in
domestic or foreign stock markets; therefore there is no quoted
market price for the investment.

12.1 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The summarized financial information of each of the Group’s ma-
terial associates is presented below. The summary of financial
information below represents amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associate prepared under the IFRS:

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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As of December 31st, 2015, 2014 and January 1st, 2014 no
changes occurred in the Group's equity participation in an asso-
ciate or joint venture due to a sales transaction or purchase of
shares or other transactions. There are no significant restrictions
on the ability of associates or joint ventures to transfer funds to
the Group in the form of cash dividends or to repay loans or ad-
vances made by the Group. The Group has no contingent liabil-
ities related to its investments in associates and joint ventures.

NOTE 13: SUBSIDIARIES

13.1. Group Composition

The following are the companies included in the consolidated fi-
nancial statements of Cementos Argos S.A.:

AMERICAN CEMENT TERMINALS, LLC

Incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware (USA), on
September 20th, 2007; its corporate purpose is the realization of
investments and its term of duration is perpetual.

ARGOS DOMINICANA S. A.

Stock company incorporated under the laws of the Dominican
Republic on February 12, 1996. Its corporate purpose is the
manufacture, commercialization, import and export of clinker
and cement; the exploitation and commercialization of miner-
als used in and related to the cement industry. The company’s
headquarters are located in the city of Santo Domingo and
its term of duration is indefinite. It is consolidated Concretos
Argos Dominicanos, S.R.L.

ARGOS HONDURAS S. A. DE C.V.

Incorporated under the laws of Honduras on July 10, 1975, its
headquarters are located in Tegucigalpa. Its corporate purpose
is the exploitation of all kinds of cement, its derivatives and prod-
ucts manufactured with cement; obtaining of exploration permits
and exploitation concessions for estates and mineral deposits
whose substances are required for the manufacture of cement
and its derivatives. Its duration is indefinite.

In November 2013 an agreement was signed to exercise the
option of buying/ selling over 50% of the remaining shares of
Cementos del Sur S.A. This transaction was completed on Sep-
tember 30, 2014, and under this agreement Argos Honduras S.A.
de C.V. came to own 100% of Cementos del Sur S.A.

ARGOS PANAMA S.A. (FORMERLY CEMENTOS PANAMA S.A.)

A public limited company incorporated under the laws of the
Republic of Panama on June 25, 1943; its corporate purpose
is the manufacture, sale, import and export of cement and
its derivatives, as well as the import of all kinds of raw mate-
rials, machinery, equipment, and spare parts for the manu-
facture and sale of cement. The headquarters of the compa-
ny are located in Panama City, Republic of Panama, and its
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term of duration is perpetual. This Company is consolidated
with Grava S.A., Concreto S.A., Terminal Granelera Bahia Las
Minas S.A., Argos Panama Argos S.A. (formerly Cementos
Panama Comercializadora S.A.), Inversiones e Inmobiliaria
Tocumen S.A.

ARGOS PORTS (WILMINGTON) LLC (FORMERLY PORT ROYAL CE-
MENT COMPANY, LLC)

Company incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware
(USA) on March 10, 1998 and subsequently acquired by Ameri-
can Cement Terminals, LLC on December 31st, 2001; its corpo-
rate purpose is the commercialization of cement and its related
products. Its term of duration is perpetual.

ARGOS PUERTO RICO, LLC

In April 2015, 60% of the shares of Wetvan Overseas Ltd., the
company that owns the cement maritime terminal in Puerto Rico,
called CPA Puerto Rico, were acquired. In September 2015 the
name of the entity was changed from CPA Puerto Rico, LLC to
Argos Puerto Rico, LLC. It is located in San Juan, Puerto Rico,
and it is dedicated to the receipt, storage, sale and distribution
of cement.

ARGOS SEM, S.A.

Incorporated on March 21st, 2014 in Panama City, it aims to es-
tablish itself and operate as a Multinational Company Headquar-
ters to provide any and all direction and/or management services
for operations in the specific geographic or global area of a com-
pany in the business group, to engage in the manufacture and
commercialization of all types of goods on an international level,
as well as the commercialization of all types of services, and to
engage in any legal business in the territory of the Republic of
Panama and in any other state or jurisdiction, as permitted by the
laws of the respective state or jurisdiction. The company’s head-
quarters are located in Panama City, Republic of Panama and
its term of duration is perpetual, although it may be dissolved as
pursuant to the law.

ARGOS U.S. A. CORP.

Company incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware
(USA) on December 19, 2006. Its headquarters are located in
the city of Alpharetta (Georgija), its corporate purpose is to carry
out legal investment activities in the sector of cement, concrete
and related products. Its term of duration is perpetual. The Cor-
poration is consolidated with Argos Ready Mix (Central South)
Corp., Southern Star Leasing LLC, Piazza Acquisition Corp., Ar-
gos Ready Mix (Carolinas) Corp. (company that resulted from the
merger of RMCC Group Inc. with Southern Equipment Company
Inc.), Argos Ports (Savannah) LLC (formerly Savannah Cement
Company LLC), Argos Ports (Houston) LLC (formerly South Central
Cement Ltd.), Central Aggregates LLC, Argos Cement LLC, Argos



Ready Mix LLC, Palmetto Leasing Company and Metro Products
and Construction Inc.

CANTERAS DE COLOMBIA S. A.S.

Incorporated under Colombian laws on November 9, 1979, its
headquarters are located in the city of Medellin and its term of
duration is indefinite. Its corporate purpose is the exploration, ex-
ploitation, transformation, transport, benefit, full use, marketing
and sale of stony minerals such as sand, gravel and any other
materials, elements and accessories used in the construction in-
dustry; and in general, the performance of all activities related to
the mining industry, marketing and sale of renewable and non-re-
newable natural resources, and any legal economic activity both
in Colombia and abroad.

CARICEMENT ANTILLES, N.V.

Limited Liability Company incorporated under the laws of the
Netherlands Antilles on December 10, 1999; its corporate pur-
pose is investing. The company’s headquarters are located in
Curacao and its term of duration is indefinite. This company is
consolidated with Caricement Antigua Limited.

CEMENT AND MINING ENGINEERING INC.

Incorporated under Panamanian laws on February 4th, 1997; its
headquarters are located in Panama City; its corporate purpose is
the construction, technical assistance, installation and assembly
of equipment; the sale, purchase and administration of real estate
and personal property; the investment, financing and participation
in companies; the purchase or acquisition of patents, trademarks,
copyrights, licenses and formulas; operations with banks or other
financial institutions. Also the purchase of shares, stocks or bonds,
financing and participation in companies, mining and m aritime
businesses, and any other business permitted by the laws of the
Republic of Panama. Its term of duration is perpetual.

CEMENTOS DE CALDAS S. A.

Incorporated according to Colombian legislation on July 17, 2007; its
headquarters are located in Villamaria, department of Caldas; its cor-
porate purpose is the exploitation of the cement industry and the pro-
duction of concrete mixtures and their derivatives. Its term of duration
extends until July 22, 2054.

C.l. DEL MAR CARIBE (BVI) INC.

Incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands on June
2,2004; its headquarters are located in Tortola and its corporate
purpose is the commercialization of cement, clinker and lime. Its
term of duration is perpetual.

CIMENTS GUYANAIS S. A.S.
Incorporated on March 23rd, 1989 with headquarters in Cay-
enne, French Guiana; its corporate purpose is the manufacture

of cement and all derivative products, as well as the import of
the necessary raw materials and finished products for the elab-
oration, commercialization and export of cement and its related
products. The duration of the company is 99 years from March
23rd, 1989, unless there is early dissolution or extension. This
company was acquired in April 2014.

COLCARIBE HOLDINGS S. A.

Incorporated according to Panamanian l